
CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF
City of Scottsbluff Council Chambers

2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, NE  69361
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

Regular Meeting
December 21, 2015

6:00 PM

1. Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance.

3. For public information, a copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act is available for 
review.

4. Notice of changes in the agenda by the city clerk (Additions may not be made to this 
agenda less than 24 hours before the beginning of the meeting unless added under Item 5 
of this agenda.)

5. Citizens with business not scheduled on the agenda (As required by state law, no matter 
may be considered under this item unless council determines that the matter requires 
emergency action.)

6. Consent Calendar (Items in the consent calendar are proposed for adoption by one 
action for all items unless any member of the council requests that an item be 
considered separately.):

a) Approve the minutes of the December 7, 2015 Regular Meeting.

7. Claims:

a) Regular Claims

b) Council to approve the request for payment of claim by warrant for Paving 
District #311, Five Oaks, and approve the Resolution.

8. Petitions, Communications, Public Input:

a) Council to receive an update from the Splash Foundation.

9. Reports from Staff, Boards & Commissions:

a) Council to consider approving the renewal of a two year agreement with 
Johnsen Corrosion Engineering for continuing our existing Water Tower 
Corrosion Control Service Program and authorize the Mayor to execute the 
agreement.

b) Council to consider approval of the request from Allo Communications to 
consent to the acquisition by Nelnet of a controlling interest in Allo and approve 
the Resolution. 

c) Council discussion of LB 357 proposal and give directions to staff. 

d) Council to receive and take action on the Business Improvement District 
recommendation regarding the downtown development.

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 1 / 138



2

e) Council to consider selling 2.54 acres of city owned property located at Lot 3A, 
Block 1, Immigrant Trail Subdivision for the purpose of building a storage unit 
development, contingent on receipt of appraisal, notices and remonstrance.

f) Council to receive an update on the Comprehensive Plan.

g) Council to appoint a Council Member to the Revenue Committee.

h) Council to receive a report on investment of cash reserves and investment 
policy.

10. Resolution & Ordinances:

a) Council to consider a Resolution to continue the Monument Valley Pathway 
grant project.

b) Council to remove from the table the 2015 Local Emergency Operations Plan 
Resolution. 

c) Council to consider a Resolution accepting the 2015 Local Emergency 
Operations Plan

11. Executive Session 

a) Council reserves the right to enter into closed session if deemed necessary if the 
item is on the agenda.

12. Public Comments:   The purpose of this agenda item is to allow for public comment of 
items for potential discussion at a future Council Meeting.  Comments brought to the 
Council are for information only.  The Council will not take any action on the item 
except for referring it to staff to address or placement on a future Council Agenda.  This 
comment period will be limited to three (3) minutes per person

13. Council reports (informational only):
14. Scottsbluff Youth Council Representative report (informational only):
15. Adjournment.

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 2 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Consent1

Approve the minutes of the December 7, 2015 Regular Meeting.

Staff Contact: Cindy Dickinson, City Clerk

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 3 / 138



          Regular Meeting 

          December 7, 2015 

 

     The Scottsbluff City Council met in a regular meeting on Monday,  December 7, 2015 at 6:00 

p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff.  A notice of the meeting had 

been published on December 4, 2015, in the Star Herald, a newspaper published and of general 

circulation in the city. The notice stated the date, hour and place of the meeting, that the meeting would be 

open to the public. That anyone with a disability desiring reasonable accommodations to attend the 

council meeting should contact the city clerk’s office, and that an agenda of the meeting kept 

continuously current was available for public inspection at the office of the city clerk in City Hall; 

provided, the city council could modify the agenda at the meeting if it determined that an emergency so 

required.  A similar notice, together with a copy of the agenda, also had been delivered to each council 

member, made available to radio stations KNEB, KMOR, KOAQ, and television stations KSTF and 

KDUH, and the Star Herald.  The notice was also available on the City’s website on December 4, 2015. 

 An agenda kept continuously current was available for public inspection at the office of the city clerk at 

all times from publication of the notice to the time of the meeting. 

     Vice President of the Council Raymond Gonzales presided and City Clerk Dickinson recorded 

the proceedings. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  Vice President Gonzales welcomed everyone in 

attendance and encouraged all citizens to participate in the council meeting asking those wishing to speak 

to come to the microphone and state their name and address for the record. Vice President Gonzales 

informed those in attendance that a copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act is posted in the back of the 

room on the west wall for the public’s review. The following Council Members were present: Raymond 

Gonzales, Jordan Colwell and Scott Shaver. Absent: Randy Meininger (arrived at 6:45 p.m.). 

     Vice President Gonzales asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  There were none. Vice 

President Gonzales asked if any citizens with business not scheduled on the agenda wished to include an 

item providing the City Council determines the item requires emergency action. There were none. 

Vice President Gonzales expressed his gratitude for the service of Council Member Hilyard for her 

service as a City Council Member.  He presented a plaque commemorating Council Member Hilyard for 

her years of service.    

 City Clerk Dickinson reported that Council Member-elect Mark McCarthy is qualified to be 

seated as a member of the City Council and his bond is in place.   Council Member elect Mark McCarthy 

read his Oath of Office and was seated as a City Council Member. Roll call was taken and the following 

Council Members were present: Raymond Gonzales, Jordan Colwell, Scott Shaver, and Mark McCarthy. 

Absent: Randy Meininger. 

 Moved by Vice President Gonzales, seconded by Council Member McCarthy, “to appoint 

Council Member Colwell to the Twin Cities Development Board as an ex-officio member,” “YEAS”, 

Colwell, Gonzales, Shaver and McCarthy, “NAYS” None.  Absent: Meininger. 

 Moved by Council Member McCarthy, seconded by Council Member Colwell, to appoint 

Council Member Gonzales to the Western Nebraska Economic Development committee,” “YEAS”, 

Colwell, Gonzales, and McCarthy, “NAYS” Shaver.  Absent: Meininger. 

 Moved by Vice President Gonzales, seconded by Council Member Shaver, “to exclude the 

November 30, 2015 Minutes from the consent agenda and vote on it separately,” “YEAS”, Colwell, 

Gonzales, Shaver and McCarthy, “NAYS” None.  Absent: Meininger. 

 Moved by Council Member Colwell,  seconded by Council Member McCarthy,  “to approve the 

November 16, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes,” “YEAS”, Colwell, Gonzales, and McCarthy, “NAYS” 

Shaver.  Absent: Meininger. 

 Regarding the minutes from the November 30, 2015 Special Meeting, Council Member Colwell 

pointed out a portion of the minutes referred to comments made by City Engineer Schaff.  He was not 

present at the meeting, Mr. Kuckkahn reported information provided by Mr. Schaff.  City Clerk 

Dickinson will make the appropriate correction to the minutes.  Moved by Council Member Colwell, 

seconded by Council Member Gonzales, “to approve the November 30, 2015 Special Meeting Minutes 

with corrections,” “YEAS”, Colwell, Gonzales, and McCarthy, “NAYS” Shaver.  Absent: Meininger. 

 Moved by Council Member Shaver, seconded by Council Member McCarthy, “that the following 

claims be and hereby are approved and should be paid as provided by law out of the respective funds 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 4 / 138



designated in the list of claims dated December 7, 2015, as on file with the City Clerk and submitted to 

the City Council,”  “YEAS”, Colwell, Gonzales, Shaver and McCarthy, “NAYS” None.  Absent: 

Meininger. 

CLAIMS 

 

911 CUSTOM, LLC,VEH MAINT,358;  ACCURACY INC,AMMUNITION,765;  ACTION 

COMMUNICATIONS INC.,6 PORTABLE RADIO BATTERIES,792;  AIR CYCLE CORPORATION, 

DEPT SUPPLIES,260;  AIRGAS USA, LLC,GAS SUPPLIES FOR TRAINING CLASS,16.23;  

ALAMAR CORP,UNIFORMS,698.18;  ALLAN CLARE B,MISC,275;  ALLO COMMUNICATIONS, 

LLC,LOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES,4670.49;  AMAZON.COM HEADQUARTERS,BKS, DVDS, 

DEP SUP,1289.5;  ANTHONY HARRIS,CONTRACTUAL SERVICES,57.5;  ANTHONY J 

MURPHY,FOOD COST FOR TWO WEEK NFA CLASS,330.48;  ASSURITY LIFE INSURANCE 

CO,LIFE INSURANCE,34.36;  ATLAS COPCO COMPRESSORS, LLC,EQUIP MAINT,4653;  

AUTOZONE STORES, INC,VEH MAINT,10.17;  B & H INVESTMENTS, INC,BLDG MAINT, 

409.15;  B&C STEEL CORPORATION,BLDG MAINT,111.15;  BAKER & ASSOCIATES 

INC,CONTRATUAL,3856;  BARCO MUNICIPAL PRODUCTS INC,SUPP - STOP SIGN 

FACINGS,712.91;  BARRAZA MANUEL,CONTINGENCY,6200;  BLUESTEM HOMEOWNERS, 

TREE REBATE,219.95;  BLUFFS SANITARY SUPPLY INC.,JAN SUP,695.93;  CAPITAL 

BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC.,MAINT,95.33;  CARR- TRUMBULL LUMBER CO, INC.,SUPP,28.43;  

CELLCO PARTNERSHIP,CELL PHONE,720.68;  CEMENTER'S INC,CONTINGENCY,5850.76;  

CITIBANK N.A.,SUPP - INK FOR CENTRAL GARAGE PRINTER,367.44;  COLONIAL LIFE & 

ACCIDENT INSURANCE COMPANY,SUP LIFE INS,48.7;  CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT 

COMPANY,SCHOOLS & CONF,404.75;  CONTRACTORS MATERIALS INC.,DEPT SUPPLIES, 

172.63;  CREATIVE SITES LLC,EQUIP,29975;  CREDIT MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC.,WAGE 

ATTACH.,444.32;  CRESCENT ELECT. SUPPLY COMP INC,BID SUP,765.23;  CYNTHIA GREEN, 

DEPT SUP,115.11;  D & H ELECTRONICS,EQUIPMENT REPAIRS,6.84;  DALE'S TIRE & 

RETREADING, INC.,EQUP MAINT,861.48;  DUANE E. WOHLERS,DISPOSAL FEES,900;  DYNA-

TECH ELECTRIC INC,ELECT MAIN,743.68;  ELLIOTT EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC.,VEHICLE 

MTNC,5410.91;  ENERGY LABORATORIES, INC,SAMPLES,253;  FASTENAL COMPANY, 

SUPP,78.73;  FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION,POSTAGE,287.2;  FLOYD'S TRUCK CENTER,  

INC,EQUIP MTNC,4377.89;  FUN EXPRESS, LLC,SPECIAL EVENT,567.44;  FYR-TEK INC, 

REPAIRS TO SCBA REGULATOR,209.75;  G & G EQUIPMENT INC,SMALL CAPITAL,4015;  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION,FIREARMS SUPPL,332.95;  GENERAL 

TRAFFIC CONTROLS, INC,CAMERA FOR AVE. I & W. OVERLAND,1796.51;  GI HOSPITALITY, 

SCHOOLS & CONF,457.9;  H D SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD,METERS,45845.72;  HAWKINS, 

INC.,CHEMICALS,832.15;  HEILBRUN'S INC.,BATTERY FOR SNOW BLOWER,680.69;  HENWIL 

CORPORATION,CHEMICALS,5272.1;  HOA SOLUTIONS, INC,EQUIPMENT,27189.8;  

HULLINGER GLASS & LOCKS INC.,DUPLICATED KEYS FOR FIRE PANELS,82.5;  ICC 

CERTIFICATION SERVICES,DEPT MMBRSHP,135;  ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457,DEF 

COMP EE, 2650.28;  IDEAL LAUNDRY AND CLEANERS, INC.,DEPT SUPP,1000.44;  INGRAM 

LIBRARY SERVICES INC,BKS,345.16;  INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE,FED W/H,132325.84;  

INTERNATIONAL MUNICIPAL SIGNAL ASSOCIATION,TRAFFIC SIGNAL MEMBERSHIP 

RENEWAL - CURT ROSSMAN,85;  INTRALINKS, INC,COMPUTERS,23841.22;  INVENTIVE 

WIRELESS OF NE, LLC,CONTRACTUAL,16;  JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL,UNIFORMS,171.92;  

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL,VEH MAINT,82.98;  JWC ENVIRONMENTAL,LLC,EQUIP 

MAINT,674.23;  KRIZ-DAVIS COMPANY,STREET LITE CONTROL BOX,230.92;  LOGAN 

CONTRACTORS SUPPLY INC,PARTS FOR TAR KETTLE,160.39;  M.C. SCHAFF & 

ASSOCIATES, INC,CONTRACT SERVICES,7475;  MADISON NATIONAL LIFE,LIFE 

INSURANCE EE,1891.56;  MATHESON TRI-GAS INC,WELD. SUPP FOR CENTRAL GARAGE,90;  

MATTHEW M. HUTT,CONTRACT SERVICES,900;  MAXWELL PRODUCTS, INC,JOINT 

SEALER,23659.41;  MENARDS, INC,DEPT SUP,1210.62;  MICHAEL B KEMBEL,BUILDING 

MTNC,455.3;  MIDLANDS NEWSPAPERS, INC,NWSPR SBCRP,139;  MIDWEST MOTOR SUPPLY 

CO INC,SUPP FOR CENTRAL GARAGE,928.86;  MIKE WARREN,SUPP - MICROBICIDE FOR 

CENTRAL GARAGE,159.5;  MONUMENT PREVENTION COALITION,CONTRACTUAL,939.94;  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 5 / 138



MUNICIPAL PIPE TOOL CO, LLC,EQUIP MAINT,524.14;  MUNICIPAL SUPPLY INC. OF 

NEBRASKA,DEPT SUP,6707.96;  NE CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT CENTER,NE CHILD SUPPORT 

PYBLE,3726.86;  NE COLORADO CELLULAR, INC,CONTRACTUAL SVC,32.36;  NE DEPT OF 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL,SRF LOAN PAYMENTS,331043.77;  NE DEPT OF 

REVENUE,SALES TAX,19093.32;  NEBRASKA MACHINERY CO,EQUIPMENT,145126.01;  

NEBRASKA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT,ELECTRIC,16718.37;  NEBRASKA SALT AND GRAIN 

CO,1 LOAD ICE SLICER,4227.98;  NEBRASKALAND TIRE, INC,VEH MAINT,14.5;  NEMNICH 

AUTOMOTIVE,VEH MAINT,99.98;  NEOPOST USA INC,RENT-MACH,767.88;  NORTHWEST 

PIPE FITTINGS, INC. OF SCOTTSBLUFF,DEPT SUP,110.5;  ONE CALL CONCEPTS, 

INC,CONTRACTURAL,89.9;  PANHANDLE CONCRETE PRODUCTS, INC,DEPT SUP,495;  

PANHANDLE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES INC,SAMPLES,234;  PANHANDLE HUMANE 

SOCIETY,CONTRACTUAL,5023.88;  PELCO CORP,DEPT SUPP,50;  PLATTE VALLEY 

BANK,HSA EE,27015.77;  POSTMASTER,POSTAGE,1242.37;  POWERPLAN,EQUIP 

MTNC,2513.66;  PRO OVERHEAD DOOR,BUILDING MAINT,523;  PROTEX CENTRAL, 

INC.,BLDG MAINT,139.65;  QUILL CORPORATION,DEPT SUPPL/INVEST SUPPL,873.03;  

RECORDED BOOKS INC,CONT. SRVCS,599.1;  REGANIS AUTO CENTER, INC,VEH 

MAINT,461.1;  REGION I OFFICE OF HUMAN DEVELOPMENT,CONTRACTUAL SERVICES,825;  

REGIONAL CARE INC,CLAIMS,162843.11;  REGIONAL WEST PHYSICIANS 

CLINIC,CONSULTING,214;  REGISTER OF DEEDS,DEP SUP,20;  REVIZE LLC,CONTRACT 

SERVICES,2568;  RIGHT BRAIN UNLIMITED,DEPT SUPP,692.05;  ROCKSTEP SCOTTSBLUFF 

LLC,MONUMENT MALL,15929.04;  ROOSEVELT PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT,PUMPING 

POWER,1791.44;  S M E C,EMP DEDUCTIONS,472;  SANDBERG IMPLEMENT, INC,EQUP 

MAINT,348.82;  SCB FIREFIGHTERS UNION LOCAL 1454,FIRE EE DUES,390;  SCOTTSBLUFF 

BODY & PAINT,TOW SERVICE,595;  SCOTTSBLUFF POLICE OFFICERS 

ASSOCIATION,POLICE EE DUES,1152;  SCOTTSBLUFF SCREENPRINTING & EMBROIDERY, 

LLC,UNIFORM & CLOTHING,597.16;  SCOTTSBLUFF WINNELSON COMPANY,EQUIP 

MAINT,53.04;  SHERIFF'S OFFICE,LEGAL FEES,272.68;  SIMON CONTRACTORS, 

CONCRETE,9620.69;  SOURCE GAS,MONTHLY ENERGY FUEL,1978.09;  STATE HEALTH 

LAB,SAMPLES,48;  STATE OF NE.,CONTRACTUAL,105;  STATE OF NEBR,MONTHLY LONG 

DISTANCE,158.78;  STATE OF NEBRASKA DEPT OF HEALTH,LICENSES/PERMITS,1955;  

SUHOR INDUSTRIES, INC.,DEPT SUPP,110;  SWANK MOTION PICTURES INC,SPECIAL 

EVENT,201;  THE WESTERN SUGAR COOPERATIVE,VEHICLE MAINT,178.03;  TOTAL FUNDS 

BY HASLER,PSTG,500;  TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION,HIDTA CAR LEASE,383.99;  

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC,FEE - UB ONLINE MAINTENANCE,348;  UPSTART 

ENTERPRISES, LLC,DEPT SUPP,415.4;  US BANK,2012 HWY ALLOC.PLEDGE BOND 

PAYMENT,237732.5;  US BANK,ANNUAL DUES TO STATE FIRE ASSOCIATION,835.38;  VAN 

PELT FENCING CO, INC,CONTINGENCY,1755;  WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.,GENERAL 

EMPLOYEES EE,58335.86;  WESTERN COOPERATIVE COMPANY,VEHICLE MTNC,668.72;  

WESTERN LIBRARY SYSTEM,EQUIP MAIN,21;  WESTERN PATHOLOGY CONSULTANTS, 

INC,CONTRACT SERVICES,75;  WIN INVESTMENTS INC,SCHOOLS & CONF,199.9;  

WYOMING FIRST AID & SAFETY SUPPLY, LLC,DEPT SUP,28.76;  YOUNG MEN'S CHRISTIAN 

ASSOCIATION OF SCOTTSBLUFF, NE,YMCA EE,2419;  REFUNDS:  LEISURE LIVING 

HOMEOWNERS ASSOC. 13.91, 13.21, 16.36, 11.47; JANET MILLER 80.53; COMMUNITY ACTION 

PARTNERSHIP OF WESTERN NEBRASKA 287.29; JESSE NEWBERRY 28.84 BRITTANY LUND 

24.20; ANNA KOENIG 8.69;CASSIDY MYRE 3.28; JOYLYN WEISS .29; FILLBRO, LLLC 4.72; 

KEN COULTER 1.57; STEVEN COMBS 12.32; TJADEN INVEST 1.25; TRAILS WEST PAVILLION 

18.18; SCOTT HAMMOCK 28.26. 

  

 Moved by Council Member McCarthy, seconded by Council Member Shaver, “to approve the 

request for payment of a claim by warrant for Paving District #312, Reganis 12
th
 Ave., and approve 

Resolution No. 15-12-01,” “YEAS”, Colwell, Gonzales, Shaver and McCarthy, “NAYS” None.  Absent: 

Meininger. 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 6 / 138



RESOLUTION NO. 15-12-01 

 

  BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA: 

That the claim of  M. C. Schaff and  Associates, Inc. in the amount of $18,151.50, being the sixth 

pay estimate for Paving District #312, is approved and the City Clerk is authorized to issue a warrant for 

the payment of such claim. 

That the claim of Infinity Construction, Inc. in the amount of $152,112.44, being the seventh pay 

estimate for Paving District #312, is approved and the City Clerk is authorized to issue a warrant for the 

payment of such claim. 

 Passed and approved this 7
th
 day of December, 2015. 

 

 

       ___________________________________ 

             Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

               City Clerk 

 

“seal” 
 

 Assistant City Manager Johnson presented the recommendation from the Western Nebraska 

Economic Development (WNED) committee to award the bid to Hanna Keelan for the regional housing 

study.  The following three proposals were submitted:  RKG - $35,000;  Western Economic Services, 

LLC - $22,905; and Hanna Keelan $58,000 (applied for a grant which will cover 49% making the total 

amount $29,850). 

 The WNED subcommittee met and reviewed the proposals and recommended Hanna Keelan due 

to their implementation plan.    The committee discussed the funding for the study be split for each entity 

at a level not to exceed $1.75 per capita.  Scottsbluff’s maximum portion would be $26,320.00 without 

the grant award;  with the grant award, the city’s portion would be approximately $14,000.00. 

 Mr. Johnson explained that the regional housing study would identify weaknesses, strengths, and 

areas of opportunity for a multi-county area in the Panhandle.  The implementation phase would actually 

put us in contact with developers to begin working on housing issues.  Vice-President Gonzales 

commented that this study will also help with our comprehensive plan and others in the region.  Council 

discussed the option of any action contingent upon Hanna Keelan’s receipt of the grant.  Mr. Johnson 

added that it was the consensus of the other WNED partner communities to participate with the housing 

study.  Moved by Council Member Shaver, seconded by Council Member Colwell, “to approve the 

recommendation of  Hanna Keelan for the regional housing study and authorize funding of the study not 

to exceed $14,000.00, contingent on the other partner WNED community’s financial participation in the 

housing study,” “YEAS”, Colwell, Gonzales, Shaver and McCarthy, “NAYS” None.  Absent: Meininger.  

 Vice-President Gonzales opened the public hearing at 6:20 p.m., which was scheduled for this 

date to consider a Class I liquor license application from The Shed, 18 East 16
th
 St., Scottsbluff.  Dustin 

and Meredith Lee, owners, and Police Chief Kevin Spencer were sworn in to testify on the liquor license.  

Moved by Council Member Shaver, seconded by Vice President Gonzales, “that the following exhibits, 

presented on behalf of the City Council, be entered into the record: 1) The Shed Liquor License 

application; 2) City Council check list for section 53-132 cum supp 2010; 3) written statement of Police 

Chief Kevin Spencer dated December 3, 2015 ; 4) written statement of City Clerk dated December 7 

2015; 5) written statement of Planning Administrator Urdiales dated November 4, 2015; “YEAS”, 

Colwell, Gonzales, Shaver and McCarthy, “NAYS” None.  Absent: Meininger.  

 Meredith Lee explained to the Council that she has 15 years of experience in the restaurant and 

bar business.  City Attorney Olsen asked how she was going to demonstrate control of the liquor license, 

training of employees, and prevention of the sale of alcohol to minors.  Ms. Lee explained that she takes 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 7 / 138



full responsibility for ordering and storing the alcohol.  Every employee will receive the responsible 

server training and they will check the ID’s of all customers who order alcohol.  She also discussed the 

phone app that will assist in checking ID’s, showing what valid ID’s look like in all states.  They have a 

“no tolerance” policy if staff sells to minors. They don’t want their employees to get comfortable serving, 

as it is a very serious responsibility. 

 Chief Spencer reported to the Council that the Police Department conducted a very extensive 

background check and found no reasons to not recommend Meredith and Dustin Lee for a liquor license.  

He also informed the Council that the Liquor License Investigatory Board recommended approval of the 

liquor license at their last meeting.  There were no comments from the public. 

 Vice-President Gonzales closed the public hearing at 6:30 p.m.  Moved by Council Member 

Shaver, seconded by Council Member Colwell, “to forward a favorable recommendation to the Nebraska 

Liquor Control Commission for The Shed Class I liquor license pursuant to Nebraska §53-132  (2)a, (2)b, 

(2)c, and (2)d,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Colwell, Shaver, and McCarthy. “NAYS” None.  Absent: Meininger 

RESOLUTION NO.  15-12-02 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF, 

NEBRASKA: 

 

1.  On December 7, 2015,  the matter of the application of a Class I liquor license for the Shed, 18 East 16
th

 St., 

Scottsbluff, NE 69361 came on for consideration by the Council.  The following exhibits were offered and 

received: 

 

 Exhibit 1 -Application of Class I liquor license for the Shed, 18 East 16
th

 St., Scottsbluff, NE 69361

 Exhibit 2 - City Council Check List for Section 53-132 (Reissue 2010) 

 Exhibit 3 - Written statement of Police Chief dated December 3, 2015 

 Exhibit 4 - Written statement of City Clerk dated December 7, 2015 

 Exhibit 5 - Written statement of Development Services Director dated November 4, 2015  

  

2.  Witnesses were sworn and testimony was received in support of the application at the public hearing on this 

date from Meredith and Dustin Lee.  Police Chief Kevin Spencer spoke on behalf of the City. 

 

3.  Upon consideration of the evidence and the criterion to be considered by the City Council pursuant to law, 

the City Council finds as follows: 

 

 a. Applicant has demonstrated a fitness, willingness, and ability to properly serve or sell 

liquor in conformance to the rules and regulations of the Nebraska Liquor Control Act. 

 

b. Applicant has met its burden with regard to the check list provided by Section 53-132 

R.R.S. (1984) and demonstrates a willingness and ability to properly serve or sell liquor in 

conformance to the rules and regulations of the Nebraska Liquor Control Act and its 

management and control appears to be sufficient to insure compliance with such rules and 

regulations. 

 

4.  By reason of the above, the Applicant has met the burden of proof and persuasion in producing evidence 

pertaining to the criterion prescribed in the Nebraska Statutes. 

 

Based on the above findings, the City Council approves the application and recommends to the Nebraska 

Liquor Control Commission that a Retail Class I liquor license be issued to The Shed, at the premises 

described in the application. 

 

5.  The City Clerk shall transmit a copy of this Resolution to the Commission. 

 

6.  Cost of publication: $16.41. 

 

Passed and approved this 7
th

 day of December,  2015. 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 8 / 138



         ____________________________________ 

           Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

  City Clerk 

“seal” 

 

 Vice-President Gonzales opened the public hearing at 6:30 p.m. to consider the purchase of the 

property located at 1303 East Overland.  City Manager Kuckkahn  explained that the purchase of 

properties located on the Scotts Bluff drain is part of the master plan of the Scotts Bluff Drain Board. This 

is a single family home and there does not seem to be a problem with asbestos.  The purchase price is 

$38,000.00.  The property will be demolished after closing.  There were no comments from the public.  

Vice-President Gonzales closed the public hearing at 6:33 p.m.   

 Council Member Shaver asked if there has been an appraisal of the property.  Mr. Kuckkahn 

commented that the price is based on the market rate.  City Attorney Olsen commented that a value of  

$100,000.00 or more is the amount that requires an appraisal.  Moved by Council Member McCarthy, 

seconded by Council Member Colwell, “to approve the purchase of the property located at 1303 East 

Overland in the amount of $38,000.00 and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement,” “YEAS”, 

Gonzales, Colwell, Shaver, and McCarthy. “NAYS” None.  Absent: Meininger. 

 

 Donna Thompson, Executive Director of the West Nebraska Art Center, approached the Council 

and explained the three events to be held at the Art Center for which she is applying for Special 

Designated Liquor Licenses.  Vice-President Gonzales commented that there have not been issues in the 

past with the Art Center Special Liquor Licenses.  Ms. Thompson explained that all volunteers are trained 

and the events are only for patrons age 21 and over.  She explained that two of the events are painting 

classes where they serve wine.  These permits are three of the six allowed each year to a non-profit.  Chief 

Spencer added that there have never been issues with the events at the Art Center.  Moved by Council 

Member Colwell, seconded by Council Member Shaver, “to approve special arts-related event wine permits 

for the West Nebraska Arts Center, 106 East 18th Street and special designated liquor licenses for events on 

the following dates: January 16, 2016;  January 22, 2016;  and April 22, 2016,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, 

Colwell, Shaver, and McCarthy. “NAYS” None.  Absent: Meininger. 

 

  Mayor Meininger joined the meeting at 6:45 p.m.  

  

 Tim Arlt, Nebraska Public Power District (NPPD) General Manager, gave the Council a 

presentation on the Community Solar project and asked Council to consider approval of the proposal.   He 

explained that this project presents a potential for partnerships with communities.   

 NPPD is interested in a pilot project with Scottsbluff because it is a key Western Nebraska base 

community. There is land availability around the current NPPD location and Scottsbluff is a better 

geographic location based on sun resource.  This project would showcase Scottsbluff as a progressive 

community with a renewable angle.  This first phase would serve approximately 20 homes, with an 

approximate premium of $1.68 - $6.00 per month for homeowners who participate. 

 Moved by Mayor Meininger, seconded by Council Member McCarthy, “to approve the Nebraska 

Public Power District Solar Project concept, pending a formal proposal,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Colwell, 

Shaver, Meininger and McCarthy. “NAYS” None.  Absent: None. 

 Regarding the progress of the Comprehensive Plan, City Manager Kuckkahn explained that the 

Plan is on the web site, scottsbluffplanning.org.  Surveys will be posted on the web site for residents to 

review. Many portions of the plan are ready for release in draft form with the opportunity to amend.  Staff 

is looking at potential times for open houses, offering additional opportunities for the community to 

comment.    The Planning Commission will be ready to make recommendations to the City Council by the 

first of 2016.   

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 9 / 138



 Tim Newman, Coordinator for Region 22 Emergency Management, explained that he has submitted 

a notice of interest for a Hazard Mitigation Grant to replace the aging sirens in our community.  His goal 

is to replace all four of the sirens purchased in 1955.  Whether the grant is approved or not, we need to 

have a plan to replace the sirens.  The Hazard Mitigation grant is a 75% - 25%  split.  Mr. Newman stated 

he would like to budget enough to replace at least one siren each year at a cost of approximately $24,455 

per siren.  In the process, we may need to re-locate where the sirens are located.  Council Member Shaver 

asked if the new sirens are more effective, would we need to still have four sirens.  Mr. Newman 

responded that we will need to evaluate the situation, but may actually need to add more sirens.  After the 

current four locations are replaced he would like to expand with additional sirens in areas where people 

gather outdoors, such as ball parks, golf courses, and parks.  City Manager Kuckkahn commented that 

funding would most likely come from Public Safety.  The priority list would begin with the 

Transportation offices on 3
rd

 Avenue as the siren at that location constantly fails.   

 Moved by Mayor Meininger, seconded by Council Member Shaver, “to give staff the authority to 

proceed with the Hazard Mitigation Grant application for outdoor warning sirens,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, 

Colwell, Shaver, Meininger and McCarthy. “NAYS” None.  Absent: None. 

 Assistant City Manager Johnson presented the revised Western Nebraska Economic Development 

Interlocal Cooperation Agreement.  Exhibit A will provide for modifications of the agreement as needed.  

The agreement includes a signature page for each community to sign, rather than having all signatures 

combined on one document.  It also provides an opportunity for individual communities under 500 

population to join together with other small communities, with one representative.  The financial 

participation is voluntary as each individual project is will be considered on a case by case basis.   Moved 

by Council Member Colwell, seconded by Council Member McCarthy, “to approve the revised Western 

Nebraska Economic Development Interlocal Cooperation Agreement and authorize the Mayor to execute 

the agreement,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Colwell, Meininger and McCarthy. “NAYS” Shaver.  Absent: None. 

 Mr. Kuckkahn presented information regarding the implementation of LB 357 which would 

require approval by the voters at a primary or general election.  This bill provides an additional one-half 

cent sales tax to be used for specific public infrastructure projects such as roads, utilities and buildings.  

Staff has provided a map showing the roads needing major work.   This additional tax would provide 

approximately $1.8 million per year which would allow us to work on these projects. The list of roads is 

very long and very expensive, and this is one way to provide funding for these improvements.  The 

Comprehensive Plan also has a list of suggested projects for our community.  Staff is looking for support 

to add this to the ballot for the May primary election.  We will need to develop a project list so citizens 

are aware of specific projects. 

 Jason Webb, Elite Health, approached the Council and asked if there will be a separate 

referendum for each project.  Mr. Kuckkahn explained that the Council will decide on a priority list of 

projects, and only those projects can be worked on based on state law.  There is only one referendum for 

the entire list of specific projects for a ten year period.  City Attorney Olsen commented that the Council 

is charged with creating the project list with the purpose of developing the ballot language.  Council 

Member McCarthy commented that a problem with a prioritized list, is that the priorities may change 

over the ten year period.  Mayor Meininger commented that this taxation is fair because it takes the 

burden away from the property owners and puts it onto the users of the infrastructure.   

 City Attorney Olsen added that the Council will need to vote on a Resolution by March in order 

to place this item on the ballot for the primary election.   

  Moved by Mayor Meininger, seconded by Council Member McCarthy, “to direct staff to begin 

implementation of the LB 357 referendum ballot question,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Colwell, Shaver, and 

McCarthy. “NAYS” None.  Absent: Meininger. 

 Tim Newman, Emergency Management, presented the Resolution for the 2015 Local Emergency 

Operations Plan (LEOP), and explained that there are no significant changes.  He is waiting to complete 

some of the contact information and finalize the entire document. Scotts Bluff County has approved the 

Resolution, which is the main step to implement the plan.  Moved by Council Member Shaver, seconded 

by Mayor Meininger, “to table approval of the Resolution accepting the 2015 Local Emergency Operations Plan 

until the plan is completed,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Colwell, Shaver, Meininger and McCarthy. “NAYS” None.  

Absent: None. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 10 / 138



 Mr. Johnson explained the Street Superintendent Certification and Resolution, which is an annual 

formality with the Nebraska Department of Roads.  Moved by Council Member Shaver, seconded by 

Mayor Meininger, “to approve Resolution No. 15-12-03, approval of the Certification and Resolution 

appointing Philip Mark Bohl as the City of Scottsbluff Street Superintendent,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Colwell, 

Shaver, Meininger and McCarthy. “NAYS” None.  Absent: None. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-12-03 

WHEREAS, the State of Nebraska, through the Nebraska Department of Roads (“NDOR”) requires a 

licensed Street Superintendent be named each year for municipalities within the State of Nebraska; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Scottsbluff (“City”) has an employee, Philip Mark Bohl, who is a licensed Street 

Superintendent; and 

WHEREAS, the City has appointed and Philip Mark Bohl has agreed to be the City’s Street 

Superintendent for the 2016 calendar year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council and Mayor of the City of Scottsbluff, 

Nebraska that Philip Mark Bohl, Nebraska Street Superintendent #1103 is appointed as the Street 

Superintendent for the City of Scottsbluff. 

 

This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and approval.      

 

PASSED and APPROVED on December 7, 2015. 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

         Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

City Clerk     

 

 Mr. Johnson explained the change to the snow removal ordinance, which basically sets the time to 12:00 

noon the day following the end of any snowfall, for removing snow from the sidewalk.  Mayor Meininger introduced 

Ordinance No. 4172 which was read by title on first reading: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 

SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO REVISE § 20-6-20 DEALING 

WITH THE REMOVAL SNOW FOLLOWING A SNOWFALL ON SIDEWALKS THAT ARE 

CONTIGUOUS TO LOTS AND PROPERTY, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND 

PROVIDING FOR PUBLICAITON IN PAMPHLET FORM.  

 Moved by Mayor Meininger, seconded by Council Member McCarthy, “That the statutory rule 

requiring the Ordinance to be read by title on three different days be suspended.” “YEAS” Meininger, 

Gonzales,  Shaver, Colwell and McCarthy “NAYS” None. Absent: None. The motion carried having been 

approved by three-fourths of the Council Members.  Moved by Mayor Meininger, seconded by Council 

Member Gonzales, “That Ordinance No. 4172 be adopted,” “YEAS” Meininger, Gonzales,  Shaver, 

Colwell and McCarthy “NAYS” None. Absent: None. 

 Mr. Kuckkahn explained the minor changes with the Ordinance dealing with the airport overlay 

district which is basically a modification to height limitations.  The Planning Commission reviewed and 

forwarded a favorable recommendation at their November 23, 2015 meeting.  Vice-President Gonzales 

introduced Ordinance No. 4173 which was read by title on first reading:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE 

CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA DEALING WITH AIRPORT ZONING 

REGULATIONS, REPEALING THE PRIOR ARTICLE AT  CHAPTER 25, ARTICLE 23 OF 

THE SCOTTSBLUFF MUNICIPAL CODE AND REPLACING THE ENTIRE ARTICLE, 

REPEALING ALL PRIOR ORDINANCES, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND 

PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION IN PAMPHLET FORM. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 11 / 138



 Moved by Mayor Meininger, seconded by Council Member Gonzales “That the statutory rule 

requiring the Ordinance to be read by title on three different days be suspended.” “YEAS” Meininger, 

Gonzales,  Shaver, Colwell and McCarthy “NAYS” None. Absent: None. The motion carried having been 

approved by three-fourths of the Council Members.  Moved by Mayor Meininger, seconded by Council 

Member Colwell, “That Ordinance No. 4173 be adopted,” “YEAS” Meininger, Gonzales,  Shaver, 

Colwell and McCarthy “NAYS” None. Absent: None. 

 Council introduced Ordinance No. 4174 dealing with utility rates which was read by title on third 

reading: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA AMENDING THE 

MUNICIPAL CODE SEWER USER FEES AT CHAPTER 6 ARTICLE 6, AMENDING AND CHANGING 

THE SOLID WASTE COLLECTION FEES AT CHAPTER 6 ARTICLE 6, AND WATER SERVICE FEES 

AT CHAPTER 6 ARTICLE 6, REPEALING SECTION 6-6-25, REPEALING PRIOR PROVISIONS OF 

THE MUNICIPAL CODE, PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION BY PAMPHLET FORM AND PROVIDING 

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  Moved by Council Member McCarthy, seconded by Mayor Meininger, 

“to adopt Ordinance No. 4174, utility rates,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Colwell, Meininger and McCarthy. 

“NAYS” Shaver.  Absent: None. 

 Council introduced Ordinance 4175 which was read by title on third reading: AN ORDINANCE 

OF THE CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA AMENDING THE SCOTTSBLUFF 

MUNICIPAL CODE AT CHAPTER 21, ARTICLE 1, RELATING TO SUBDIVISION 

REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICALLY ALLEYS, AMENDING SECTION 21-1-20 RELATING 

TO REQUIRED ALLEYS AND ALLOWING AN EXCEPTION, REPEALING FORMER 

SECTIONS, PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION IN PAMPHLET FORM AND PROVIDING FOR 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Moved by Council Member McCarthy, seconded by Mayor Meininger, “to 

adopt Ordinance No. 4175, alleys,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Colwell, Meininger, Shaver and McCarthy. 

“NAYS” None.  Absent: None. 

 Vice-President of the Council Gonzales noted that concerning the item dealing with appointments 

to the Western Nebraska Economic Development committee, an alternate member should be included.  

Moved by Vice-President Gonzales, seconded by Mayor Meininger, “to appoint Council Member 

McCarthy as an alternate member to the Western Nebraska Economic Development committee,” 

“YEAS”, Gonzales, Colwell, Meininger and McCarthy. “NAYS” Shaver.  Absent: None. 

 Under Council Reports, Mayor Meininger will be attending the Senior Center board meeting this 

week.   

 Moved by Council Member Shaver, seconded by Vice President Gonzales, “to adjourn the 

meeting at 8:00 p.m.,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Colwell, Meininger, Shaver and McCarthy. “NAYS” None.  

Absent: None. 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

            Vice-President of the Council 

Attest: 

 

 

________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

“SEAL” 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 12 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Claims1

Regular Claims

Staff Contact: Liz Hilyard, Finance Director

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 13 / 138



12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 1 of 23

Expense Approval Report
City of Scottsbluff, NE By Vendor Name

Post Dates 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: 08424 - 21st CENTURY WATER TEHNOLOGIES, LLC

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

22.21EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCELAMP FOR TRACTOR

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 22.21

Vendor 08424 - 21st CENTURY WATER TEHNOLOGIES, LLC Total: 22.21

Vendor: 00393 - ACTION COMMUNICATIONS INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

244.50EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

700.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE800 Radio rack alignment

150.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEtuning of Mip 5000 system

150.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEtuning dayroom remote radio

116.50EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

104.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUP MAINT

65.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

460.10EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,990.10

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

65.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCHECK RADIO REMOTES IN OFF…

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 65.00

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

27.50DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESWI MAX INTERNET

22.20VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 49.70

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

27.50DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESWI MAX INTERNET

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 27.50

Vendor 00393 - ACTION COMMUNICATIONS INC. Total: 2,132.30

Vendor: 09021 - AIRGAS USA, LLC

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

11.89DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 11.89

Vendor 09021 - AIRGAS USA, LLC Total: 11.89

Vendor: 00310 - ALAMAR CORP

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

311.20UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUNIFORMS/EQUIP MAINT

73.98EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEUNIFORMS/EQUIP MAINT

78.21UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUNIFORMS

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 463.39

Vendor 00310 - ALAMAR CORP Total: 463.39

Vendor: 04575 - AUTOZONE STORES, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

31.18VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 31.18

Vendor 04575 - AUTOZONE STORES, INC Total: 31.18

Vendor: 00271 - B&C STEEL CORPORATION

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

58.50SPECIAL EVENTSSPECIAL EVENT

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 14 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 2 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

117.00SPECIAL EVENTSspecial event

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 175.50

Vendor 00271 - B&C STEEL CORPORATION Total: 175.50

Vendor: 09138 - BLUFFS BROADCASTING

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

240.00SPECIAL EVENTSSPECAIL EVENT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 240.00

Vendor 09138 - BLUFFS BROADCASTING Total: 240.00

Vendor: 00405 - BLUFFS SANITARY SUPPLY INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

35.90JANITORIAL SUPPLIESJan sup.

40.95DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

197.45JANITORIAL SUPPLIESJAN SUPPL

114.30JANITORIAL SUPPLIESJan sup

107.87DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL/JANIT SUPPL

107.87DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL/JANIT SUPPL

29.25JANITORIAL SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL/JANIT SUPPL

29.24JANITORIAL SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL/JANIT SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 662.83

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

64.54DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

28.51DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 93.05

Vendor 00405 - BLUFFS SANITARY SUPPLY INC. Total: 755.88

Vendor: 05006 - BRETT BEWLEY

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

126.45EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCERE-IMBURSEMENT FOR SWEEP…

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 126.45

Vendor 05006 - BRETT BEWLEY Total: 126.45

Vendor: 06391 - BROWN'S SHOE FIT CO

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

160.00UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUNIFORM & CLOTHING

160.00UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUNIFORMS & CLOTHING

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 320.00

Vendor 06391 - BROWN'S SHOE FIT CO Total: 320.00

Vendor: 00735 - CAPITAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

106.27EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEMAINT

92.23CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCont. srvcs

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 198.50

Vendor 00735 - CAPITAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC. Total: 198.50

Vendor: 00055 - CARR- TRUMBULL LUMBER CO, INC.

Fund: 641 - WATER

31.66DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

448.22DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

475.82DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 955.70

Vendor 00055 - CARR- TRUMBULL LUMBER CO, INC. Total: 955.70

Vendor: 07911 - CELLCO PARTNERSHIP

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

25.02CELLULAR PHONEData modem

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 25.02

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

16.23TELEPHONECELL PHONE FOR ON CALL

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 16.23

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 15 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 3 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

47.60CELLULAR PHONECELL PHONES

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 47.60

Fund: 641 - WATER

83.54CELLULAR PHONECELL PHONES

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 83.54

Vendor 07911 - CELLCO PARTNERSHIP Total: 172.39

Vendor: 00363 - CEMENTER'S INC

Fund: 641 - WATER

187.26DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 187.26

Vendor 00363 - CEMENTER'S INC Total: 187.26

Vendor: 07250 - CHRIS REYES

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

140.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 140.00

Vendor 07250 - CHRIS REYES Total: 140.00

Vendor: 02396 - CITIBANK N.A.

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

96.80DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - FOLDERS, BATT, TOWELS

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 96.80

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

30.98DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

-14.99DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supp

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 15.99

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

45.98DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 45.98

Fund: 641 - WATER

123.29DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 123.29

Vendor 02396 - CITIBANK N.A. Total: 282.06

Vendor: 05859 - CITIBANK, N.A.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

44.92DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 44.92

Vendor 05859 - CITIBANK, N.A. Total: 44.92

Vendor: 00484 - CITY OF GERING

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

40,172.42DISPOSAL FEESdisposal fees

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 40,172.42

Vendor 00484 - CITY OF GERING Total: 40,172.42

Vendor: 00367 - CITY OF SCB

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

20.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCEPETTY CASH

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 20.00

Fund: 661 - STORMWATER

4.45DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESPETTY CASH

5.53DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESPETTY CASH

Fund 661 - STORMWATER Total: 9.98

Vendor 00367 - CITY OF SCB Total: 29.98

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 16 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 4 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: 01976 - CLARK PRINTING LLC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

218.55DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 218.55

Vendor 01976 - CLARK PRINTING LLC Total: 218.55

Vendor: 03010 - COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INSURANCE COMPANY

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

22.75LIFE INS EE PAYABLECOLONIAL LIFE

25.95DIS INC INS EE PAYABLECOLONIAL LIFE

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 48.70

Vendor 03010 - COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INSURANCE COMPANY Total: 48.70

Vendor: 00706 - COMPUTER CONNECTION INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

46.07RENT-MACHINESRENT-MACH

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 46.07

Vendor 00706 - COMPUTER CONNECTION INC Total: 46.07

Vendor: 02995 - CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

190.25SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCHOOLS & CONF

112.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCHOOLS & CONF

200.75SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCHOOLS & CONF

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 503.00

Vendor 02995 - CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT COMPANY Total: 503.00

Vendor: 00267 - CONTRACTORS MATERIALS INC.

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

67.62DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - SAND BAGS

29.35DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - SAFETY GLASSES

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 96.97

Fund: 641 - WATER

695.22DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 695.22

Vendor 00267 - CONTRACTORS MATERIALS INC. Total: 792.19

Vendor: 00714 - COZY, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

125.00BUILDING MAINTENANCEBldg main.

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 125.00

Vendor 00714 - COZY, INC Total: 125.00

Vendor: 00406 - CRESCENT ELECT. SUPPLY COMP INC

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

13.94DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - PHOTO CONTROL

110.84DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESWALL HEATER FOR SIGN SHOP

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 124.78

Vendor 00406 - CRESCENT ELECT. SUPPLY COMP INC Total: 124.78

Vendor: 07689 - CYNTHIA GREEN

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

7.98DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

5.38DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 13.36

Vendor 07689 - CYNTHIA GREEN Total: 13.36

Vendor: 00234 - D & H ELECTRONICS INC.

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

4.49EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEDEPT SUP

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 4.49

Vendor 00234 - D & H ELECTRONICS INC. Total: 4.49

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 17 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 5 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: 03321 - DALE'S TIRE & RETREADING, INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

15.50EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 15.50

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

285.00VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

2,149.93VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 2,434.93

Vendor 03321 - DALE'S TIRE & RETREADING, INC. Total: 2,450.43

Vendor: 06739 - DANKO EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT COMPANY

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

413.66UNIFORMS & CLOTHING12 pair of BDU pants

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 413.66

Vendor 06739 - DANKO EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT COMPANY Total: 413.66

Vendor: 09557 - DILLMAN NANCY

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

14.07DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 14.07

Vendor 09557 - DILLMAN NANCY Total: 14.07

Vendor: 07421 - DUANE E. WOHLERS

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

450.00DISPOSAL FEESdisposal fees

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 450.00

Vendor 07421 - DUANE E. WOHLERS Total: 450.00

Vendor: 06947 - ENFORCEMENT VIDEO, LLC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

199.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 199.00

Vendor 06947 - ENFORCEMENT VIDEO, LLC Total: 199.00

Vendor: 00069 - ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS SOUTH, INC

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

434.90CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SVC

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 434.90

Vendor 00069 - ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS SOUTH, INC Total: 434.90

Vendor: 01790 - ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS RESEARCH INSTITUTE INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

400.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEDEPT EQPMNT MNTNC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 400.00

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

600.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUP MAINT

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 600.00

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

500.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

250.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

750.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

300.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 1,800.00

Fund: 641 - WATER

750.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

250.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

500.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 1,500.00

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 18 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 6 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Fund: 721 - GIS SERVICES

6,400.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEDEPT EQPMNT MNTNC

Fund 721 - GIS SERVICES Total: 6,400.00

Vendor 01790 - ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS RESEARCH INSTITUTE INC Total: 10,700.00

Vendor: 00222 - FARMERS IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

2,028.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESSOCCER FIELD

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 2,028.00

Vendor 00222 - FARMERS IRRIGATION DISTRICT Total: 2,028.00

Vendor: 02460 - FASTENAL COMPANY

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

14.64EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 14.64

Vendor 02460 - FASTENAL COMPANY Total: 14.64

Vendor: 07574 - FAT BOYS TIRE AND AUTO

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

664.00VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 664.00

Vendor 07574 - FAT BOYS TIRE AND AUTO Total: 664.00

Vendor: 00548 - FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION

Fund: 641 - WATER

39.25POSTAGEPOSTAGE

39.25POSTAGEPOSTAGE

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 78.50

Vendor 00548 - FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION Total: 78.50

Vendor: 00794 - FLOYD'S TRUCK CENTER,  INC

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

262.79VEHICLE MAINTENANCESOLENOID FOR D. TRUCK

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 262.79

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

343.01EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEequip mtnc

560.10VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

110.24VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

29.04VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

190.39VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

-210.00VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

72.05VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 1,094.83

Vendor 00794 - FLOYD'S TRUCK CENTER,  INC Total: 1,357.62

Vendor: 00887 - FYR-TEK INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

99.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCESCBA mask parts

110.75EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCErepairs tp SCBA regulator

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 209.75

Vendor 00887 - FYR-TEK INC Total: 209.75

Vendor: 00022 - GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

56.46DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

24.96AUDIOVISUAL SUPPLIESDVD

35.61DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 117.03

Vendor 00022 - GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION Total: 117.03

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 19 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 7 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: 06559 - GRAND ISLAND MOTEL DEVELOPMENT, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

389.75SCHOOL & CONFERENCErooms for connor week one

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 389.75

Vendor 06559 - GRAND ISLAND MOTEL DEVELOPMENT, INC Total: 389.75

Vendor: 06671 - H D SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD

Fund: 641 - WATER

284.85DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

5,334.08DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

3,618.00METERSMETERS

6,066.25METERSMETERS

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 15,303.18

Vendor 06671 - H D SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD Total: 15,303.18

Vendor: 09100 - HANSEN, JOSH

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

48.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCHOOLS & CONF

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 48.00

Vendor 09100 - HANSEN, JOSH Total: 48.00

Vendor: 04371 - HAWKINS, INC.

Fund: 641 - WATER

3,032.25CHEMICALSCHEMICALS

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 3,032.25

Vendor 04371 - HAWKINS, INC. Total: 3,032.25

Vendor: 00861 - HEILBRUN'S INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

67.86VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAIN

51.18VEHICLE MAINTENANCEveh maint

42.01VEHICLE MAINTENANCERescue One repair parts

17.70VEHICLE MAINTENANCEfuel filter rescue one

52.51VEHICLE MAINTENANCErescue one air filter

-15.44VEHICLE MAINTENANCEair filter return

-17.07VEHICLE MAINTENANCEfuel filter return

150.85VEHICLE MAINTENANCEUnit 7 new alternator

24.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

26.32DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 399.92

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

-19.80EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEBATTERY CORE DEPOSIT FOR S…

130.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - DE-ICER, SQ. ALL

24.69EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEHYD HOSE FIT FOR BACKHOE

29.35DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - HOSE FITT FOR CENTRAL…

42.38DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP FOR CENTRAL GARAGE

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 206.62

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

12.78EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

19.01DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

5.39EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUP MAINT

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 37.18

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

111.77DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 111.77

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

75.46VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

41.68EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

120.96DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

22.32VEHICLE MAINTENANCEDEPT SUP

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 20 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 8 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

22.95VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 283.37

Vendor 00861 - HEILBRUN'S INC. Total: 1,038.86

Vendor: 06423 - HYDROTEX PARTNERS, LTD

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

317.14EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 317.14

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

1,474.34OIL & ANTIFREEZE55 GAL 5W-40 OIL FOR CENTRAL…

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 1,474.34

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

961.00VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 961.00

Vendor 06423 - HYDROTEX PARTNERS, LTD Total: 2,752.48

Vendor: 00166 - ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

1,325.14DEFERRED COMP EE PAYICMA

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 1,325.14

Vendor 00166 - ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 Total: 1,325.14

Vendor: 00525 - IDEAL LAUNDRY AND CLEANERS, INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

76.62JANITORIAL SUPPLIESJan sup

76.62JANITORIAL SUPPLIESJan sup

29.58JANITORIAL SUPPLIESJANIT SUPP

44.23DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 227.05

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

115.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - MATS, TOWELS, CVRLLS

159.65DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - MATS, TOWELS, CVRLLS,…

7.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - CVRLLS

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 281.65

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

113.98DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 113.98

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

21.38DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 21.38

Fund: 641 - WATER

23.39CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SVC

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 23.39

Vendor 00525 - IDEAL LAUNDRY AND CLEANERS, INC. Total: 667.45

Vendor: 00937 - INDEPENDENT PLUMBING AND HEATING, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

160.40BUILDING MAINTENANCEBLD MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 160.40

Vendor 00937 - INDEPENDENT PLUMBING AND HEATING, INC Total: 160.40

Vendor: 09291 - INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

63.46BOOKSBks

41.28BOOKSBks

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 104.74

Vendor 09291 - INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES INC Total: 104.74

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 21 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 9 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: 08154 - INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

3,821.28MEDICARE W/H EE PAYABLEWITHHOLDINGS 12-2

14,255.81FICA W/H EE PAYABLEWITHHOLDINGS 12-2

27,692.31FED W/H EE PAYABLEWITHHOLDINGS 12-2

3,821.28MEDICARE W/H ER PAYABLEWITHHOLDINGS 12-2

14,255.81FICA W/H ER PAYABLEWITHHOLDINGS 12-2

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 63,846.49

Vendor 08154 - INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE Total: 63,846.49

Vendor: 08525 - INTRALINKS, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

337.50EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEquip. main.

112.50EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

1,849.36DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT. SUPPLIES

5,803.29EQUIPMENTDELL POWEREDGE R330 SERVER

5,991.60EQUIPMENTPOWERVAULT EXTERNAL LTO-6…

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 14,094.25

Vendor 08525 - INTRALINKS, INC Total: 14,094.25

Vendor: 05696 - INVENTIVE WIRELESS OF NE, LLC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

8.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTURAL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 8.00

Vendor 05696 - INVENTIVE WIRELESS OF NE, LLC Total: 8.00

Vendor: 00192 - J G ELLIOTT CO.INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

40.00BONDINGNOTARY BOND

100.00BONDINGBOND - MCCARTHY

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 140.00

Vendor 00192 - J G ELLIOTT CO.INC. Total: 140.00

Vendor: 06981 - JACOBS AUTO GLASS

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

100.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEKIT & LABOR FOR LOADER GLAS…

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 100.00

Vendor 06981 - JACOBS AUTO GLASS Total: 100.00

Vendor: 06131 - JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

9.99DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESVISE GRIP CUTTER

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 9.99

Vendor 06131 - JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL Total: 9.99

Vendor: 08067 - JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

19.99DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supp

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 19.99

Vendor 08067 - JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL Total: 19.99

Vendor: 09474 - JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

21.11EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUP MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 21.11

Vendor 09474 - JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL Total: 21.11

Vendor: 05578 - LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGMENT INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

100.00CONSULTING SERVICESCONSULTING

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 100.00

Vendor 05578 - LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGMENT INC Total: 100.00

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 22 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 10 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: 04064 - LOPEZ STEVE

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

48.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCHOOLS & CONF

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 48.00

Vendor 04064 - LOPEZ STEVE Total: 48.00

Vendor: 00242 - M.C. SCHAFF & ASSOCIATES, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

1,393.75CONTRACTUAL SERVICESDEPT CNTRCL SRVCS

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,393.75

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

720.00STREET PROJECTSENG. SERVICES FOR 42ND STRE…

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 720.00

Fund: 641 - WATER

213.75CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SVC

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 213.75

Fund: 661 - STORMWATER

450.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SVC

Fund 661 - STORMWATER Total: 450.00

Vendor 00242 - M.C. SCHAFF & ASSOCIATES, INC Total: 2,777.50

Vendor: 00336 - MARIE'S EMBROIDERY

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

6.00UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUNIFORMS

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 6.00

Vendor 00336 - MARIE'S EMBROIDERY Total: 6.00

Vendor: 05099 - MARKETING CONSULTANTS

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

900.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 900.00

Vendor 05099 - MARKETING CONSULTANTS Total: 900.00

Vendor: 07628 - MENARDS, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

78.56SPECIAL EVENTSSPECIAL EVENT

23.54DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

133.85DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

7.23DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

7.23DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

44.58DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

47.08DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supp

33.59DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

76.96BUILDING MAINTENANCEbuilding supplies

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 452.62

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

37.94DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - CORD, STAKES

47.96DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - BROOMS

6.36DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - LINKS

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 92.26

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

74.94DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 74.94

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

79.98DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

14.91DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

22.89DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 117.78

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 23 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 11 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Fund: 641 - WATER

27.37DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

83.89DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 111.26

Vendor 07628 - MENARDS, INC Total: 848.86

Vendor: 00705 - MIDLANDS NEWSPAPERS, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

19.08LEGAL PUBLICATIONSLEGAL PUB

18.32LEGAL PUBLICATIONSLegal Publishing

503.47LEGAL PUBLICATIONSLegal Publishing

54.57LEGAL PUBLICATIONSLegal Publishing

13.36LEGAL PUBLICATIONSLegal Publishing

639.47RECRUITMENTLegal Publishing

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,248.27

Fund: 224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

12.21PUBLICATIONSLegal Publishing

Fund 224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Total: 12.21

Vendor 00705 - MIDLANDS NEWSPAPERS, INC Total: 1,260.48

Vendor: 00278 - MONUMENT CAR WASH INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

327.30VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 327.30

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

20.88VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 20.88

Fund: 641 - WATER

6.11VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 6.11

Vendor 00278 - MONUMENT CAR WASH INC Total: 354.29

Vendor: 08967 - MONUMENT PREVENTION COALITION

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

939.94CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 939.94

Vendor 08967 - MONUMENT PREVENTION COALITION Total: 939.94

Vendor: 04082 - NE CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT CENTER

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

1,863.43CHILD SUPPORT EE PAYNE CHILD SUPPORT PYBLE

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 1,863.43

Vendor 04082 - NE CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT CENTER Total: 1,863.43

Vendor: 00797 - NE DEPT OF REVENUE

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

84.14SALES TAX PAYABLETAX

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 84.14

Fund: 641 - WATER

16,046.12SALES TAX PAYABLETAX

13,273.60SALES TAX PAYABLETAX

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 29,319.72

Fund: 661 - STORMWATER

200.10SALES TAX PAYABLETAX

Fund 661 - STORMWATER Total: 200.10

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

19,001.88STATE W/H EE PAYABLEWITHHOLDINGS

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 19,001.88

Vendor 00797 - NE DEPT OF REVENUE Total: 48,605.84

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 24 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 12 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: 00068 - NE DEPT OF ROADS

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

33,975.99PATHWAYPATHWAY

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 33,975.99

Vendor 00068 - NE DEPT OF ROADS Total: 33,975.99

Vendor: 01358 - NE LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING CENTER

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

10.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCHOOLS & CONF

100.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCHOOLS & CONF

50.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCHOOLS & CONF

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 160.00

Vendor 01358 - NE LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING CENTER Total: 160.00

Vendor: 05998 - NEBRASKA FLOODPLAIN & STORMWATER MANAGERS ASSOC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

35.00MEMBERSHIPSDEPT MMBRSHP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 35.00

Vendor 05998 - NEBRASKA FLOODPLAIN & STORMWATER MANAGERS ASSOC Total: 35.00

Vendor: 00578 - NEBRASKA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

378.18ELECTRICITYElectric

158.92ELECTRICITYElectric

396.13ELECTRICITYElectric

75.05ELECTRICITYElectric

396.12ELECTRICITYElectric

1,630.21ELECTRICITYElectric

93.21ELECTRICITYElectric

2,179.48ELECTRICITYElectric

66.33ELECTRICITYElectric

100.40STREET LIGHTSElectric

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 5,474.03

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

605.78ELECTRICITYElectric

1,785.26ELECTRIC POWERElectric

28,020.83STREET LIGHTSElectric

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 30,411.87

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

247.24ELECTRICITYElectric

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 247.24

Fund: 216 - BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT

85.42STREET LIGHTSElectric

Fund 216 - BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT Total: 85.42

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

526.66ELECTRICITYElectric

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 526.66

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

30.13ELECTRICITYElectric

719.92ELECTRIC POWERElectric

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 750.05

Fund: 641 - WATER

30.12ELECTRICITYElectric

304.33ELECTRIC POWERElectric

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 334.45

Vendor 00578 - NEBRASKA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT Total: 37,829.72

Vendor: 00722 - NEBRASKA SALT AND GRAIN CO

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

8,608.43STREET REPAIR SUPPLIES2 LOADS ICE SLICER

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 25 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 13 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

4,163.85STREET REPAIR SUPPLIES1 LOAD ICE SLICER

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 12,772.28

Vendor 00722 - NEBRASKA SALT AND GRAIN CO Total: 12,772.28

Vendor: 09413 - NEOPOST

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

1,000.00POSTAGEPOSTAGE

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,000.00

Vendor 09413 - NEOPOST Total: 1,000.00

Vendor: 09409 - NETWORKFLEET, INC

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

18.95DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - GPS SERVICE

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 18.95

Vendor 09409 - NETWORKFLEET, INC Total: 18.95

Vendor: 00139 - NORTHWEST PIPE FITTINGS, INC. OF SCOTTSBLUFF

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

12.52DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 12.52

Vendor 00139 - NORTHWEST PIPE FITTINGS, INC. OF SCOTTSBLUFF Total: 12.52

Vendor: 01757 - OCLC ONLINE COMPUTER LIBRARY CENTER, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

310.39CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCont. srvcs.

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 310.39

Vendor 01757 - OCLC ONLINE COMPUTER LIBRARY CENTER, INC Total: 310.39

Vendor: 00285 - OREGON TRAIL PLUMBING, HEATING & COOLING INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

98.00BUILDING MAINTENANCEbld maint

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 98.00

Vendor 00285 - OREGON TRAIL PLUMBING, HEATING & COOLING INC Total: 98.00

Vendor: 06654 - PANHANDLE CONCRETE

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

90.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 90.00

Vendor 06654 - PANHANDLE CONCRETE Total: 90.00

Vendor: 00550 - PANHANDLE COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

1,143.20GASOLINEFire fuel

85.00GASOLINEDEPT FUEL

2,831.59GASOLINEGASOLINE

58.50GASOLINEGASOLINE

1,071.34GASOLINEFUEL

-66.49GASOLINEFUEL

409.72OTHER FUELFUEL

-13.16GASOLINEFUEL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 5,519.70

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

647.63GASOLINEUNLEADED GASOLINE

1,581.62OTHER FUELUNLEADED GASOLINE

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 2,229.25

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

4,848.79GASOLINEGasoline

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 4,848.79

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

69.90DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESFUEL

382.40GASOLINEFUEL

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 26 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 14 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

254.92OTHER FUELFUEL

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 707.22

Fund: 641 - WATER

773.13GASOLINEFUEL

187.54OTHER FUELFUEL

75.61OTHER FUELFUEL

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 1,036.28

Vendor 00550 - PANHANDLE COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION Total: 14,341.24

Vendor: 00487 - PANHANDLE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES INC

Fund: 641 - WATER

54.00SAMPLESSAMPLES

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 54.00

Vendor 00487 - PANHANDLE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES INC Total: 54.00

Vendor: 04494 - PAUL REED CONSTRUCTION & SUPPLY, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

145.32GROUNDS MAINTENANCEGROUND MAINT

487.90GROUNDS MAINTENANCEGROUND MAINT

95.76GROUNDS MAINTENANCEGROUND MAINT

99.96GROUNDS MAINTENANCEGROUND MAINT

97.86GROUNDS MAINTENANCEGROUND MAINT

95.06GROUNDS MAINTENANCEGROUND MAINT

500.92GROUNDS MAINTENANCEGROUNDS MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,522.78

Vendor 04494 - PAUL REED CONSTRUCTION & SUPPLY, INC Total: 1,522.78

Vendor: 01276 - PLATTE VALLEY BANK

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

12,279.76HSA EE PAYABLEHSA

1,262.50HSA ER PAYABLEHSA

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 13,542.26

Vendor 01276 - PLATTE VALLEY BANK Total: 13,542.26

Vendor: 00272 - POSTMASTER

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

86.83POSTAGEPostage

132.98POSTAGEPostage

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 219.81

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

86.82POSTAGEPostage

132.98POSTAGEPostage

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 219.80

Fund: 641 - WATER

86.82POSTAGEPostage

132.98POSTAGEPostage

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 219.80

Vendor 00272 - POSTMASTER Total: 659.41

Vendor: 00796 - POWERPLAN

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

369.85EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEWINDOWPANE FOR LOADER

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 369.85

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

27,859.00EQUIPMENTequipment

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 27,859.00

Vendor 00796 - POWERPLAN Total: 28,228.85

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 27 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 15 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: 09587 - PREMIER HOSPITALITY DEVELOPMENT

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

85.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCHOOLS & CONF

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 85.00

Vendor 09587 - PREMIER HOSPITALITY DEVELOPMENT Total: 85.00

Vendor: 07558 - PRUDENT PUBLISHING CO INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

322.40DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 322.40

Vendor 07558 - PRUDENT PUBLISHING CO INC Total: 322.40

Vendor: 00266 - QUILL CORPORATION

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

85.99DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

72.30DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

71.21DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL/INVEST SUPPL

26.28INVESTIGATION SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL/INVEST SUPPL

95.47DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

39.99DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL/INVEST SUPPL

39.98DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL/INVEST SUPPL

119.94INVESTIGATION SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL/INVEST SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 551.16

Vendor 00266 - QUILL CORPORATION Total: 551.16

Vendor: 04576 - REGANIS AUTO CENTER, INC

Fund: 641 - WATER

26,763.00EQUIPMENTEQUIPMENT

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 26,763.00

Vendor 04576 - REGANIS AUTO CENTER, INC Total: 26,763.00

Vendor: 00703 - REGION I OFFICE OF HUMAN DEVELOPMENT

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

825.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESContractual Services

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 825.00

Vendor 00703 - REGION I OFFICE OF HUMAN DEVELOPMENT Total: 825.00

Vendor: 04089 - REGIONAL CARE INC

Fund: 812 - HEALTH INSURANCE

7,636.64CLAIMS EXPENSECLAIMS

379.00FLEXIBLE BENFT EXPENSESFLEX

32,716.10CLAIMS EXPENSEclaims

258.00FLEXIBLE BENFT EXPENSESFLEX

Fund 812 - HEALTH INSURANCE Total: 40,989.74

Vendor 04089 - REGIONAL CARE INC Total: 40,989.74

Vendor: 00798 - REGISTER OF DEEDS

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

10.00LEGAL FEESLEGAL FEES

10.00LEGAL FEESLEGAL FEES

10.00MISCELLANEOUSQUITCLAIM DEED

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 30.00

Vendor 00798 - REGISTER OF DEEDS Total: 30.00

Vendor: 02667 - RICHS WRECKING & SALVAGE

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

27.50VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 27.50

Vendor 02667 - RICHS WRECKING & SALVAGE Total: 27.50

Vendor: 09383 - RUSHMORE MEDIA COMPANY, INC

Fund: 661 - STORMWATER

300.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SVC

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 28 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 16 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

12.50CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SVC

12.50CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SVC

Fund 661 - STORMWATER Total: 325.00

Vendor 09383 - RUSHMORE MEDIA COMPANY, INC Total: 325.00

Vendor: 00026 - S M E C

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

271.00SMEC EE PAYABLESMEC

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 271.00

Vendor 00026 - S M E C Total: 271.00

Vendor: 00257 - SANDBERG IMPLEMENT, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

125.28EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 125.28

Vendor 00257 - SANDBERG IMPLEMENT, INC Total: 125.28

Vendor: 00841 - SCB COUNTY

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

75.50CONTRACTUAL SERVICESDEPT CNTRCL SRVCS

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 75.50

Vendor 00841 - SCB COUNTY Total: 75.50

Vendor: 02531 - SCB FIREFIGHTERS UNION LOCAL 1454

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

195.00FIRE UNION DUES EE PAYFIRE EE DUES

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 195.00

Vendor 02531 - SCB FIREFIGHTERS UNION LOCAL 1454 Total: 195.00

Vendor: 00852 - SCOTTS BLUFF COUNTY COURT

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

357.00LEGAL FEESLEGAL FEES

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 357.00

Vendor 00852 - SCOTTS BLUFF COUNTY COURT Total: 357.00

Vendor: 00273 - SCOTTSBLUFF POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

576.00POL UNION DUES EE PAYPOLICE EE DUES

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 576.00

Vendor 00273 - SCOTTSBLUFF POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION Total: 576.00

Vendor: 01271 - SCOTTSBLUFF SCREENPRINTING & EMBROIDERY, LLC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

2,637.00SPECIAL EVENTSSPECIAL EVENT

244.00UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUNIFORMS

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 2,881.00

Vendor 01271 - SCOTTSBLUFF SCREENPRINTING & EMBROIDERY, LLC Total: 2,881.00

Vendor: 00338 - SCOTTSBLUFF SENIOR CENTER

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

5,750.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 5,750.00

Vendor 00338 - SCOTTSBLUFF SENIOR CENTER Total: 5,750.00

Vendor: 00759 - SCOTTSBLUFF/GERING CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

30.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCEPRE-LEGISLATIVE BREAKFAST

30.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCEPRE-LEGISLATIVE BREAKFAST

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 60.00

Vendor 00759 - SCOTTSBLUFF/GERING CHAMBER OF COMMERCE Total: 60.00

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 29 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 17 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: 00684 - SHERIFF'S OFFICE

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

160.44LEGAL FEESLEGAL FEES

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 160.44

Vendor 00684 - SHERIFF'S OFFICE Total: 160.44

Vendor: 00786 - SHERWIN WILLIAMS

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

61.20STREET REPAIR SUPPLIESRED PAINT

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 61.20

Vendor 00786 - SHERWIN WILLIAMS  Total: 61.20

Vendor: 00021 - SIMMONS OLSEN LAW FIRM, P.C.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

130.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

405.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

6,264.61CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

4,167.18CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 10,966.79

Fund: 224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

1,039.25CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

324.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

162.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

Fund 224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Total: 1,525.25

Vendor 00021 - SIMMONS OLSEN LAW FIRM, P.C. Total: 12,492.04

Vendor: 01031 - SIMON CONTRACTORS

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

167.16STREET REPAIR SUPPLIESSAND

60.89STREET REPAIR SUPPLIESSAND

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 228.05

Vendor 01031 - SIMON CONTRACTORS Total: 228.05

Vendor: 00513 - SNELL SERVICES INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

1,830.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEquip. main.

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,830.00

Vendor 00513 - SNELL SERVICES INC. Total: 1,830.00

Vendor: 09039 - SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

150.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 150.00

Vendor 09039 - SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS Total: 150.00

Vendor: 09584 - TASER INTERNATIONAL

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

390.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCHOOLS & CONF

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 390.00

Vendor 09584 - TASER INTERNATIONAL Total: 390.00

Vendor: 05431 - THE WESTERN SUGAR COOPERATIVE

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

168.75VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 168.75

Vendor 05431 - THE WESTERN SUGAR COOPERATIVE Total: 168.75

Vendor: 09379 - THOMAS P MILLER & ASSOCIATES, LLC

Fund: 224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

16,751.12CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACT SERVICES-OCT.2015

Fund 224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Total: 16,751.12

Vendor 09379 - THOMAS P MILLER & ASSOCIATES, LLC Total: 16,751.12

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 30 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 18 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: 07537 - TRANS IOWA EQUIPMENT LLC

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

130.24EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEELEV. BRG ASSY FOR SWEEPER

1,059.29EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEDRAG SHOE RUNNERS FOR SW…

482.12EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEHYD MOTOR FOR SWEEPER

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 1,671.65

Vendor 07537 - TRANS IOWA EQUIPMENT LLC Total: 1,671.65

Vendor: 09239 - UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

179.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCont. srvcs

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 179.00

Vendor 09239 - UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC Total: 179.00

Vendor: 08887 - UPSTART ENTERPRISES, LLC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

42.73DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 42.73

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

2.19DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - CALENDAR REFILL

48.30DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP - CALENDAR REFILLS, CAR…

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 50.49

Vendor 08887 - UPSTART ENTERPRISES, LLC Total: 93.22

Vendor: 08828 - US BANK

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

119.99SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCHOOL & CONF

30.16GASOLINEGASOLINE

404.98DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESLENOVA NOTEBOOKS

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 555.13

Vendor 08828 - US BANK Total: 555.13

Vendor: 00110 - VOGEL WEST, INC

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

236.55STREET REPAIR SUPPLIESRED PAINT

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 236.55

Vendor 00110 - VOGEL WEST, INC Total: 236.55

Vendor: 03674 - WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

7,652.89REGULAR RETIRE EE PAYRETIREMENT

2,545.01RETIRE FIRE EE PAYABLERETIREMENT

4,703.98RETIRE POLICE EE PAYRETIREMENT

4,296.04RETIRE-FIRE ER PAYABLERETIREMENT

4,536.49RETIRE-POLICE ER PAYRETIREMENT

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 23,734.41

Vendor 03674 - WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. Total: 23,734.41

Vendor: 00344 - WESTERN PATHOLOGY CONSULTANTS, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

95.50CONTRACTUAL SERVICESDOT RANDOM TESTING

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 95.50

Vendor 00344 - WESTERN PATHOLOGY CONSULTANTS, INC Total: 95.50

Vendor: 04430 - WESTERN TRAVEL TERMINAL, LLC

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

39.00VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 39.00

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 31 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 19 of 23

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Fund: 641 - WATER

13.00VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 13.00

Vendor 04430 - WESTERN TRAVEL TERMINAL, LLC Total: 52.00

Vendor: 07239 - WYOMING FIRST AID & SAFETY SUPPLY, LLC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

43.39DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 43.39

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

62.53DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESFIRST AID KIT SUPPLIES

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 62.53

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

42.65DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 42.65

Vendor 07239 - WYOMING FIRST AID & SAFETY SUPPLY, LLC Total: 148.57

Vendor: 08878 - YELLMAN, ABBIGAIL

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

23.45WITNESS FEESWITNESS FEES

13.36DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESReimb.

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 36.81

Vendor 08878 - YELLMAN, ABBIGAIL Total: 36.81

Vendor: 03379 - ZM LUMBER INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

147.35DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

5.58DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

97.45DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

415.84DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

-48.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 618.22

Vendor 03379 - ZM LUMBER INC Total: 618.22

Grand Total: 512,749.82

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 32 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 20 of 23

Report Summary

Fund Summary

 Payment AmountFund Expense Amount

111 - GENERAL 84.14102,401.94

212 - TRANSPORTATION 0.0051,798.77

213 - CEMETERY 0.00957.91

216 - BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT 0.0085.42

224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 0.0018,288.58

621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 219.8180,790.42

631 - WASTEWATER 219.805,593.95

641 - WATER 29,539.5280,053.70

661 - STORMWATER 200.10985.08

713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL 124,404.31124,404.31

721 - GIS SERVICES 0.006,400.00

812 - HEALTH INSURANCE 40,989.7440,989.74

195,657.42Grand Total: 512,749.82

Account Summary

 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name Expense Amount

111-21311 SALES TAX PAYABLE 84.1484.14

111-42407-142 WITNESS FEES 0.0023.45

111-52111-111 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00190.61

111-52111-116 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.002,254.34

111-52111-121 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00218.55

111-52111-141 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00147.86

111-52111-142 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00935.22

111-52111-151 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.0013.36

111-52111-171 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.001,032.04

111-52111-172 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.0097.21

111-52121-111 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 0.00197.45

111-52121-141 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 0.0029.25

111-52121-142 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 0.0029.24

111-52121-151 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 0.00303.44

111-52121-171 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 0.0029.58

111-52134-172 SPECIAL EVENTS 0.003,131.06

111-52163-142 INVESTIGATION SUPPLIES 0.00146.22

111-52181-141 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING 0.00413.66

111-52181-142 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING 0.00395.41

111-52181-172 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING 0.00244.00

111-52221-151 AUDIOVISUAL SUPPLIES 0.0024.96

111-52222-151 BOOKS 0.00104.74

111-52311-121 MEMBERSHIPS 0.0035.00

111-52411-111 POSTAGE 0.001,000.00

111-52511-121 GASOLINE 0.0085.00

111-52511-141 GASOLINE 0.001,143.20

111-52511-142 GASOLINE 0.002,861.75

111-52511-143 GASOLINE 0.0058.50

111-52511-171 GASOLINE 0.00991.69

111-52521-171 OTHER FUEL 0.00409.72

111-53111-112 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.0095.50

111-53111-114 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.006,799.61

111-53111-121 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.001,469.25

111-53111-142 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.005,257.12

111-53111-151 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00581.62

111-53111-171 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.002,036.00

111-53111-172 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.005,750.00

111-53121-142 CONSULTING SERVICES 0.00100.00

111-53161-112 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 0.0018.32

111-53161-115 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 0.00503.47

111-53161-121 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 0.0054.57

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 33 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 21 of 23

Account Summary

 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name Expense Amount

111-53161-143 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 0.0019.08

111-53161-151 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 0.0013.36

111-53211-114 LEGAL FEES 0.00517.44

111-53421-141 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0.0076.96

111-53421-151 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0.00125.00

111-53421-171 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0.00160.40

111-53421-172 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0.0098.00

111-53441-111 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.00106.27

111-53441-116 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.00112.50

111-53441-121 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.00400.00

111-53441-141 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.001,209.75

111-53441-142 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.001,159.08

111-53441-151 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.002,167.50

111-53441-171 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.00621.67

111-53451-141 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.00230.56

111-53451-142 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.00358.48

111-53451-171 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.00287.79

111-53471-171 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 0.001,522.78

111-53511-111 ELECTRICITY 0.00378.18

111-53511-141 ELECTRICITY 0.00555.05

111-53511-142 ELECTRICITY 0.00471.17

111-53511-151 ELECTRICITY 0.001,630.21

111-53511-171 ELECTRICITY 0.002,272.69

111-53511-172 ELECTRICITY 0.0066.33

111-53551-171 STREET LIGHTS 0.00100.40

111-53571-141 CELLULAR PHONE 0.0025.02

111-53631-142 RENT-MACHINES 0.0046.07

111-53711-113 SCHOOL & CONFERENCE 0.0030.00

111-53711-114 SCHOOL & CONFERENCE 0.0030.00

111-53711-121 SCHOOL & CONFERENCE 0.0020.00

111-53711-141 SCHOOL & CONFERENCE 0.00389.75

111-53711-142 SCHOOL & CONFERENCE 0.001,149.00

111-53711-143 SCHOOL & CONFERENCE 0.0085.00

111-53711-171 SCHOOL & CONFERENCE 0.00119.99

111-53811-112 BONDING 0.0040.00

111-53811-113 BONDING 0.00100.00

111-53913-112 RECRUITMENT 0.00639.47

111-54391-171 PATHWAY 0.0033,975.99

111-54411-116 EQUIPMENT 0.0011,794.89

212-52111-212 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.001,026.16

212-52171-212 STREET REPAIR SUPPLIES 0.0013,298.08

212-52511-212 GASOLINE 0.00647.63

212-52521-212 OTHER FUEL 0.001,581.62

212-52531-212 OIL & ANTIFREEZE 0.001,474.34

212-53111-212 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.0065.00

212-53441-212 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.002,295.05

212-53451-212 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.00262.79

212-53511-212 ELECTRICITY 0.00605.78

212-53531-212 ELECTRIC POWER 0.001,785.26

212-53551-212 STREET LIGHTS 0.0028,020.83

212-53561-212 TELEPHONE 0.0016.23

212-54322-212 STREET PROJECTS 0.00720.00

213-52111-213 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.0035.00

213-52999-213 MISCELLANEOUS 0.0010.00

213-53211-213 LEGAL FEES 0.0020.00

213-53441-213 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.00618.17

213-53451-213 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.0027.50

213-53511-213 ELECTRICITY 0.00247.24

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 34 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 22 of 23

Account Summary

 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name Expense Amount

216-53551-000 STREET LIGHTS 0.0085.42

224-52211-114 PUBLICATIONS 0.0012.21

224-53111-113 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.0016,751.12

224-53111-114 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.001,525.25

621-52111-621 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.001,375.78

621-52411-621 POSTAGE 219.81219.81

621-52511-621 GASOLINE 0.004,848.79

621-53111-621 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00825.00

621-53193-621 DISPOSAL FEES 0.0040,622.42

621-53441-621 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.00343.01

621-53451-621 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.004,169.95

621-53511-621 ELECTRICITY 0.00526.66

621-54411-621 EQUIPMENT 0.0027,859.00

631-52111-631 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00493.50

631-52181-631 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING 0.00320.00

631-52411-631 POSTAGE 219.80219.80

631-52511-631 GASOLINE 0.00382.40

631-52521-631 OTHER FUEL 0.00254.92

631-53111-631 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00434.90

631-53441-631 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.001,846.17

631-53451-631 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.00844.61

631-53511-631 ELECTRICITY 0.0030.13

631-53531-631 ELECTRIC POWER 0.00719.92

631-53571-631 CELLULAR PHONE 0.0047.60

641-21311 SALES TAX PAYABLE 29,319.7229,319.72

641-52111-641 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.007,691.66

641-52116-641 METERS 0.009,684.25

641-52117-641 SAMPLES 0.0054.00

641-52411-641 POSTAGE 219.80298.30

641-52511-641 GASOLINE 0.00773.13

641-52521-641 OTHER FUEL 0.00263.15

641-52611-641 CHEMICALS 0.003,032.25

641-53111-641 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00237.14

641-53441-641 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.001,500.00

641-53451-641 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.0019.11

641-53511-641 ELECTRICITY 0.0030.12

641-53531-641 ELECTRIC POWER 0.00304.33

641-53571-641 CELLULAR PHONE 0.0083.54

641-54411-641 EQUIPMENT 0.0026,763.00

661-21311 SALES TAX PAYABLE 200.10200.10

661-52111-661 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.009.98

661-53111-661 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00775.00

713-21512 MEDICARE W/H EE PAYAB… 3,821.283,821.28

713-21513 FICA W/H EE PAYABLE 14,255.8114,255.81

713-21514 FED W/H EE PAYABLE 27,692.3127,692.31

713-21515 STATE W/H EE PAYABLE 19,001.8819,001.88

713-21517 POL UNION DUES EE PAY 576.00576.00

713-21518 FIRE UNION DUES EE PAY 195.00195.00

713-21523 LIFE INS EE PAYABLE 22.7522.75

713-21524 SMEC EE PAYABLE 271.00271.00

713-21528 REGULAR RETIRE EE PAY 7,652.897,652.89

713-21529 DEFERRED COMP EE PAY 1,325.141,325.14

713-21531 RETIRE FIRE EE PAYABLE 2,545.012,545.01

713-21533 RETIRE POLICE EE PAY 4,703.984,703.98

713-21534 DIS INC INS EE PAYABLE 25.9525.95

713-21539 CHILD SUPPORT EE PAY 1,863.431,863.43

713-21541 HSA EE PAYABLE 12,279.7612,279.76

713-21712 MEDICARE W/H ER PAYAB… 3,821.283,821.28

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 35 / 138



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 12/8/2015 - 12/28/2015

12/18/2015 12:10:21 PM Page 23 of 23

Account Summary

 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name Expense Amount

713-21713 FICA W/H ER PAYABLE 14,255.8114,255.81

713-21731 RETIRE-FIRE ER PAYABLE 4,296.044,296.04

713-21733 RETIRE-POLICE ER PAY 4,536.494,536.49

713-21741 HSA ER PAYABLE 1,262.501,262.50

721-53441-721 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.006,400.00

812-53862-112 CLAIMS EXPENSE 40,352.7440,352.74

812-53863-112 FLEXIBLE BENFT EXPENSES 637.00637.00

Grand Total: 195,657.42512,749.82

Project Account Summary

 Payment AmountProject Account Key Expense Amount

**None** 195,657.42471,812.58

2117753111 0.002,028.00

2117753471 0.00436.10

2117753511 0.00581.11

6002052111 0.009.98

6002053111 0.00325.00

6002553111 0.00450.00

7000354391 0.0033,975.99

70010-52134 0.003,131.06

Grand Total: 195,657.42512,749.82

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 36 / 138



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 37 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Claims2

Council to approve the request for payment of claim by warrant 
for Paving District #311, Five Oaks, and approve the Resolution.

Staff Contact: Liz Hilyard, Finance Director

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 38 / 138



Rev 3/1/99CClerk 

A g e n d a   S t a t e m e n t 

 
Item No.  

 
For meeting of: December 21, 2015 

 

 
AGENDA TITLE:  Request for payment of claims by warrant for Paving District #311, Five Oaks 
Street Improvements 

 
 
SUBMITTED BY DEPARTMENT/ORGANIZATION:  Finance 
 
PRESENTATION BY:  Rick Kuckkahn 
 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION:  This is a request for reimbursement of expenses related to a 
change order for construction services by Infinity Construction, Inc. in the amount of $18,070.00 
for PD #311. 
 
 
 
 
BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Recommend that council authorize the City Clerk to issue a 
warrant for payment of the claims. 
 

 
 

  
EXHIBITS  

Resolution  Ordinance  Contract  Minutes   Plan/Map  
 
Other (specify)  invoices  

 
NOTIFICATION LIST:  Yes    No    Further Instructions    

 
APPROVAL FOR SUBMITTAL:       

                                 City Manager 

  
 
 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 39 / 138



RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 

 

  

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF, 

NEBRASKA: 

 
That the claim of Infinity Construction, Inc. in the amount of $18,070, a change order for 

Paving District #311, is approved and the City Clerk is authorized to issue a warrant for the 
payment of such claim. 

 
 
 
 
 Passed and approved this 21st day of December, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
             Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
               City Clerk 
 
 
 
“seal” 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 40 / 138



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 41 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Public Inp1

Council to receive an update from the Splash Foundation.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 42 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Reports1

Council to consider approving the renewal of a two year agreement 
with Johnsen Corrosion Engineering for continuing our existing 
Water Tower Corrosion Control Service Program and authorize 
the Mayor to execute the agreement.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 43 / 138



Rev 3/1/99CClerk 

A g e n d a   S t a t e m e n t 
 

Item No.  
 

For meeting of:  December 21, 2015 
 

 
AGENDA TITLE:  Council to consider approving the renewal of a two year Agreement with 
Johnsen Corrosion Engineering for continuing our existing Water Tower Corrosion Control 
Service Program. 

 

SUBMITTED BY DEPARTMENT/ORGANIZATION:  Public Works Department 
 

PRESENTATION BY:    Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager 
 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION:  The Agreement covers our water tower cathodic protection for 
corrosion control and also washout/drain inspections.  The terms of the Agreement remain the 
same and have been reviewed by Legal.   A breakdown of the cathodic protection costs by tower 
is as follows: 
 

Tower Location  Cathodic Protection & System Service Cost 
Hydropillar      $1,874.00 
Cemetery            1,874.00 
High School            1,874.00 
Airport        1,874.00 
Coke Plant       1,874.00 
      $9,370.00 

 

BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the renewal of this Agreement and authorize the Mayor to 
sign it. 

  
EXHIBITS  

Resolution  Ordinance  Contract  Minutes   Plan/Map  
 
Other (specify)   Copy of Agreement 

 

NOTIFICATION LIST:  Yes    No    Further Instructions    
 

 

APPROVAL FOR SUBMITTAL:       
                                 City Manager 

  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 44 / 138



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 45 / 138



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 46 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Reports2

Council to consider approval of the request from Allo 
Communications to consent to the acquisition by Nelnet of a 
controlling interest in Allo and approve the Resolution. 

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 47 / 138



 

              
610 Broadway         P.O. Box 1123         Imperial, Nebraska  69033         308-882-7800         866-481-ALLO (2556)         308-882-7850 

December 3, 2015 

 

City of Scottsbluff 
2525 Circle Drive 
Scottsbluff, NE  69341 
Attn: City Clerk 
 

Re: Allo Twin Cities LLC Change of Control 
 

Dear Sir or Madam: 
 
Allo Communications LLC (“Allo”) is the parent company of Allo Twin Cities LLC (“Allo Twin Cities”).  Allo 
Twin Cities is the holder of a cable television franchise from the City pursuant to the Franchise Agreement dated 
January 19, 2010.  
 
As you may have seen in press reports, Allo’s owners have entered into an agreement to sell 92.5% of their 
existing equity interests in Allo (the “Transaction”) to Nelnet, Inc., a Nebraska corporation (“Nelnet”).  As a result 
of the Transaction, Nelnet will become the direct majority owner of Allo and the indirect majority owner of Allo 
Twin Cities.  Upon conclusion of the Transaction, your local franchisee will remain the same (Allo Twin Cities) 
and will have the same parent company (Allo), but ultimately will be owned by Nelnet and management rather 
than the current group of approximately forty investors and management.  
 
Attached as Attachment 1 is basic information about the parties and the Nelnet transaction.  Attached as 
Attachment 2 are Nelnet’s audited financial statements for calendar year 2014 as reported to the Securities and 
Exchange Commission.  
 
We respectfully request that you provide your consent to the indirect change of ownership of Allo Twin Cities 
and are providing information about the Transaction and Nelnet to help facilitate the consent process.  Attached 
are materials to provide you with the relevant information needed to assess the financial, legal, and technical 
qualifications of Nelnet to be the ultimate parent entity of your franchisee. 
 
All of us at Allo are excited about the opportunity to expand our network and build an even stronger company 
with the financial resources and support of Nelnet. If you have any questions about the enclosed documents and 
information, please give me a call at (308) 633-7802, or send an email to bmoline@allophone.net. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Bradley A. Moline 
President, Allo Twin Cities LLC and Allo Communications LLC 
 
cc:  Rick L. Ediger, Simmons Olsen Law Firm, P.C. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 48 / 138

mailto:bmoline@allophone.net


1 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Application for Consent to the Indirect Transfer of Control 
of Allo Twin Cities LLC to Nelnet, Inc. 

 
 

Franchisee  
 
Allo Twin Cities LLC 
1721 Broadway, Suite 200 
Scottsbluff, NE  69361 
 

Transferee of Control 
 
Nelnet, Inc. 
121 South 13th Street, Suite 201 
Lincoln, NE  68508 
 

Parent Company of Franchisee 
 
Allo Communications LLC 
610 Broadway St. 
Imperial, NE  69033 
 

 

Contact Information for Franchisee and 
Parent with Respect to the Transaction 
 
Bradley A. Moline, President 
Allo Twin Cities LLC 
Allo Communications LLC 
610 Broadway St. 
Imperial, NE  69033 
308.882.7800 (phone) 
308.882.7850 (fax) 
bmoline@allophone.net  
 
 

Transferee Contact Information 
 
William J. Munn 
General Counsel  
Nelnet, Inc. 
3015 S. Parker Rd. Suite 400 
Aurora, CO 80014 
303.696.5405 (phone) 
402.458.2294 (fax) 
bill.munn@nelnet.net 
 

 

Description of the Transaction 

Allo is a Nebraska-based telecommunications company founded in 2003 that offers 
competitive local telephone, long distance, broadband, Internet, and television services to homes 
and businesses across Nebraska.  It currently provides communications services to over 20 cities 
in the state through a combination of its own switching and fiber optic network, leased facilities, 
and some resold services.  It began building a state-of-the-art fiber optic network in 2004, and 
currently provides gigabit fiber Internet service in Scottsbluff, Gering, Bridgeport, North Platte, 
Ogallala, and Alliance.   

Headquartered in Lincoln, Nebraska, Nelnet is one of the leading education planning and 
education finance companies in the United States and provides innovative educational services in 
loan servicing, payment processing, education planning, and asset management for families and 
educational institutions.  Nelnet is traded on the New York Stock Exchange.  Nelnet takes a 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 49 / 138

mailto:bmoline@allophone.net
mailto:bill.munn@nelnet.net


2 
 

comprehensive approach to the education life-cycle, which through the proposed transaction will 
include the advanced communications networks that have become central to learning and 
succeeding.   

Nelnet, Allo, and the current equity owners of Allo entered into a Membership Unit 
Purchase Agreement dated November 16, 2015 (the “Agreement”).  Pursuant to the Agreement, 
Nelnet will acquire 92.5 percent of the equity and membership units of Allo, which will become 
a direct subsidiary of Nelnet.  The remaining 7.5 percent of the equity and membership interests 
of Allo will be owned by Allo management, who will also have the opportunity to earn 
additional equity (up to 20 percent overall) based on the performance of the company.  Because 
only the owners of Allo’s equity will change, Allo will continue to provide high quality 
broadband, telecommunications, and video services to Nebraskans. 

The proposed Transaction will serve the public interest by combining two Nebraska-
based companies that share a commitment to delivering an exceptional customer experience with 
great service and best-in-class technology.  Allo has developed a world-class regional 
competitive network that expands business opportunities, creates jobs, and improves quality of 
life for Nebraskans.  The transaction will provide Allo with additional funding and resources that 
will help support the expansion of Allo’s fiber optic network in Nebraska.  Indeed, the parties 
anticipate expanding Allo’s network in additional areas of its current markets as well as to new 
markets, including Lincoln, the location of Nelnet’s headquarters.  This planned expansion in 
turn will benefit residential, business, and governmental customers throughout the state, who will 
have access to a competitive provider of dependable communications solutions and ultra-fast 
Internet services.  The transaction will also promote competition by creating a stronger company 
that can more effectively compete in the telecommunications marketplace. 

Managerial, Technical and Financial Resources 

There will be no change in the day-to-day management and operations of Allo Twin 
Cities or Allo as a result of the Transaction.  Brad Moline, the founder of Allo, will remain the 
President of Allo and Allo Twin Cities. Jeff Kuenne, Allo’s Executive Vice President, will 
continue to lead Allo’s network engineering and operations. 

Moline and Kuenne currently serve as two members of Allo’s six-member Board of 
Managers (with the other four managers consisting of representatives of Allo’s approximately 
forty investors).  Following the closing of the Transaction, Moline and Kuenne will continue to 
serve as two members of the five-member Board of Managers, with the other three managers 
appointed by Nelnet. Moline and Kuenne will both continue to own equity in Allo following the 
consummation of the Transaction.  All management, technical and other employees of Allo will 
continue to hold their current positions following the Transaction. 

Nelnet’s majority ownership will provide Allo and Allo Twin Cities with additional 
financial resources and financial strength. Nelnet is publicly traded on the New York Stock 
Exchange. As of November 25, 2015, Nelnet’s market capitalization was $1.4 billion. Attached 
as Attachment 2 are Nelnet’s audited financial statements for calendar year 2014 from its annual 
report on Form 10-K as filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission on 
February 26, 2015.   

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 50 / 138



3 
 

Nelnet’s Class A common stock, which provides holders with one vote per share, is 
publicly traded.  Nelnet’s Class B common stock, which provides holders with ten votes per 
share, is not publicly traded.  According to Nelnet’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the 
SEC on April 2, 2015, at the close of business on March 19, 2015, there were 34,735,426 shares 
of Nelnet’s Class A common stock outstanding and 11,486,932 shares of the Company's Class B 
common stock outstanding.  According to the Proxy Statement, Michael S. Dunlap, Nelnet’s 
executive chairman and a resident of Lincoln, Nebraska, owned 6,805,061 shares of Class A 
common stock and 9,381,829 shares of Class B common stock, representing ownership of 35.1% 
of all outstanding Nelnet common stock and 67.3% of the voting power of all classes of common 
stock.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 51 / 138



1 
 

Allo Communications LLC 
Pre-Closing Ownership Structure 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

                    36% 
 

                  36% 

Allo Communications 
LLC 

28% 

HCP Allo Holdings, 
LLC 

Allo Twin Cities LLC 

Other Investors  
Allo Management 

Team 

100% 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 52 / 138



2 
 

Allo Communications LLC 
Post-Closing Ownership Structure 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 *  Allo Management will own 7.5% of the equity of Allo at the time of the closing of the 
Transaction and will be provided the opportunity to earn up to 20% of the equity based on 
achievement of performance goals. 
 

64.9% ownership 
32.7% voting 

35.1% ownership 
67.3% voting 
 

80% to 92.5%* 

Allo Communications 
LLC 

7.5% to 20%* 

Nelnet, Inc. 

Allo Twin Cities LLC 

Michael S. Dunlap Other Investors  

Allo Management 
Team 

100% 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 53 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Page 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  F-2 

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013  F-3 

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012  F-4 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 F-5 

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012  F-6 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012  F-7 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  F-8 

ATTACHMENT 2

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 54 / 138



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Nelnet, Inc.:  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Nelnet, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , and 
the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period 
ended December 31, 2014 . These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Nelnet, Inc. and 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period 
ended December 31, 2014 , in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Nelnet, Inc.'s internal 
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 , based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 26, 2015 expressed an unqualified 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.  

/s/ KPMG LLP 

Lincoln, Nebraska 
February 26, 2015 

F-2 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 55 / 138



 
 

NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

Consolidated Balance Sheets  

December 31, 2014 and 2013  

   2014    2013  

   (Dollars in thousands, except share data)  

Assets:          

Student loans receivable (net of allowance for loan losses of $48,900 and $55,122, respectively)  $ 28,005,195    25,907,589  
Cash and cash equivalents:          

Cash and cash equivalents - not held at a related party  37,781    8,537  
Cash and cash equivalents - held at a related party  92,700    54,730  

Total cash and cash equivalents  130,481    63,267  
Investments  149,123    192,040  
Restricted cash and investments  850,440    735,123  
Restricted cash - due to customers  118,488    167,576  
Accrued interest receivable  351,588    314,553  
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,656 and $3,845, respectively)  50,552    56,072  
Goodwill  126,200    117,118  
Intangible assets, net  42,582    6,132  
Property and equipment, net  45,894    33,829  
Other assets  163,208    115,043  
Fair value of derivative instruments  64,392    62,507  

Total assets  $ 30,098,143    27,770,849  

Liabilities:          
Bonds and notes payable  $ 28,027,350    25,955,289  
Accrued interest payable  25,904    21,725  
Other liabilities  167,881    164,300  
Due to customers  118,488    167,576  
Fair value of derivative instruments  32,842    17,969  

Total liabilities  28,372,465    26,326,859  
Commitments and contingencies          

Equity:          

  Nelnet, Inc. shareholders' equity:          
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value. Authorized 50,000,000 shares; no shares issued or outstanding  —   — 
Common stock:          

Class A, $0.01 par value. Authorized 600,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding 34,756,384 shares and 
34,881,338 shares, respectively  348    349  

Class B, convertible, $0.01 par value. Authorized 60,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding 11,486,932 shares 
and 11,495,377 shares, respectively  115    115  

Additional paid-in capital  17,290    24,887  
Retained earnings  1,702,560    1,413,492  
Accumulated other comprehensive earnings  5,135    4,819  

Total Nelnet, Inc. shareholders' equity  1,725,448    1,443,662  
Noncontrolling interest  230    328  

Total equity  1,725,678    1,443,990  
        

Total liabilities and equity  $ 30,098,143    27,770,849  

        
Supplemental information - assets and liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities:          

Student loans receivable  $ 28,181,244    26,020,629  
Restricted cash and investments  846,199    732,771  
Fair value of derivative instrument, net  (20,455 )    36,834  
Other assets  351,934    313,748  
Bonds and notes payable  (28,391,530 )    (26,244,222 )  

Other liabilities  (280,233 )    (303,142 )  

Net assets of consolidated variable interest entities  $ 687,159    556,618  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 56 / 138



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  
 

F-3  

        

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 57 / 138



 
 

   
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  
 

F-4  

NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

Consolidated Statements of Income  

Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012  

                

   2014    2013    2012  

   (Dollars in thousands, except share data)  

Interest income:               

Loan interest  $ 703,007    638,142    609,237  
Investment interest  6,793    6,668    4,616  

Total interest income  709,800    644,810    613,853  
Interest expense:               

Interest on bonds and notes payable  273,237    230,935    268,566  
Net interest income  436,563    413,875    345,287  

Less provision for loan losses  9,500    18,500    21,500  
Net interest income after provision for loan losses  427,063    395,375    323,787  

Other income (expense):               
Loan and guaranty servicing revenue  240,414    243,428    209,748  
Tuition payment processing, school information, and campus commerce revenue  98,156    80,682    74,410  
Enrollment services revenue  82,883    98,078    117,925  
Other income  54,002    46,298    39,476  
Gain on sale of loans and debt repurchases, net  3,651    11,699    4,139  
Derivative market value and foreign currency adjustments and derivative settlements, net  15,860    18,957    (61,416 )  

Total other income  494,966    499,142    384,282  
Operating expenses:               

Salaries and benefits  228,079    196,169    192,826  
Cost to provide enrollment services  53,307    64,961    78,375  
Depreciation and amortization  21,134    18,311    33,625  
Other  149,990    149,542    128,738  

Total operating expenses  452,510    428,983    433,564  
Income before income taxes  469,519    465,534    274,505  

Income tax expense  160,238    161,193    96,077  
Net income  309,281    304,341    178,428  

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest  1,671    1,669    431  
Net income attributable to Nelnet, Inc.  $ 307,610    302,672    177,997  

Earnings per common share:               

Net income attributable to Nelnet, Inc. shareholders - basic and diluted  $ 6.62    6.50    3.76  

Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic and diluted  46,469,615    46,570,314    47,369,331  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 58 / 138



 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  
 

F-5  

NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income  

Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012  

   2014    2013    2012  

   (Dollars in thousands)  

Net income  $ 309,281    304,341    178,428  
Other comprehensive income:               

Available-for-sale securities:               

Unrealized holding gains arising during period, net  9,006    9,134    10,230  
Less reclassification adjustment for gains recognized in net income, net of losses  (8,506 )    (5,938 )    (5,798 )  

Income tax effect  (184 )    (1,190 )    (1,619 )  

Total other comprehensive income  316    2,006    2,813  
Comprehensive income  309,597    306,347    181,241  
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest  1,671    1,669    431  

Comprehensive income attributable to Nelnet, Inc.  $ 307,926    304,678    180,810  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 59 / 138



 
 

   
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  

 
F-6  

NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity  

Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012  

   Nelnet, Inc. Shareholders            

   
Preferred 

stock shares  

  Common stock shares    
Preferred 

stock  

  
Class A 
common 

stock  

  
Class B 
common 

stock  

  
Additional 

paid-in capital  

  
Retained 
earnings  

  
Accumulated other 

comprehensive 
earnings  

  
Employee notes 

receivable  

  
Noncontrolling 

interest  

  

Total equity       Class A    Class B                    

   (Dollars in thousands, except share data)  

Balance as of December 31, 2011  —   35,643,102    11,495,377    $  —   356    115    49,245    1,017,629    —   (1,140 )    —   1,066,205  
Issuance of noncontrolling interest  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   5    5  
Net income  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   177,997    —   —   431    178,428  
Other comprehensive income  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   2,813    —   —   2,813  
Distribution to noncontrolling interest  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (431 )    (431 )  

Cash dividends on Class A and Class B 
common stock - $1.40 per share  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (66,237 )    —   —   —   (66,237 )  

Issuance of common stock, net of 
forfeitures  —   279,834    —   —   3    —   3,913    —   —   —   —   3,916  

Compensation expense for stock based 
awards  —   —   —   —   —   —   2,188    —   —   —   —   2,188  

Repurchase of common stock  —   (806,023 )    —   —   (8 )    —   (22,806 )    —   —   —   —   (22,814 )  

Reduction of employee stock notes 
receivable  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   1,140    —   1,140  

Balance as of December 31, 2012  —   35,116,913    11,495,377    —   351    115    32,540    1,129,389    2,813    —   5    1,165,213  
Issuance of noncontrolling interest  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   5    5  
Net income  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   302,672    —   —   1,669    304,341  
Other comprehensive income  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   2,006    —   —   2,006  
Distribution to noncontrolling interest  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (1,351 )    (1,351 )  

Cash dividends on Class A and Class B 
common stock - $0.40 per share  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (18,569 )    —   —   —   (18,569 )  

Issuance of common stock, net of 
forfeitures  —   157,684    —   —   2    —   2,377    —   —   —   —   2,379  

Compensation expense for stock based 
awards  —   —   —   —   —   —   3,102    —   —   —   —   3,102  

Repurchase of common stock  —   (393,259 )    —   —   (4 )    —   (13,132 )    —   —   —   —   (13,136 )  

Balance as of December 31, 2013  —   34,881,338    11,495,377    —   349    115    24,887    1,413,492    4,819    —   328    1,443,990  
Issuance of noncontrolling interest  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   201    201  
Net income  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   307,610    —   —   1,671    309,281  
Other comprehensive income  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   316    —   —   316  
Distribution to noncontrolling interest  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (1,970 )    (1,970 )  

Cash dividends on Class A and Class B 
common stock - $0.40 per share  —   —   —   —   —   —   —   (18,542 )    —   —   —   (18,542 )  

Issuance of common stock, net of 
forfeitures  —   248,290    —   —   3    —   3,551    —   —   —   —   3,554  

Compensation expense for stock based 
awards  —   —   —   —   —   —   4,561    —   —   —   —   4,561  

Repurchase of common stock  —   (381,689 )    —   —   (4 )    —   (15,709 )    —   —   —   —   (15,713 )  

Conversion of common stock  —   8,445    (8,445 )    —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Balance as of December 31, 2014  —   34,756,384    11,486,932    $  —   348    115    17,290    1,702,560    5,135    —   230    1,725,678  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 60 / 138



 
 

NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  

Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012  

     2014    2013    2012  

     (Dollars in thousands)  

Net income attributable to Nelnet, Inc.    $ 307,610    302,672    177,997  
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest    1,671    1,669    431  

Net income    309,281    304,341    178,428  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities, net of acquisitions:                 

Depreciation and amortization, including debt discounts and student loan premiums and deferred origination costs    107,969    79,484    116,781  
Student loan discount accretion    (43,479 )    (36,258 )    (44,380 )  

Provision for loan losses    9,500    18,500    21,500  
Derivative market value adjustment    20,310    (83,878 )    27,833  
Foreign currency transaction adjustment    (58,013 )    35,285    19,561  
Payment for interest rate swap option    (9,087 )    —   — 
Proceeds (payments) to terminate/amend derivative instruments, net    1,765    65,890    (6,005 )  

Loss (gain) on sale of loans, net    2,964    (33 )    (116 )  

Gain from debt repurchases    (6,615 )    (11,666 )    (4,023 )  

Gain from sales of available-for-sale securities, net    (8,506 )    (5,938 )    (5,798 )  

Proceeds from sales of trading securities, net    3,128    —   — 
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)    19,659    2,539    (23,829 )  

Non-cash compensation expense    4,699    3,329    3,020  
Other    7,127    112    1,945  
Decrease in accrued interest receivable    5,205    8,341    883  
Decrease in accounts receivable    6,690    7,566    16  
Decrease (increase) in other assets    2,372    (4,783 )    2,322  
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable    3,009    (433 )    (4,864 )  

(Decrease) increase in other liabilities    (20,529 )    4,782    16,044  
Net cash provided by operating activities    357,449    387,180    299,318  

Cash flows from investing activities, net of acquisitions:                 

Purchases of student loans and student loan residual interests    (3,753,936 )    (2,392,676 )    (3,777,011 )  

Net proceeds from student loan repayments, claims, capitalized interest, participations, and other    3,700,005    2,852,177    3,112,744  
Proceeds from sale of student loans    50,190    43,292    107,093  
Purchases of available-for-sale securities    (192,998 )    (219,894 )    (190,250 )  

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities    241,793    103,250    165,854  
Purchases of other investments    (45,925 )    (20,302 )    — 
Repayments of receivables and other assets    15,819    —   — 
Purchases of property and equipment, net    (26,488 )    (17,010 )    (9,944 )  

(Increase) decrease in restricted cash and investments, net    (51,135 )    147,743    (201,140 )  

Business and asset acquisitions, net of cash acquired    (46,833 )    —   — 
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities    (109,508 )    496,580    (792,654 )  

Cash flows from financing activities, net of borrowings assumed:                 

Payments on bonds and notes payable    (3,632,741 )    (5,153,057 )    (4,444,099 )  

Proceeds from issuance of bonds and notes payable    3,502,316    4,312,720    5,066,950  
Payments of debt issuance costs    (14,934 )    (13,697 )    (18,197 )  

Dividends paid    (18,542 )    (18,569 )    (66,237 )  

Repurchases of common stock    (15,713 )    (13,136 )    (22,814 )  

Proceeds from issuance of common stock    656    561    480  
Payments received on employee stock notes receivable    —   —   1,140  
Issuance of noncontrolling interest    201    5    5  

  Distribution to noncontrolling interest    (1,970 )    (1,351 )    (431 )  

  Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities    (180,727 )    (886,524 )    516,797  
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    67,214    (2,764 )    23,461  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year    63,267    66,031    42,570  
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year    $ 130,481    63,267    66,031  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 61 / 138



 
Supplemental disclosures of noncash operating and investing activities regarding the Company's business acquisition is contained in note 7.  
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.  
 

F-7  

              

Cash disbursements made for:                 

Interest    $ 210,700    190,998    234,606  

Income taxes, net of refunds    $ 155,828    154,840    114,758  

Noncash activity:                 

Investing activity - student loans and other assets acquired    $ 2,571,997    1,715,260    — 

Investing activity - sale of education lending subsidiary, including student loans and other assets    $ 246,376    —   — 

Investing activity - note receivable obtained in connection with sale of education lending subsidiary    $ 20,737    —   — 

Financing activity - borrowings and other liabilities transferred in sale of education lending subsidiary    $ 225,139    —   — 

Financing activity - borrowings and other liabilities assumed in acquisition of student loans    $ 2,444,874    1,676,761    — 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 62 / 138



 
NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  
(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  

 
 

 
Nelnet, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Nelnet” or the “Company”) provides educational services in loan servicing, payment processing, education planning, 
and asset management. These products and services help students and families plan, prepare, and pay for their education and make the administrative 
and financial processes more efficient for schools and financial organizations. In addition, the Company earns interest income on a portfolio of federally 
insured student loans. Substantially all revenue from external customers is earned, and all long lived assets are located, in the United States.  
 
The Company was formed as a Nebraska corporation in 1978 to service federal student loans for two local banks. The Company built on this initial 
foundation as a servicer to become a leading originator, holder, and servicer of federal student loans, principally consisting of loans originated under the 
Federal Family Education Loan Program (“FFELP” or “FFEL Program”) of the U.S. Department of Education (the “Department”).  
 
Effective July 1, 2010, the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (the "Reconciliation Act of 2010”) prohibits new loan originations 
under the FFEL Program and requires that all new federal student loan originations be made through the Federal Direct Loan Program. This law does 
not alter or affect the terms and conditions of existing FFELP loans. As a result of this law, the Company no longer originates new FFELP loans. 
However, the Company believes there will be continued opportunities to purchase FFELP loan portfolios from current FFELP loan holders looking to 
adjust their FFELP businesses. In addition, to reduce its reliance on interest income on student loans, the Company has significantly diversified and 
increased its education-related products and services.  
 
The Company has three reportable operating segments. The Company's reportable operating segments include:  
 

• Student Loan and Guaranty Servicing  
• Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce  
• Asset Generation and Management  

 
A description of each reportable operating segment is included below. In 2014, management determined that the Company's Enrollment Services 
business no longer met the quantitative thresholds for which separate information about an operating segment is required. Prior period segment 
operating results were restated to conform to the current period presentation. See note 14 for additional information on the Company's segment 
reporting.  
 
Student Loan and Guaranty Servicing  
 
The following are the primary products and services the Company offers as part of its Student Loan and Guaranty Servicing operating segment:  
   

 
The Student Loan and Guaranty Servicing operating segment provides for the servicing of the Company's student loan portfolio and the portfolios of 
third parties. The loan servicing activities include loan conversion activities, application processing, borrower updates, customer service, payment 
processing, due diligence procedures, funds management reconciliations, and claim processing. These activities are performed internally for the 
Company's portfolio in addition to generating external fee revenue when performed for third-party clients.  
 
The Company is one of four private sector companies awarded a student loan servicing contract by the Department to provide additional servicing 
capacity for loans owned by the Department.  
 
 

F-8  

1.  Description of Business 

•  Servicing federally-owned student loans for the Department 
•  Servicing FFELP loans 
•  Marketing, originating, and servicing private education loans 
•  Servicing and outsourcing services for FFELP guaranty agencies, including FFELP guaranty collection services 
•  Providing student loan servicing software and other information technology products and services 
•  Providing outsourced services including call center, processing, and marketing services 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 63 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
This operating segment also provides servicing activities for guaranty agencies, which serve as intermediaries between the Department and FFELP 
lenders, and are responsible for paying the claims made on defaulted loans. The services provided by the Company include providing software and data 
center services, borrower and loan updates, default aversion tracking services, claim processing services, and post-default collection services.  
 
This operating segment also provides student loan servicing software, which is used internally by the Company and licensed to third-party student loan 
holders and servicers. These software systems have been adapted so that they can be offered as hosted servicing software solutions usable by third 
parties to service various types of student loans, including Federal Direct Loan Program and FFEL Program loans.  
 
In addition, this segment provides business process outsourcing specializing in contact center management. The contact center solutions and services 
include taking inbound calls, helping with outreach campaigns and sales, and interacting with customers through multi-channels.  
 
Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce  
 
The Company's Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce operating segment provides products and services to help students and families 
manage the payment of education costs. In addition, this operating segment provides school information system software for private and faith-based 
schools that help schools automate administrative processes such as admissions, scheduling, student billing, attendance, and grade book management. 
This segment also provides innovative education-focused technologies, services, and support solutions to help schools with the everyday challenges of 
collecting and processing commerce data.  
 
In the K-12 market, the Company offers actively managed tuition payment plans and billing services, school information system software, and 
assistance with financial needs assessment and donor management. In the higher education market, the Company primarily offers actively managed 
tuition payment plans and campus commerce technologies and payment processing.  
 
Asset Generation and Management  
 
The Company's Asset Generation and Management operating segment includes the acquisition, management, and ownership of the Company's student 
loan assets, which has historically been the Company's largest product and service offering. Nearly all student loan assets included in this segment are 
loans originated under the FFEL Program, including the Stafford Loan Program, the PLUS Loan program, and loans that reflect the consolidation into a 
single loan of certain previously separate borrower obligations (“Consolidation”). The Company generates a substantial portion of its earnings from the 
spread, referred to as the Company's student loan spread, between the yield it receives on its student loan portfolio and the associated costs to finance 
such portfolio. The student loan assets are held in a series of education lending subsidiaries and associated securitization trusts designed specifically for 
this purpose. In addition to the student loan spread earned on its portfolio, all costs and activity associated with managing the portfolio, such as servicing 
of the assets and debt maintenance, are included in this segment.  
 
Corporate and Other Activities  
 
Other business activities and operating segments that are not reportable are combined and included in Corporate and Other Activities. Corporate and 
Other Activities include the following items:  
 

 
Corporate and Other Activities also include certain corporate activities and overhead functions related to executive management, human resources, 
accounting, legal, occupancy, and marketing. These costs are allocated to each operating segment based on estimated use of such activities and services.  
 

 
 

F-9  

•  The operating results of Whitetail Rock Capital Management, LLC ("WRCM"), the Company's SEC-registered investment advisory subsidiary 
•  The operating results of the Enrollment Services business 
•  Income earned on certain investment activities 
•  Interest expense incurred on unsecured debt transactions 
•  Other product and service offerings that are not considered reportable operating segments 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 64 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 

 
Consolidation  

 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Nelnet, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, including its education lending subsidiaries 
for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  
 
The Company's education lending subsidiaries (or Variable Interest Entities ("VIEs")) are engaged in the securitization of education finance assets. 
These education lending subsidiaries hold beneficial interests in eligible loans, subject to creditors with specific interests. The liabilities of the 
Company's education lending subsidiaries are not the direct obligations of Nelnet, Inc. or any of its other subsidiaries. Each education lending subsidiary 
is structured to be bankruptcy remote, meaning that it should not be consolidated in the event of bankruptcy of the parent company or any other 
subsidiary. The Company has determined it is the primary beneficiary of its education lending subsidiaries (VIEs). The primary beneficiary is the entity 
which has both: (1) the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's economic performance, and (2) the obligation to 
absorb losses or receive benefits of the entity that could potentially be significant to the VIE. The Company is generally the administrator and master 
servicer of the securitized assets held in its education lending subsidiaries and owns the residual interest of the securitization trusts. As a result, for 
accounting purposes, the transfers of student loans to the eligible lender trusts do not qualify as sales. Accordingly, all the financial activities and related 
assets and liabilities, including debt, of the securitizations are reflected in the Company's consolidated financial statements and are summarized as 
supplemental information on the balance sheet.  
   
Noncontrolling Interest  
 
Noncontrolling interest reflects the proportionate share of membership interest (equity) and net income attributable to the holders of minority 
membership interests in WRCM.  

Use of Estimates  
 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires 
management to make a number of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses, and other disclosures. Actual results may differ from those estimates.  
 
Student Loans Receivable  

 
Student loans consist of federally insured student loans and private education loans. If the Company has the ability and intent to hold loans for the 
foreseeable future, such loans are held for investment and carried at amortized cost. Amortized cost includes the unamortized premium or discount and 
capitalized origination costs and fees, all of which are amortized to interest income. Loans which are held-for-investment also have an allowance for 
loan loss as needed. Any loans the Company has the ability and intent to sell are classified as held for sale and are carried at the lower of cost or fair 
value. Loans which are held for sale do not have the associated premium or discount and origination costs and fees amortized into interest income and 
there is also no related allowance for loan losses. There were no loans classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2014 and 2013.  
 
Federally insured loans were originated under the FFEL Program by certain eligible lenders as defined by the Higher Education Act of 1965, as 
amended (the “Higher Education Act”). These loans, including related accrued interest, are guaranteed at their maximum level permitted under the 
Higher Education Act by an authorized guaranty agency, which has a contract of reinsurance with the Department. The terms of the loans, which vary 
on an individual basis, generally provide for repayment in monthly installments of principal and interest. Generally, Stafford and PLUS loans have 
repayment periods between five and ten years. Consolidation loans have repayment periods of twelve to thirty years. FFELP loans do not require 
repayment while the borrower is in-school, and during the grace period immediately upon leaving school. The borrower may also be granted a deferment 
or forbearance for a period of time based on need, during which time the borrower is not considered to be in repayment. Interest continues to accrue on 
loans in the in-school, deferment, and forbearance period. Interest rates on loans may be fixed or variable, dependent upon the type of loan, terms of the 
loan agreements, and date of origination.  
 
 

F-10  

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 65 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
Substantially all FFELP loan principal and related accrued interest is guaranteed as provided by the Higher Education Act. These guarantees are subject 
to the performance of certain loan servicing due diligence procedures stipulated by applicable Department regulations. If these due diligence 
requirements are not met, affected student loans may not be covered by the guarantees in the event of borrower default. Such student loans are subject to 
“cure” procedures and reinstatement of the guarantee under certain circumstances.  
 
Student loans receivable also includes private education loans. Private education loans are loans to students or their families that are non-federal loans 
and loans not insured or guaranteed under the FFELP. These loans are used primarily to bridge the gap between the cost of higher education and the 
amount funded through financial aid, federal loans, or borrowers' resources. The terms of the private education loans, which vary on an individual basis, 
generally provide for repayment in monthly installments of principal and interest over a period of up to 30 years. The private education loans are not 
covered by a guarantee or collateral in the event of borrower default.  
 
Allowance for Loan Losses  

 
The allowance for loan losses represents management's estimate of probable losses on student loans. The provision for loan losses reflects the activity 
for the applicable period and provides an allowance at a level that the Company's management believes is appropriate to cover probable losses inherent 
in the loan portfolio. The Company evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on its federally insured loan portfolio separately from its 
private education loan portfolio. These evaluation processes are subject to numerous judgments and uncertainties.  
 
The allowance for the federally insured loan portfolio is based on periodic evaluations of the Company's loan portfolios considering loans in repayment 
versus those in a nonpaying status, delinquency status, trends in defaults in the portfolio based on Company and industry data, past experience, trends in 
student loan claims rejected for payment by guarantors, changes to federal student loan programs, current economic conditions, and other relevant 
factors. The federal government guarantees 97 percent of the principal of and the interest on federally insured student loans disbursed on and after July 
1, 2006 (and 98 percent for those loans disbursed on and after October 1, 1993 and prior to July 1, 2006), which limits the Company's loss exposure on 
the outstanding balance of the Company's federally insured portfolio. Student loans disbursed prior to October 1, 1993 are fully insured.  
 
In determining the appropriate allowance for loan losses on the private education loans, the Company considers several factors, including: loans in 
repayment versus those in a nonpaying status, delinquency status, type of program, trends in defaults in the portfolio based on Company and industry 
data, past experience, current economic conditions, and other relevant factors. The Company places a private education loan on nonaccrual status when 
the collection of principal and interest is 30 days past due, and charges off the loan when the collection of principal and interest is 120 days past due. 
Collections, if any, are reflected as a recovery through the allowance for loan losses.  
 
Management has determined that each of the federally insured loan portfolio and the private education loan portfolio meets the definition of a portfolio 
segment, which is defined as the level at which an entity develops and documents a systematic method for determining its allowance for credit 
losses.  Accordingly, the portfolio segment disclosures are presented on this basis in note 3 for each of these portfolios.  The Company does not 
disaggregate its portfolio segment student loan portfolios into classes of financing receivables. In addition, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the 
Company did not have any impaired loans as defined in the Receivables Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting 
Standards Codification.  
 
For loans purchased where there is evidence of credit deterioration since the origination of the loan, the Company records a credit discount, separate 
from the allowance for loan losses, which is non-accretable to interest income. Remaining discounts and premiums for purchased loans are recognized in 
interest income over the remaining estimated lives of the loans. The Company continues to evaluate credit losses associated with purchased loans based 
on current information and changes in expectations to determine the need for any additional allowance for loan losses.  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Statement of Cash Flows  

 
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers all investments with maturities when purchased of three months or 
less to be cash equivalents.  
 
Accrued interest on loans purchased and sold is included in cash flows from operating activities in the respective period. Net purchased accrued interest 
was $55.0 million , $29.0 million , and $68.0 million in 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , respectively.  
 

F-11  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 66 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
 
Investments  
 
The Company's available-for-sale investment portfolio consists of student loan asset-backed securities and equity and debt securities. These securities 
are carried at fair value, with the temporary changes in fair value, net of taxes, carried as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. The amortized 
cost of debt securities in this category (including the student loan asset-backed securities) is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of 
discounts, which are amortized using the effective interest rate method. Other-than-temporary impairment is evaluated by considering several factors, 
including the length of time and extent to which the fair value has been less than the amortized cost basis, the financial condition and near-term 
prospects of the issuer of the security (considering factors such as adverse conditions specific to the security and ratings agency actions), and the intent 
and ability of the Company to retain the investment to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. The entire fair value loss on a security that has 
experienced an other-than-temporary impairment is recorded in earnings if the Company intends to sell the security or if it is more likely than not that 
the Company will be required to sell the security before the expected recovery of the loss. However, if the impairment is other-than-temporary, and 
either of those two conditions does not exist, the portion of the impairment related to credit losses is recorded in earnings and the impairment related to 
other factors is recorded in other comprehensive income.  
 
Securities classified as trading are accounted for at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included in "other income" in the consolidated statements 
of income.  
 
Securities that the Company has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and are accounted for at amortized cost unless 
the security is determined to have an other-than-temporary impairment. In that case, it is accounted for in the same manner as described above for 
available-for-sale investments.  
 
When an investment is sold, the cost basis is determined through specific identification of the security sold.  
 
Restricted Cash and Investments   

 
Restricted cash primarily includes amounts for student loan securitizations and other secured borrowings. This cash must be used to make payments 
related to trust obligations. Amounts on deposit in these accounts are primarily the result of timing differences between when principal and interest is 
collected on the student loans held as trust assets and when principal and interest is paid on the trust's asset-backed debt securities. Restricted cash also 
includes collateral deposits with derivative counterparties.  
 
Cash balances that the Company's indentured trusts deposit in guaranteed investment contracts that are held for the related asset-backed note holders are 
classified as restricted investments. The Company has classified these investments as held-to-maturity and accounts for them at amortized cost, which 
approximates fair value.  
 
Restricted Cash - Due to Customers  

 
As a servicer of student loans, the Company collects student loan remittances and subsequently disburses these remittances to the appropriate lending 
entities. In addition, as part of the Company's Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce operating segment, the Company collects tuition 
payments and subsequently remits these payments to the appropriate schools. Cash collected for customers and the related liability are included in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
 
Accounts Receivable  
 
Accounts receivable are presented at their net realizable values, which include allowances for doubtful accounts. Allowance estimates are based upon 
individual customer experience, as well as the age of receivables and likelihood of collection.  
 
Business Combinations  
 
The Company uses the acquisition method in accounting for acquired businesses. Under the acquisition method, the financial statements reflect the 
operations of an acquired business starting from the completion of the acquisition. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at their 
respective estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the identifiable net assets 
acquired is recorded as goodwill. All contingent consideration is measured at fair value on the acquisition date and included in the consideration 
transferred in the acquisition. Contingent  
 

F-12  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 67 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
consideration classified as a liability is remeasured to fair value at each reporting date until the contingency is resolved, and changes in fair value are 
recognized in earnings.  
 
Goodwill  

 
The Company reviews goodwill for impairment annually (in the fourth quarter) and whenever triggering events or changes in circumstances indicate its 
carrying value may not be recoverable. Goodwill is tested for impairment using a fair value approach at the reporting unit level. A reporting unit is the 
operating segment, or a business one level below that operating segment if discrete financial information is prepared and regularly reviewed by segment 
management. However, components are aggregated as a single reporting unit if they have similar economic characteristics.  
 
The Company tests goodwill for impairment in accordance with applicable accounting guidance. The guidance provides an entity the option to first 
assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not (more than 
50%) that the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If an entity elects to perform a qualitative assessment and 
determines that an impairment is more likely than not, the entity is then required to perform a two-step quantitative impairment test (described below), 
otherwise no further analysis is required. An entity also may elect not to perform the qualitative assessment and, instead, proceed directly to the two-step 
quantitative impairment test.  
 
If the Company elects to not perform a qualitative assessment or if the Company determines it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting 
unit is less than the carrying amount, then the Company performs a two-step impairment test on goodwill. In the first step, the Company compares the 
fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying value. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of the net assets assigned to that 
unit, goodwill is considered not impaired and the Company is not required to perform further testing. If the carrying value of the net assets assigned to 
the reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit, then the Company must perform the second step of the impairment test in order to 
determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill. If the carrying value of a reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then 
the Company would record an impairment loss equal to the difference.  
 
Determining the fair value of a reporting unit involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions include 
revenue growth rates and operating margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rates, future economic and market 
conditions, and determination of appropriate market comparables. Actual future results may differ from those estimates.  

See note 9 for information regarding the Company's annual goodwill impairment review.  

Intangible Assets  
 
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated lives. Such assets are amortized using a method of amortization that reflects the 
pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible asset are consumed or otherwise used up. If that pattern cannot be reliably determined, the 
Company uses a straight-line amortization method.  
 
The Company evaluates the estimated remaining useful lives of purchased intangible assets and whether events or changes in circumstances warrant a 
revision to the remaining periods of amortization.  
 
Property and Equipment  

 
Property and equipment are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, and major 
improvements, including leasehold improvements, are capitalized. Gains and losses from the sale of property and equipment are included in determining 
net income. The Company uses accelerated and straight-line methods for recording depreciation and amortization. Accelerated methods are used for 
certain equipment and software when this method is believed to provide a better matching of income and expenses. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized over the lesser of their useful life or the related estimated lease period.  
 
 

F-13  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 68 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
Impairment of Long----Lived Assets  
 
The Company reviews its long-lived assets, such as property and equipment and purchased intangibles subject to amortization, for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is 
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of 
the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. The Company uses estimates to determine the fair value of long-lived assets. Such estimates are generally 
based on estimated future cash flows or cost savings associated with particular assets and are discounted to present value using an appropriate discount 
rate. The estimates of future cash flows associated with assets are generally prepared using a cost savings method, a lost income method, or an excess 
return method, as appropriate. In utilizing such methods, management must make certain assumptions about the amount and timing of estimated future 
cash flows and other economic benefits from the assets, the remaining economic useful life of the assets, and general economic factors concerning the 
selection of an appropriate discount rate. The Company may also use replacement cost or market comparison approaches to estimating fair value if such 
methods are determined to be more appropriate.  
 
Assumptions and estimates about future values and remaining useful lives of the Company's intangible and other long-lived assets are complex and 
subjective. They can be affected by a variety of factors, including external factors such as industry and economic trends, and internal factors such as 
changes in the Company's business strategy and internal forecasts. Although the Company believes the historical assumptions and estimates used are 
reasonable and appropriate, different assumptions and estimates could materially impact the reported financial results.  
 
Other Assets  

 
Other assets are recorded at cost or amortized cost and consist primarily of debt issuance costs, certain investments, and other miscellaneous assets. Debt 
issuance costs are amortized using the effective interest method.  
 
Fair Value Measurements  
 
The Company uses estimates of fair value in applying various accounting standards for its financial statements.  
 
Fair value is defined as the price to sell an asset or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between willing and able market participants. In general, 
the Company's policy in estimating fair values is to first look at observable market prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets, where 
available. When these are not available, other inputs are used to model fair value, such as prices of similar instruments, yield curves, volatilities, 
prepayment speeds, default rates, and credit spreads, relying first on observable data from active markets. Depending on current market conditions, 
additional adjustments to fair value may be based on factors such as liquidity, credit, and bid/offer spreads. In some cases fair values are based on 
estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount 
rate and estimates of future cash flows. Transaction costs are not included in the determination of fair value. When possible, the Company seeks to 
validate the model's output to market transactions. Depending on the availability of observable inputs and prices, different valuation models could 
produce materially different fair value estimates. The values presented may not represent future fair values and may not be realizable. Additionally, there 
may be inherent weaknesses in any calculation technique, and changes in the underlying assumptions used, including discount rates and estimates of 
future cash flows, could significantly affect the estimates of current or future values.  
 
The Company categorizes its fair value estimates based on a hierarchical framework associated with three levels of price transparency utilized in 
measuring assets and liabilities at fair value. Classification is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value of the instrument. The 
three levels include:  
 

 

 
 

F-14  

•  Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets. The types of financial instruments included in Level 1 are highly liquid 
instruments with quoted prices.  

•  Level 2: Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and 
model-derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose primary value drivers are observable.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 69 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 

 
The Company's accounting policy is to recognize transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period.  
 
Revenue Recognition  
 
Loan interest income - Loan interest is paid by the Department or the borrower, depending on the status of the loan at the time of the accrual. In 
addition, the Department makes quarterly interest subsidy payments on certain qualified FFELP loans until the student is required under the provisions 
of the Higher Education Act to begin repayment. Borrower repayment of FFELP loans normally begins within six months after completion of the 
borrower's course of study, leaving school, or ceasing to carry at least one-half the normal full-time academic load, as determined by the educational 
institution. Borrower repayment of PLUS and Consolidation loans normally begins within 60 days from the date of loan disbursement. Borrower 
repayment of private education loans typically begins six months following the borrower's graduation from a qualified institution, and the interest is 
either paid by the borrower or capitalized annually or at repayment.  
 
The Department provides a special allowance to lenders participating in the FFEL Program. The special allowance is accrued based upon the fiscal 
quarter average rate of 13-week Treasury Bill auctions (for loans originated prior to January 1, 2000) or the fiscal quarter average rate of daily one-
month LIBOR rates (for loans originated on and after January 1, 2000) relative to the yield of the student loan.  
 
The Company recognizes student loan income as earned, net of amortization of loan premiums and deferred origination costs and the accretion of loan 
discounts. Loan income is recognized based upon the expected yield of the loan after giving effect to interest rate reductions resulting from borrower 
utilization of incentives such as timely payments (“borrower benefits”) and other yield adjustments. Loan premiums or discounts, deferred origination 
costs, and borrower benefits are amortized/accreted over the estimated life of the loan, which includes an estimate of prepayment rates. The Company 
periodically evaluates the assumptions used to estimate the life of the loans and prepayment rates.  

The Company also pays the Department an annual 105 basis point rebate fee on Consolidation loans. These rebate fees are netted against loan interest 
income.  

Student loan and guaranty servicing revenue – Student loan and guaranty servicing revenue consists of the following items:  
 

 

 

 
Tuition payment processing, school information, and campus commerce revenue - Tuition payment processing, school information, and campus 
commerce revenue includes actively managed tuition payment solutions, remote hosted school information systems software, and online payment 
processing. Fees for these services are recognized over the period in which services are provided to customers. Cash received in advance of the delivery 
of services is included in deferred revenue.  
 
 

F-15  

•  Level 3: Instruments whose primary value drivers are unobservable . Inputs are developed based on the best information available; however, 
significant judgment is required by management in developing the inputs.  

•  Loan and guaranty servicing fees – Loan servicing fees are determined according to individual agreements with customers and are calculated 
based on the dollar value of loans, number of loans, or number of borrowers serviced for each customer. Guaranty servicing fees are generally 
calculated based on the number of loans serviced, volume of loans serviced, or amounts collected. Revenue is recognized over the period in 
which services are provided to customers, and when ultimate collection is assured.  

•  Guaranty collections revenue – Guaranty collections revenue is earned when collected. Collection costs paid to third parties associated with 
this revenue is expensed upon successful collection.  

•  Software services revenue – Software services revenue is determined from individual agreements with customers and includes license and 
maintenance fees associated with student loan software products.  Computer and software consulting and remote hosting revenues are 
recognized over the period in which services are provided to customers.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 70 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
Enrollment Services Revenue – Enrollment services revenue primarily consists of the following items:  
 

 
For a portion of this revenue, the Company has agreements with providers of online media or traffic (“inquiry generation vendors”) used in the 
generation of inquiries or clicks. The Company receives a fee from its customers and pays a fee to the inquiry generation vendors either on a 
cost per inquiry, cost per click, or cost per number of impressions basis. The Company is the primary obligor in the transaction. As a result, the 
fees paid by the Company’s customers are recognized as revenue and the fees paid to its inquiry generation vendors are included in “cost to 
provide enrollment services” in the Company’s consolidated statements of income.  
 

 
Other income - Other income includes realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments and borrower late fee income, which is earned by the 
education lending subsidiaries and is recognized when payments are collected from the borrower. Other income also includes investment advisory 
income. The Company provides investment advisory services through an SEC-registered investment advisor subsidiary under various arrangements and 
earns annual fees on the outstanding balance of investments and certain performance measures, which are recognized monthly as earned.  
 
Interest Expense  
 
Interest expense is based upon contractual interest rates, adjusted for the amortization of debt issuance costs and the accretion of discounts. The 
amortization of debt issuance costs and accretion of discounts are recognized using the effective interest method.  
 
Transfer of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities  
 
The Company accounts for loan sales and debt repurchases in accordance with applicable accounting guidance. If a transfer of loans qualifies as a sale, 
the Company derecognizes the loan and recognizes a gain or loss as the difference between the carrying basis of the loan sold and the consideration 
received. The Company from time to time repurchases its outstanding debt and records a gain or loss on the early extinguishment of debt based upon the 
difference between the carrying amount of the debt and the amount paid to the third party. The Company recognizes the results of a transfer of loans and 
the extinguishment of debt based upon the settlement date of the transaction.  
 
Derivative Accounting  

 
The Company records derivative instruments on the consolidated balance sheets as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. The Company 
determines the fair value for its derivative instruments using either (i) pricing models that consider current market conditions and the contractual terms 
of the derivative instrument or (ii) counterparty valuations. The Company does not offset fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments and 
fair value amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral (a receivable) or the obligation to return cash collateral (a payable) arising from 
derivative instruments that are recognized at fair value and executed with the same counterparty under a master netting arrangement. The factors that 
impact the fair value of the Company's derivatives include interest rates, time value, forward interest rate curve, and volatility factors, as well as foreign 
exchange rates. Pricing models and their underlying assumptions impact the amount and timing of unrealized gains and losses recognized, and the use of 
different pricing models or assumptions could produce different financial results. Management has structured all of the Company's derivative 
transactions with the intent that each is economically effective; however, the Company's derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. As 
a result, the change in fair value of derivative instruments is reported  
 

F-16  

•  Inquiry Generation and Management - This revenue is derived primarily from fees which are earned through the delivery of qualified inquiries 
or clicks. The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or 
determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. Delivery is deemed to have occurred at the time a qualified inquiry or click is delivered 
to the customer, provided that no significant obligations remain. From time to time, the Company may agree to credit certain inquiries or clicks 
if they fail to meet the contractual or other guidelines of a particular client. The Company has established a sales reserve based on historical 
experience. To date, such credits have been immaterial and within management’s expectations.  

•  Content Solutions - Several content solutions services, including services to connect students to colleges and universities, are sold based on 
subscriptions. Revenue from sales of subscription services is recognized ratably over the term of the contract as earned. Subscription revenue 
received or receivable in advance of the delivery of services is included in deferred revenue. Revenue from the sale of print products is 
generally earned and recognized, net of estimated returns, upon shipment or delivery. All other revenue is recognized over the period in which 
services are provided to customers.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 71 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
in current period earnings. Changes or shifts in the forward yield curve and fluctuations in currency rates can significantly impact the valuation of the 
Company’s derivatives, and therefore impact the financial position and results of operations of the Company. Any proceeds received or payments made 
by the Company to terminate a derivative in advance of its expiration date, or to amend the terms of an existing derivative, are included in the 
Company's consolidated statements of income and are accounted for as a change in fair value of such derivative. The changes in fair value of derivative 
instruments, as well as the settlement payments made on such derivatives, are included in “derivative market value and foreign currency adjustments and 
derivative settlements, net” on the consolidated statements of income.  
 
Foreign Currency  

 
During 2006, the Company issued Euro-denominated bonds, which are included in “bonds and notes payable” on the consolidated balance sheets. 
Transaction gains and losses resulting from exchange rate changes when re-measuring these bonds to U.S. dollars at the balance sheet date are included 
in “derivative market value and foreign currency adjustments and derivative settlements, net” on the consolidated statements of income.  
 
Income Taxes  

 
Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences 
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating 
loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the 
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax 
rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.  
   
Income tax expense includes deferred tax expense, which represents the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability balance during the year, plus any 
change made in the valuation allowance, and current tax expense, which represents the amount of tax currently payable to or receivable from a tax 
authority plus amounts for expected tax deficiencies (including both tax and interest).  
 
Compensation Expense for Stock Based Awards  
 
The Company has a restricted stock plan that is intended to provide incentives to attract, retain, and motivate employees in order to achieve long term 
growth and profitability objectives. The restricted stock plan provides for the grant to eligible employees of awards of restricted shares of Class A 
common stock. The fair value of restricted stock awards is determined on the grant date based on the Company's stock price and is amortized to 
compensation cost over the related vesting periods, which range up to ten years. For those awards with only service conditions that have graded vesting 
schedules, the Company recognizes compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of 
the award, as if the award was, in substance, multiple awards.  
 
Stock Repurchases  
 
In accordance with the corporate laws of the state in which the Company is incorporated, all shares repurchased by the Company are legally retired upon 
acquisition by the Company.  
 
 

F-17  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 72 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
3.    Student Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses  
 
Student loans receivable consisted of the following:  

(a) At December 31, 2014 and 2013, "loan discount, net of unamortized loan premiums and deferred origination costs" included $28.8 million and $20.2 
million , respectively, of non-accretable discount associated with purchased loans of $8.5 billion and $4.4 billion , respectively.  

 
Student Loan Residual Interests  
 
On October 31, 2013, the Company acquired the ownership interest in GCO Education Loan Funding Trust-II (the "GCO Trust-II") giving the 
Company rights to the residual interest in $1.6 billion of securitized federally insured consolidation loans. GCO Trust-II includes loans funded to term 
with $1.6 billion (par value) of notes payable that carry interest rates on a spread to LIBOR or are set and periodically reset via a "dutch auction."  
 
On April 25, 2014, the Company acquired the ownership interest in three FFELP student loan securitization trusts (the "2014 Trusts") giving the 
Company rights to the residual interest in a total of $2.6 billion of securitized federally insured loans and related assets. The 2014 Trusts include loans 
funded to term with $2.6 billion (par value) of notes payable that carry interest rates on a spread to LIBOR or are set and periodically reset via a "dutch 
auction."  
 
The Company has consolidated these trusts on its consolidated balance sheet because management has determined the Company is the primary 
beneficiary of the trusts. Upon acquisition of the GCO Trust II and the 2014 Trusts, the Company recorded all assets and liabilities of the trusts at fair 
value, resulting in the recognition of a student loan fair value discount of $52.9 million and $68.7 million , respectively, and a bonds and notes payable 
fair value discount of $91.8 million and $163.7 million , respectively. These discounts will be accreted using the effective interest method over the lives 
of the underlying assets and liabilities. All other assets acquired and liabilities assumed (restricted cash, accrued interest receivable/payable, and other 
assets/liabilities) were recorded at cost, which approximates fair value.  

 
 

F-18  

   As of December 31,  

   2014    2013  

Federally insured loans          

Stafford and other  $ 6,030,825    6,686,626  
Consolidation  22,165,605    19,363,577  

Total  28,196,430    26,050,203  
Private education loans  27,478    71,103  
   28,223,908    26,121,306  
Loan discount, net of unamortized loan premiums and deferred origination costs (a)  (169,813 )    (158,595 )  

Allowance for loan losses – federally insured loans  (39,170 )    (43,440 )  

Allowance for loan losses – private education loans  (9,730 )    (11,682 )  

   $ 28,005,195    25,907,589  

        

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 73 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
Activity in the Allowance for Loan Losses  
 
The provision for loan losses represents the periodic expense of maintaining an allowance sufficient to absorb losses, net of recoveries, inherent in the 
portfolio of student loans. Activity in the allowance for loan losses is shown below.  

 
Repurchase Obligation  
 
The Company has sold various portfolios of private education loans to third-parties. Per the terms of the servicing agreements, the Company’s servicing 
operations are obligated to repurchase loans subject to the sale agreements in the event such loans become 60 or 90 days delinquent. As of December 31, 
2014, the balance of loans subject to these repurchase obligations was $155.3 million . The Company’s estimate related to its obligation to repurchase 
these loans is included in “other liabilities” in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. The activity related to this accrual is detailed below.  

 

 
 
 

F-19  

   Year ended December 31,  

   2014    2013    2012  

Balance at beginning of period  $ 55,122    51,902    48,482  
Provision for loan losses:               

Federally insured loans  11,000    20,000    22,000  
Private education loans  (1,500 )    (1,500 )    (500 )  

Total provision for loan losses  9,500    18,500    21,500  
Charge-offs:               

Federally insured loans  (15,260 )    (15,588 )    (21,217 )  

Private education loans  (2,332 )    (3,683 )    (3,508 )  

Total charge-offs  (17,592 )    (19,271 )    (24,725 )  

Recoveries - private education loans  1,315    1,577    1,419  
Purchase (sale) of federally insured loans, net  (10 )    (1,093 )    2,133  
Sale of private education loans  (1,620 )    —   — 
Transfer from repurchase obligation related to private education loans repurchased, net  2,185    3,507    3,093  

Balance at end of period  $ 48,900    55,122    51,902  

            

Allocation of the allowance for loan losses:               

Federally insured loans  $ 39,170    43,440    40,120  
Private education loans  9,730    11,682    11,782  

Total allowance for loan losses  $ 48,900    55,122    51,902  

   Year ended December 31,  

   2014    2013    2012  

Beginning balance  $ 16,143    16,130    19,223  
Repurchase obligation transferred to the allowance for loan losses related to loans 

repurchased, net  (2,185 )    (3,507 )    (3,093 )  

Repurchase obligation associated with loans sold  2,097    3,520    — 
Current period income (a)  (4,235 )    —   — 

Ending balance  $ 11,820    16,143    16,130  

(a)  During 2014, the Company recognized income related to the modification of certain servicing agreements in which the repurchase obligation 
was reduced. This income is included in "other income" on the consolidated statements of income.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 74 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
Student Loan Status and Delinquencies  
 
Delinquencies have the potential to adversely impact the Company’s earnings through increased servicing and collection costs and account charge-
offs.  The percent of private education loans that were delinquent 31 days or greater as of December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 was 29.8 percent , 12.7 
percent , and 28.6 percent , respectively. The table below shows the Company’s federally insured student loan delinquency amounts.  
 

   

 

 

 

   
 

F-20  

   As of December 31,  

   2014    2013    2012  

Federally insured loans:                              

Loans in-school/grace/deferment (a)  $ 2,805,228         $ 2,872,505         $ 3,099,637       

Loans in forbearance (b)  3,288,412         3,370,025         3,322,301       

Loans in repayment status:                              

Loans current  18,460,279    83.5 %   16,337,922    82.4 %   15,253,249    82.2 % 

Loans delinquent 31-60 days (c)  1,043,119    4.8    967,318    4.9    766,146    4.1  
Loans delinquent 61-90 days (c)  588,777    2.7    550,333    2.9    410,576    2.2  
Loans delinquent 91-120 days (c)  404,905    1.8    390,791    2.0    433,659    2.3  
Loans delinquent 121-270 days (c)  1,204,405    5.4    1,117,936    5.6    1,236,943    6.7  
Loans delinquent 271 days or greater (c)(d)  401,305    1.8    443,373    2.2    447,335    2.5  

Total loans in repayment  22,102,790    100.0 %   19,807,673    100.0 %   18,547,908    100.0 % 

Total federally insured loans  $ 28,196,430         $ 26,050,203         $ 24,969,846       

                        

(a)  Loans for borrowers who still may be attending school or engaging in other permitted educational activities and are not yet required to make 
payments on the loans, e.g. , residency periods for medical students or a grace period for bar exam preparation for law students.  

(b)  Loans for borrowers who have temporarily ceased making full payments due to hardship or other factors, according to a schedule approved by the 
servicer consistent with the established loan program servicing procedures and policies.  

(c)  The period of delinquency is based on the number of days scheduled payments are contractually past due and relate to repayment loans, that is, 
receivables not charged off, and not in school, grace, deferment, or forbearance.  

(d)  A portion of loans included in loans delinquent 271 days or greater includes loans in claim status, which are loans that have gone into default and 
have been submitted to the guaranty agency.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 75 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
4.     Bonds and Notes Payable  
 
The following tables summarize the Company’s outstanding debt obligations by type of instrument:  
  

  

 
Secured Financing Transactions  
 
The Company has historically relied upon secured financing vehicles as its most significant source of funding for student loans. The net cash flow the 
Company receives from the securitized student loans generally represents the excess amounts, if any, generated by the underlying student loans over the 
amounts required to be paid to the bondholders, after deducting servicing fees and any other expenses relating to the securitizations. The Company’s 
rights to cash flow from securitized student loans are subordinate to bondholder interests, and the securitized student loans may fail to generate any cash 
flow beyond what is due to bondholders. The Company’s secured financing vehicles during the periods presented include loan warehouse facilities and 
asset-backed securitizations.  
 
The majority of the bonds and notes payable are primarily secured by the student loans receivable, related accrued interest, and by the amounts on 
deposit in the accounts established under the respective bond resolutions or financing agreements.  
 
 

F-21  

   As of December 31, 2014  

   
Carrying  
amount    

Interest rate  
range    Final maturity  

Variable-rate bonds and notes issued in asset-backed securitizations:               

Bonds and notes based on indices  $ 25,713,431    0.19% - 6.90%    5/25/18 - 8/26/52  

Bonds and notes based on auction  1,311,669    0.47% - 2.17%    3/22/32 - 11/26/46  

Total variable-rate bonds and notes  27,025,100            

FFELP warehouse facilities  1,241,665    0.16% - 0.26%    1/17/16 - 6/11/17  

Unsecured line of credit  —   —    6/30/19  

Unsecured debt - Junior Subordinated Hybrid Securities  71,688    3.63%    9/15/61  

Other borrowings  81,969    1.67% - 5.10%    11/11/15 - 12/31/18  

   28,420,422           

Discount on bonds and notes payable  (393,072 )            

Total  $ 28,027,350            

   As of December 31, 2013  

   
Carrying  
amount    

Interest rate  
range    Final maturity  

Variable-rate bonds and notes issued in asset-backed securitizations:               

Bonds and notes based on indices  $ 23,479,893    0.25% - 6.90%    5/25/18 - 8/26/52  

Bonds and notes based on auction or remarketing  1,134,250    0.07% - 2.17%    5/1/28 - 11/26/46  

Total variable-rate bonds and notes  24,614,143            

FFELP warehouse facilities  1,396,344    0.17% - 0.25%    1/17/16 - 6/12/16  

Unsecured line of credit  45,000    1.67%    3/28/18  

Unsecured debt - Junior Subordinated Hybrid Securities  96,457    3.62%    9/15/61  

Other borrowings  61,401    1.67% - 5.10%    4/11/14 - 11/11/15  

   26,213,345           

Discount on bonds and notes payable  (258,056 )            

Total  $ 25,955,289            

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 76 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
FFELP warehouse facilities  
 
The Company funds a portion of its FFELP loan acquisitions using its FFELP warehouse facilities. Student loan warehousing allows the Company to 
buy and manage student loans prior to transferring them into more permanent financing arrangements.  
 
As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had three FFELP warehouse facilities as summarized below.  

Each FFELP warehouse facility is supported by 364-day liquidity provisions, which are subject to the respective expiration date shown in the previous 
table. In the event the Company is unable to renew the liquidity provisions by such date, the facility would become a term facility at a stepped-up cost, 
with no additional student loans being eligible for financing, and the Company would be required to refinance the existing loans in the facility by the 
facility's final maturity date. The NFSLW-I warehouse facility provides for formula-based advance rates, depending on FFELP loan type, up to a 
maximum of the principal and interest of loans financed as shown in the table above. The advance rates for collateral may increase or decrease based on 
market conditions, but they are subject to minimums as disclosed above. The NHELP-III and NHELP-II warehouse facilities have static advance rates 
that require initial equity for loan funding, but do not require increased equity based on market movements.  
 
The FFELP warehouse facilities contain financial covenants relating to levels of the Company’s consolidated net worth, ratio of recourse indebtedness 
to adjusted EBITDA, and unencumbered cash. Any noncompliance with these covenants could result in a requirement for the immediate repayment of 
any outstanding borrowings under the facilities.  
 
 

F-22  

     NHELP-III (a)    NHELP-II (b)    NFSLW-I (c)    Total  

Maximum financing amount    $ 750,000    500,000    500,000    1,750,000  
Amount outstanding    692,613    100,637    448,415    1,241,665  

Amount available    $ 57,387    399,363    51,585    508,335  
Expiration of liquidity 

provisions    February 5, 2015    January 15, 2015    June 11, 2015       

Final maturity date    January 17, 2016    January 15, 2017    June 11, 2017       

Maximum advance rates    92.2 - 95.0%    84.5 - 94.5%    92.0 - 98.0%       

Minimum advance rates    92.2 - 95.0%    84.5 - 94.5%    84.0 - 90.0%       

Advanced as equity support    $ 41,578    9,924    21,931    73,433  

(a)  On February 4, 2015, the Company amended the agreement for this warehouse facility to change the expiration date for the liquidity provisions to May 5, 
2015 .  

(b)  On January 9, 2015, the Company amended the agreement for this warehouse facility to change the expiration date for the liquidity provisions to 
December 17, 2015 , and to change the maturity date to December 17, 2017 .  

(c)  On January 27, 2015, the Company amended the agreement for this warehouse facility to temporarily increase the maximum financing amount to $1.2 billion . 
The maximum financing amount is scheduled to decrease $200.0 million and $250.0 million on April 30, 2015 and May 31, 2015, respectively.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 77 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
Asset-backed securitizations  
 
The following tables summarize the asset-backed securitization transactions completed in 2014 and 2013 .  

 
F-23  

     Securitizations completed during the year ended December 31, 2014  

     2014-1    2014-2    2014-3    2014-4    2014-5    2014-6 (a)    Total  

          
Class A-1 

notes    
Class A-2 

notes    
Class A-3 

notes    2014-2 total         
Class A-1 

notes    
Class A-2 

notes    2014-4 total                 

Date securities issued    2/6/14    3/12/14    3/12/14    3/12/14    3/12/14    4/30/14    5/23/14    5/23/14    5/23/14    6/18/14    7/31/14       
Total original principal 

amount    $ 458,500                   509,000    719,800              384,500    603,000    565,000    $ 3,239,800  

                                                  

Class A senior notes:                                                              
Total original principal 

amount    $ 445,000    191,000    222,000    84,000    497,000    700,700    267,500    107,500    375,000    587,000    565,000    3,169,700  
Bond discount    —   —   —   (535 )    (535 )    —   —   —   —   —   (3,124 )    (3,659 )  

Issue price    $ 445,000    191,000    222,000    83,465    496,465    700,700    267,500    107,500    375,000    587,000    561,876    3,166,041  
Cost of funds (1-

month LIBOR 
plus:)    0.57 %   0.28 %   0.60 %   0.85 %        0.58 %   0.54 %   0.95 %        0.55 %   0.65 %      

Final maturity date    9/25/41    6/25/21    3/25/30    7/27/37         6/25/41    11/27/34    11/25/43         7/25/41    11/25/47       

                                                  

Class B subordinated 
notes:                                                              
Total original principal 

amount    $ 13,500                   12,000    19,100              9,500    16,000         70,100  
Bond discount    (1,132 )                   (1,046 )    (1,467 )              (1,138 )    (1,232 )         (6,015 )  

Issue price    $ 12,368                   10,954    17,633              8,362    14,768         64,085  
Cost of funds (1-

month LIBOR 
plus:)    1.50 %                  1.50 %   1.50 %             1.50 %   1.50 %           

Final maturity date    10/25/47                   6/25/41    10/25/50              9/25/51    5/25/49            

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 78 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
 

 

 
Auction Rate Securities  
 
The interest rates on certain of the Company's asset-backed securities are set and periodically reset via a "dutch auction" ("Auction Rate Securities"). As 
of December 31, 2014 , the Company is currently sponsor on $1.3 billion of Auction Rate Securities.  
 
Since February 2008, problems in the auction rate securities market as a whole have led to failures of the auctions pursuant to which the Company's 
Auction Rate Securities' interest rates are set. As a result, the Auction Rate Securities generally pay interest to the holder at a maximum rate as defined 
by the indenture. While these rates will vary, they will generally be based on a spread to LIBOR or Treasury Securities, or the Net Loan Rate as defined 
in the indenture. Based on the relative levels of these indices as of December 31, 2014 , the rates expected to be paid by the Company range from 91-day 
T-Bill plus 125 basis points, on the low end, to LIBOR plus 250 basis points, on the high end. These maximum rates are subject to increase if the credit 
ratings on the bonds are downgraded.  
 
Unsecured Line of Credit  
 
The Company has a $350.0 million unsecured line of credit that has a maturity date of June 30, 2019 . As of December 31, 2014 , the $350.0 million 
unsecured line of credit had no amount outstanding and $350.0 million was available for future use.  
 
 

F-24  

     Securitizations completed during the year ended December 31, 2013  

     2013-1    2013-2 (a)    2013-3    2013-4    2013-5 (a)         Total  

Date securities issued    1/31/13    2/28/13    4/30/13    6/21/13    9/30/13            

Total original principal amount    $ 437,500    1,122,000    765,000    453,000    399,000         $ 3,176,500  

                              

Class A senior notes:                                     

Total original principal amount    $ 428,000    1,122,000    745,000    440,000    399,000         3,134,000  
Bond discount    —   (3,325 )    —   (1,690 )    (4,881 )         (9,896 )  

Issue price    $ 428,000    1,118,675    745,000    438,310    394,119         3,124,104  

Cost of funds (1-month LIBOR plus:)    0.60 %   0.50 %   0.50 %   0.50 %   0.63 %           

Final maturity date    6/25/41    7/25/40    2/25/37    12/26/42    1/25/37            

                              

Class B subordinated notes:                                     

Total original principal amount    $ 9,500         20,000    13,000              42,500  
Bond discount    (1,525 )         (1,762 )    (1,804 )              (5,091 )  

Issue price    $ 7,975         18,238    11,196              37,409  

Cost of funds (1-month LIBOR plus:)    1.50 %        1.50 %   1.50 %                

Final maturity date    3/25/48         7/25/47    1/25/47                 

(a)  Total original principal amount excludes the Class B subordinated tranches for the 2014-6, 2013-2, and 2013-5 transactions totaling $8.3 
million , $34.0 million , and $9.0 million , respectively, that were retained at issuance. As of December 31, 2014 , the Company has a total of 
$36.0 million (par value) of its own Class B subordinated notes remaining from prior completed asset-backed securitizations that are not 
included in the Company's consolidated balance sheet. If the Company sells these notes to third parties, the Company would obtain cash 
proceeds equal to the market value of the notes on the date of such sale.  Upon sale, these notes would be shown as “bonds and notes payable”
in the Company's consolidated balance sheet.  The Company believes the market value of such notes is currently less than par value.  Any 
excess of the par value over the market value on the date of sale would be recognized by the Company as interest expense over the life of the 
bonds.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 79 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
The line of credit agreement contains certain financial covenants that, if not met, lead to an event of default under the agreement.  The covenants include 
maintaining:  
 

 
As of December 31, 2014 , the Company was in compliance with all of these requirements. Many of these covenants are duplicated in the Company’s 
other lending facilities, including its FFELP warehouse facilities.  
 
The Company’s operating line of credit does not have any covenants related to unsecured debt ratings.  However, changes in the Company’s ratings (as 
well as the amounts the Company borrows) have modest implications on the pricing level at which the Company obtains funding.  
 
A default on the Company’s FFELP warehouse facilities would result in an event of default on the Company’s unsecured line of credit that would result 
in the outstanding balance on the line of credit becoming immediately due and payable.  
 
Junior Subordinated Hybrid Securities  
 
On September 27, 2006, the Company issued $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of Junior Subordinated Hybrid Securities ("Hybrid Securities"). 
The Hybrid Securities are unsecured obligations of the Company. The interest rate on the Hybrid Securities through September 29, 2036 ("the scheduled 
maturity date") is equal to three-month LIBOR plus 3.375% , payable quarterly, which was 3.63% at December 31, 2014 . The principal amount of the 
Hybrid Securities will become due on the scheduled maturity date only to the extent that prior to such date the Company has received proceeds from the 
sale of certain qualifying capital securities (as defined in the Hybrid Securities' indenture). If any amount is not paid on the scheduled maturity date, it 
will remain outstanding and bear interest at a floating rate as defined in the indenture, payable monthly. On September 15, 2061, the Company must pay 
any remaining principal and interest on the Hybrid Securities in full whether or not the Company has sold qualifying capital securities. At the 
Company's option, the Hybrid Securities are redeemable in whole or in part at their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, provided in the 
case of a redemption in part that the principal amount outstanding after such redemption is at least $50.0 million . As of December 31, 2014 , the 
outstanding balance on the Hybrid Securities was $71.7 million .  
 
Other Borrowings  
 
On April 12, 2012 , the Company entered into a $50.0 million line of credit, which is collateralized by asset-backed security investments. On October 
31, 2014, the Company amended this facility to increase the borrowing capacity to $75.0 million and extend the maturity date to October 31, 2016 . The 
line of credit has covenants and cross default provisions similar to those under the Company's unsecured line of credit. As of December 31, 2014 , $75.0 
million was outstanding on this line of credit.  
 
On October 13, 2006, the Company purchased a building in which its corporate headquarters is located. In connection with the acquisition of the 
building, the Company assumed the outstanding note on the property. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the outstanding balance on the note was $4.4 
million and $4.5 million , respectively.  
 
On January 1, 2014, the Company subparticipated the Company's participation interest in a loan receivable. As of December 31, 2014, the participated 
portion of the loan was $2.6 million , with an obligation to fund an additional $0.5 million . The outstanding balance of the subparticipation agreement is 
included in bonds and notes payable.  
 
As of December 31, 2013 , bonds and notes payable included $6.9 million of notes due to a third-party. The Company used the proceeds from these 
notes to invest in private education loan assets via a participation agreement. This participation was canceled in 2014.  
 
 

F-25  

•  A minimum consolidated net worth 

•  A minimum adjusted EBITDA to corporate debt interest (over the last four rolling quarters) 

•  A limitation on recourse indebtedness 

•  A limitation on the percentage of private education loans in the Company’s portfolio 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 80 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
One of the Company's education lending subsidiaries has irrevocably escrowed funds to make the remaining principal and interest payments on 
previously issued bonds and notes. Accordingly, neither these obligations nor the escrowed funds are included on the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the accreted defeased debt that remained outstanding was $49.4 million and $45.9 million , 
respectively.  
 
Debt Covenants  
 
Certain bond resolutions contain, among other requirements, covenants relating to restrictions on additional indebtedness, limits as to direct and indirect 
administrative expenses, and maintaining certain financial ratios. Management believes the Company is in compliance with all covenants of the bond 
indentures and related credit agreements as of December 31, 2014 .  
 
Maturity Schedule  
 
Bonds and notes outstanding as of December 31, 2014 are due in varying amounts as shown below.  

 
Generally, the Company's secured financing instruments bearing interest at variable rates can be redeemed on any interest payment date at par plus 
accrued interest. Subject to certain provisions, all bonds and notes are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of certain education lending 
subsidiaries.  
 
5.  Derivative Financial Instruments  
 
The Company uses derivative financial instruments primarily to manage interest rate risk and foreign currency exchange risk.  
 
Interest Rate Risk  
 
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk in the form of basis risk and repricing risk because the interest rate characteristics of the Company's assets 
do not match the interest rate characteristics of the funding for those assets. The Company has adopted a policy of periodically reviewing the mismatch 
related to the interest rate characteristics of its assets and liabilities together with the Company's outlook as to current and future market conditions. 
Based on those factors, the Company uses derivative instruments as part of its overall risk management strategy. Derivative instruments used as part of 
the Company's interest rate risk management strategy currently include basis swaps and interest rate swaps.  
 
Basis Swaps  
 
Interest earned on the majority of the Company's FFELP student loan assets is indexed to the one-month LIBOR rate.  Meanwhile, the Company funds a 
majority of its assets with three-month LIBOR indexed floating rate securities.  The different interest rate characteristics of the Company's loan assets 
and liabilities funding these assets results in basis risk.  
 
The Company also faces repricing risk due to the timing of the interest rate resets on its liabilities, which may occur as infrequently as once a quarter, in 
contrast to the timing of the interest rate resets on its assets, which generally occur daily. As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had $27.3 billion and 
$0.9 billion of FFELP loans indexed to the one-month LIBOR rate and the three-month treasury bill rate , respectively, the indices for which reset daily, 
and $16.5 billion of debt indexed to three-month LIBOR , the indices for which reset quarterly, and $9.9 billion of debt indexed to one-month LIBOR , 
the indices for which reset monthly.  
 
 

F-26  

2015    $ 4,393  
2016    767,613  
2017    549,052  
2018    39,265  
2019    437,003  
2020 and thereafter    26,623,096  

     $ 28,420,422  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 81 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
The Company has used derivative instruments to hedge its basis risk and repricing risk. The Company has entered into basis swaps in which the 
Company receives three-month LIBOR set discretely in advance and pays one-month LIBOR plus or minus a spread as defined in the agreements (the 
1:3 Basis Swaps).  
 

The following table summarizes the Company’s 1:3 Basis Swaps outstanding:  

(a) This derivative has a forward effective start date in 2015.  

 
Interest rate swaps – floor income hedges  
 
FFELP loans originated prior to April 1, 2006 generally earn interest at the higher of the borrower rate, which is fixed over a period of time, or a floating 
rate based on the Special Allowance Payments ("SAP") formula set by the Department. The SAP rate is based on an applicable index plus a fixed spread 
that depends on loan type, origination date, and repayment status. The Company generally finances its student loan portfolio with variable rate debt. In 
low and/or certain declining interest rate environments, when the fixed borrower rate is higher than the SAP rate, these student loans earn at a fixed rate 
while the interest on the variable rate debt typically continues to reflect the low and/or declining interest rates. In these interest rate environments, the 
Company may earn additional spread income that it refers to as floor income.  
 
Depending on the type of loan and when it was originated, the borrower rate is either fixed to term or is reset to an annual rate each July 1. As a result, 
for loans where the borrower rate is fixed to term, the Company may earn floor income for an extended period of time, which the Company refers to as 
fixed rate floor income, and for those loans where the borrower rate is reset annually on July 1, the Company may earn floor income to the next reset 
date, which the Company refers to as variable rate floor income. All FFELP loans first originated on or after April 1, 2006 effectively earn at the SAP 
rate, since lenders are required to rebate fixed rate floor income and variable rate floor income for these loans to the Department.  
 
Absent the use of derivative instruments, a rise in interest rates may reduce the amount of floor income received and this may have an impact on 
earnings due to interest margin compression caused by increasing financing costs, until such time as the federally insured loans earn interest at a variable 
rate in accordance with their SAP formulas. In higher interest rate environments, where the interest rate rises above the borrower rate and fixed rate 
loans effectively become variable rate loans, the impact of the rate fluctuations is reduced.  
 
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had $12.7 billion and $11.1 billion , respectively, of student loan assets that were earning fixed rate 
floor income, of which the weighted average estimated variable conversion rate for these loans, which is the estimated short-term interest rate at which 
loans would convert to a variable rate, was 1.84% and 1.83% , respectively.  
 
 

F-27  

            As of December 31,     

         2014     2013     

   Maturity     Notional amount     Notional amount     

   2021       $ 250,000     250,000     

   2022       1,900,000     1,900,000     

   2023       3,650,000     3,650,000     

   2024       250,000     250,000     

   2026       800,000     800,000     

   2028       100,000     100,000     

   2036       700,000     700,000     

   2039 (a)     150,000     150,000     

   2040       —    200,000     

            $ 7,800,000  (b) 8,000,000  (b) 

(b)  The weighted average rate paid by the Company on the 1:3 Basis Swaps as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , was 
one-month LIBOR plus 3.5 basis points.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 82 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
The following tables summarize the outstanding derivative instruments used by the Company to economically hedge loans earning fixed rate floor 
income.  

   

On August 20, 2014, the Company paid $9.1 million for an interest rate swaption to economically hedge loans earning fixed rate floor income. The 
interest rate swap option gives the Company the right, but not the obligation, to enter into a $250 million notional interest rate swap in which the 
Company would pay a fixed amount of 3.30% and receive discrete one-month LIBOR . If the interest rate swap option is exercised, the swap would 
become effective in 2019 and mature in 2024.  
 
Interest rate swaps – unsecured debt hedges  
 
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the Company had $71.7 million and $96.5 million , respectively, of unsecured Hybrid Securities outstanding. The 
interest rate on the Hybrid Securities through September 29, 2036 is equal to three-month LIBOR plus 3.375% , payable quarterly. As of December 31, 
2014 and 2013 , the Company had the following derivatives outstanding that are used to effectively convert the variable interest rate on a portion of the 
Hybrid Securities to a fixed rate of 7.66% .  
   

 
Foreign Currency Exchange Risk  
 
In 2006, the Company issued €352.7 million of student loan asset-backed Euro Notes (the "Euro Notes") with an interest rate based on a spread to the 
EURIBOR index. As a result of the Euro Notes, the Company is exposed to market risk related to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates 
between the U.S. dollar and Euro. The principal and accrued interest on these notes are re-measured at each reporting period and recorded in the 
Company’s consolidated balance sheet in U.S. dollars based on the foreign currency exchange rate on that date. Changes in the principal and accrued 
interest amounts as a result of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations are included in the Company’s consolidated statements of income.  

 
The Company entered into a cross-currency interest rate swap in connection with the issuance of the Euro Notes. Under the terms of the cross-currency 
interest rate swap, the Company receives from the counterparty a spread to the EURIBOR index based on a notional amount of €352.7 million and pays 
a spread to the LIBOR index based on a notional amount of $450.0 million . In addition, under the terms of this agreement, all principal payments on the 
Euro Notes will effectively be paid at the exchange rate in effect between the U.S. dollar and Euro as of the issuance of the notes.  
 
 

F-28  

        As of December 31, 2014    As of December 31, 2013  

   

Maturity  

  

Notional amount  

  Weighted average fixed 
rate paid by the 

Company (a)  

  

Notional amount  

  Weighted average fixed 
rate paid by the 

Company (a)            

   2014    $ —   —%   $ 1,750,000    0.71 % 

   2015    1,100,000    0.89    1,100,000    0.89  
   2016    750,000    0.85    750,000    0.85  
   2017    1,250,000    0.86    1,250,000    0.86  

        $ 3,100,000    0.87 %   $ 4,850,000    0.81 % 

(a)  For all interest rate derivatives, the Company receives discrete three-month LIBOR. 

Maturity    Notional amount    

Weighted average 
fixed rate paid by the 

Company (a)  

2036    $ 25,000    4.28%  

(a)  For all interest rate derivatives, the Company receives discrete three-month LIBOR. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 83 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
The following table shows the income statement impact as a result of the re-measurement of the Euro Notes and the change in the fair value of the 
related derivative instruments.  

 

The re-measurement of the Euro-denominated bonds generally correlates with the change in fair value of the corresponding cross-currency interest rate 
swap. However, the Company will experience unrealized gains or losses related to the cross-currency interest rate swap if the two underlying indices 
(and related forward curve) do not move in parallel.  

Consolidated Financial Statement Impact Related to Derivatives  
   
The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s derivatives as reflected on the consolidated balance sheet.  

 
During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company terminated certain derivatives for net proceeds of $1.8 million and $65.9 million , 
respectively.  
 

F-29  

   Year ended December 31,  

   2014    2013 (b)    2012 (b)  

Re-measurement of Euro Notes  $ 58,013    (35,285 )   (19,561 ) 

Change in fair value of cross currency interest rate swaps  (57,289 )   26,354    2,210  
Total impact to consolidated statements of income - income 
(expense) (a)  $ 724    (8,931 )   (17,351 ) 

(a)  The financial statement impact of the above items is included in "Derivative market value and foreign currency adjustments and derivative 
settlements, net" in the Company's consolidated statements of income.  

(b)  The 2013 and 2012 operating results include the re-measurement of an additional €420.5 million of student loan asset-backed Euro notes and 
the change in fair value of a related cross-currency interest rate swap entered into in connection with the issuance of such notes. In November 
2013, the principal amount outstanding on the notes was changed to U.S. dollars and the cross-currency interest swap was terminated.  

   Fair value of asset derivatives    Fair value of liability derivatives  

   As of    As of    As of    As of  

   December 31, 2014    December 31, 2013    December 31, 2014    December 31, 2013  

1:3 basis swaps  $ 53,549    18,490    —   — 
Interest rate swaps - floor income hedges  5,165    7,183    5,034    15,849  
Interest rate swap option - floor income hedge  5,678    —   —   — 
Interest rate swaps - hybrid debt hedges  —   —   7,353    2,120  
Cross-currency interest rate swap  —   36,834    20,455    — 

Total  $ 64,392    62,507    32,842    17,969  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 84 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
 
Offsetting of Derivative Assets/Liabilities  
 
The Company records derivative instruments in the consolidated balance sheets on a gross basis as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. 
Certain of the Company's derivative instruments are subject to right of offset provisions with counterparties. The following tables include the gross 
amounts related to the Company's derivative portfolio recognized in the consolidated balance sheets, reconciled to the net amount when excluding 
derivatives subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and cash collateral received/pledged:  
 

 

 
 

F-30  

          
Gross amounts not offset in the consolidated balance 

sheets       

Derivative assets    

Gross amounts of 
recognized assets presented 
in the consolidated balance 

sheets    

Derivatives subject to 
enforceable master 

netting arrangement    Cash collateral received    Net asset (liability)  

Balance as of December 
31, 2014    $ 64,392    (12,387 )    —   52,005  
Balance as of December 
31, 2013    62,507    (15,437 )    (15,959 )    31,111  

          
Gross amounts not offset in the 

consolidated balance sheets       

Derivative 
liabilities    

Gross amounts of recognized 
liabilities presented in the 

consolidated balance sheets    

Derivatives subject to 
enforceable master 

netting arrangement    

Cash collateral 
pledged 

(received)    Net asset (liability)  

Balance as of 
December 31, 
2014    $  (32,842 )    12,387    (1,454 )   (21,909 ) 

Balance as of 
December 31, 
2013    (17,969 )    15,437    3,630    1,098  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 85 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
The following table summarizes the effect of derivative instruments in the consolidated statements of income.  

 
Derivative Instruments - Credit and Market Risk  
 
By using derivative instruments, the Company is exposed to credit and market risk. The Company manages credit and market risks associated with 
interest rates by establishing and monitoring limits as to the types and degree of risk that may be undertaken and by entering into transactions with high-
quality counterparties that are reviewed periodically by the Company's risk committee. As of December 31, 2014 , all of the Company's derivative 
counterparties had investment grade credit ratings. The Company also has a policy of requiring that all derivative contracts be governed by an 
International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. Master Agreement.  
 
Credit Risk  
 
When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive (an asset in the Company's consolidated balance sheet), this generally indicates that the 
counterparty would owe the Company if the derivative was settled. If the counterparty fails to perform, credit risk with such counterparty is equal to the 
extent of the fair value gain in the derivative less any collateral held by the Company. If the Company was unable to collect from a counterparty, it 
would have a loss equal to the amount the derivative is recorded in the consolidated balance sheet.  
 
The Company considers counterparties' credit risk when determining the fair value of derivative positions on its exposure net of collateral. However, the 
Company does not use the collateral to offset fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments in the financial statements.  
 
Market Risk  
 
When the fair value of a derivative instrument is negative (a liability in the Company's consolidated balance sheet), the Company would owe the 
counterparty if the derivative was settled and, therefore, has no immediate credit risk.  If the negative fair value of derivatives with a counterparty 
exceeds a specified threshold, the Company may have to make a collateral deposit with the counterparty. The threshold at which the Company may be 
required to post collateral is dependent upon the Company's unsecured credit rating.  The Company believes any downgrades from its current unsecured 
credit rating (Standard & Poor's: BBB- (stable  
 

F-31  

     Year ended December 31,  

     2014    2013    2012  

Settlements:                 

1:3 basis swaps    $ 3,389    3,301    4,495  
Interest rate swaps - floor income hedges    (24,380 )   (31,022 )   (19,270 ) 

Interest rate swaps - hybrid debt hedges    (1,025 )   (1,670 )   (2,231 ) 

Cross-currency interest rate swaps    173    (245 )   3,228  
Other    —   —   (244 ) 

Total settlements - (expense) income    (21,843 )   (29,636 )   (14,022 ) 

Change in fair value:                 
1:3 basis swaps    36,824    7,467    676  
Interest rate swaps - floor income hedges    8,797    36,719    (35,215 ) 

Interest rate swap option - floor income hedge    (3,409 )   —   — 
Interest rate swaps - hybrid debt hedges    (5,233 )   12,997    1,717  
Cross-currency interest rate swaps    (57,289 )   26,354    2,210  
Other    —   341    2,779  

Total change in fair value - (expense) income    (20,310 )   83,878    (27,833 ) 

Re-measurement of Euro Notes (foreign currency transaction adjustment) - 
income (expense)    58,013    (35,285 )   (19,561 ) 

Derivative market value and foreign currency adjustments and derivative 
settlements, net - income (expense)    $ 15,860    18,957    (61,416 ) 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 86 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
outlook) and Moody's: Ba1 (stable outlook)), would not result in additional collateral requirements of a material nature. In addition, no counterparty has 
the right to terminate its contracts in the event of downgrades from the current rating. However, some derivative contracts have mutual optional 
termination provisions that can be exercised during the years 2016 through 2023. As of December 31, 2014 , the fair value of derivatives with early 
termination provisions was a positive $34.7 million (an asset in the Company's consolidated balance sheet).  
 
Interest rate movements have an impact on the amount of collateral the Company is required to deposit with its derivative instrument counterparties. 
With the Company's current derivative portfolio, the Company does not currently anticipate near term movement in interest rates having a material 
impact on its liquidity or capital resources, nor expects future movements in interest rates to have a material impact on its ability to meet potential 
collateral deposits with its counterparties. Due to the existing low interest rate environment, the Company's exposure to downward movements in 
interest rates on its interest rate swaps is limited.  In addition, the historical high correlation between one-month and three-month LIBOR limits the 
Company's exposure to interest rate movements on the 1:3 Basis Swaps.   
 
The Company's cross-currency interest rate swap was entered into as a result of an asset-backed security financing and was entered into at the 
securitization trust level with the counterparty. Trust related derivatives do not contain credit contingent features related to the Company or the trust's 
credit ratings. As such, there are no collateral requirements and as a result the impact of changes to foreign currency rates has no impact on the amount 
of collateral the Company would be required to deposit with the counterparty on this derivative.  
 
6.    Investments  
 
A summary of the Company's investments and restricted investments follows: 

 

 

 
 

F-32  

   As of December 31, 2014    As of December 31, 2013  

   

Amortized cost 

  Gross 
unrealized 

gains  

  Gross 
unrealized 
losses (a)  

  

Fair value  

  

Amortized cost  

  Gross 
unrealized 

gains  

  Gross 
unrealized 

losses  

  

Fair value  
                

Investments:                                        

Available-for-sale investments:                                        

Student loan asset-backed and other debt securities (b)  $ 131,589    6,204    (236 )    137,557    171,931    7,111    (1,241 )    177,801  
Equity securities  1,553    2,216    (33 )    3,736    1,502    1,783    (3 )    3,282  

Total available-for-sale investments  $ 133,142    8,420    (269 )    141,293    173,433    8,894    (1,244 )    181,083  

Trading investments:                                        

Student loan asset-backed securities                 7,830                   10,957  
Total available-for-sale and trading investments                 $ 149,123                   192,040  

Restricted Investments (c):                                        

Guaranteed investment contracts - held-to-maturity                 $ 50,276                   7,285  

(a)  As of December 31, 2014 , the Company considered the decline in market value of its available-for-sale investments to be temporary in nature 
and did not consider any of its investments other-than-temporarily impaired.  

(b)  As of December 31, 2014 , the stated maturities of the Company's student loan asset-backed securities and other debt securities classified as 
available-for-sale are shown in the following table:  

Year of Maturity:  Amortized cost    Fair value  

Within 1 year  $ —   — 
1-5 years  386    386  
6-10 years  —   — 
After 10 years  131,203    137,171  

Total  $ 131,589    137,557  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 87 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 

      
As of December 31, 2014 , the stated maturities of the Company's restricted investments, which are classified as held-to-maturity, are shown in 
the following table.  

T  
The following table summarizes the amount included in "other income" in the consolidated statements of income related to the Company's investments 
classified as available-for-sale and trading.  

The amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income related to the realized gains and losses on available-for-sale-securities is 
summarized below.  

 
7. Business Combination  
 
Wilcomp Software, L.P. (d.b.a. RenWeb School Management Software) (“RenWeb”)  
 
On June 3, 2014 , the Company purchased 100 percent of the ownership interests of RenWeb. RenWeb provides school information systems for private 
and faith-based schools that help schools automate administrative processes such as admissions, scheduling, student billing, attendance, and grade book 
management. The combination of RenWeb’s school administration software and the Company’s tuition management and financial needs assessment 
services is expected to significantly increase the value of the Company’s offerings in this area, allowing the Company to deliver a comprehensive suite 
of solutions to schools.  
 
The initial consideration paid by the Company for RenWeb was $44.0 million . In addition to the initial purchase price, additional payments are to be 
paid by the Company to the former owners of RenWeb based on certain operating results and other performance measures of RenWeb as defined in the 
purchase agreement. The contingent payments, if any, are payable when earned, and the  
 

F-33  

(c)  Restricted investments are included in "restricted cash and investments" in the Company's consolidated balance sheets. The Company's 
restricted investments include cash balances that the Company's indentured securitization trusts deposit in guaranteed investment contracts that 
are held for the related note holders. These investments are classified as held-to-maturity and the Company accounts for them at amortized cost, 
which approximates fair value.  

Year of Maturity:     

Within 1 year  $ — 
1-5 years  10,203  
6-10 years  — 
After 10 years  40,073  

Total  $ 50,276  

     Year ended December 31,  

     2014    2013    2012  

Available-for-sale securities:                 

Gross realized gains    $ 8,581    6,270    6,120  
Gross realized losses    (75 )   (332 )   (322 ) 

Trading securities:                 

Unrealized (losses) gains, net    (135 )   221    254  
Realized (losses) gains, net    (1,082 )   5    1,459  

     $ 7,289    6,164    7,511  

     Year ended December 31,  

Affected line item in the consolidated statements of 
income - income (expense):    2014    2013    2012  

Other income    $ 8,506    5,938    5,798  
Income tax expense    (3,147 )   (2,197 )   (2,145 ) 

Net income    $ 5,359    3,741    3,653  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 88 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
potential undiscounted amount of all future payments that the Company could be required to make under the contingent consideration arrangement is 
between $0 and $4.0 million . Such payments, if any, will be paid no later than January 2017. As of the acquisition date, the Company accrued $2.3 
million as additional consideration, which represented the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration arrangement. In December 2014, the 
Company reduced the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration by $1.3 million .  
 
The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.  

 
The $37.2 million of acquired intangible assets on the date of acquisition had a weighted-average useful life of approximately 18 years . The intangible 
assets that made up this amount included customer relationships of $25.5 million ( 20 -year useful life), trade name of $6.4 million ( 20 -year useful life), 
computer software of $4.9 million ( 5 -year useful life), and non-competition agreements of $0.4 million ( 10 -year useful life).  

The $9.1 million of goodwill was assigned to the Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce operating segment and is expected to be 
deductible for tax purposes. The amount allocated to goodwill was primarily attributable to anticipated synergies as discussed previously.  
 
The proforma impacts of the acquisition on the Company's historical results prior to the acquisition were not material.  
 
8. Intangible Assets  
 
Intangible assets consist of the following:  

 
 

F-34  

Cash and cash equivalents     $ 326  
Accounts receivable     961  
Property and equipment     105  
Other assets     22  
Intangible assets     37,188  
Excess cost over fair value of net assets acquired (goodwill)     9,082  
Other liabilities     (1,341 ) 

Net assets acquired     $ 46,343  

   Weighted average remaining 
useful life as of December 31, 

2014 (months)  

  As of 
December 31, 

2014  

  As of 
December 31, 

2013        

Amortizable intangible assets:          

Customer relationships (net of accumulated 
amortization of $17,361 and $19,821, 
respectively)  209   $  27,330    6,132  

Computer software (net of accumulated 
amortization of $1,896 and $0, 
respectively)  42   6,969    — 

Trade names (net of accumulated 
amortization of $272 and $0, respectively)  233   6,150    — 

Content (net of accumulated amortization of 
$0)  24   1,800    — 

Covenants not to compete (net of 
accumulated amortization of $21 and $0, 
respectively)  113   333    — 

Total - amortizable intangible assets  176   $  42,582    6,132  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 89 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
The Company recorded amortization expense on its intangible assets of $6.5 million , $3.3 million , and $19.0 million during the years ended December 
31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 , respectively. The Company will continue to amortize intangible assets over their remaining useful lives. As of December 31, 
2014 , the Company estimates it will record amortization expense as follows:  

 
9. Goodwill  
 
The change in the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable operating segment was as follows:  

 

 
The Company reviews goodwill for impairment annually. This annual review is completed by the Company as of November 30 of each year and 
whenever triggering events or changes in circumstances indicate its carrying value may not be recoverable.  

For the 2012 , 2013 , and 2014 annual review of goodwill, the Company assessed qualitative factors and concluded it was not more likely than not that 
the fair value of its reporting units were less than their carrying amount. As such, the Company was not required to perform the two-step impairment test 
and concluded there was no impairment of goodwill.  

 
 

F-35  

2015  $ 8,695  
2016  6,249  
2017  4,652  
2018  3,533  
2019  2,861  
2020 and thereafter  16,592  

   $ 42,582  

   

Student Loan and 
Guaranty 
Servicing    

Tuition Payment 
Processing and 

Campus Commerce    
Asset Generation 

and Management (a)    

Corporate and 
Other 

Activities    Total  

Balance as of December 31, 2012 and 2013  $ 8,596    58,086    41,883    8,553    117,118  
Goodwill acquired during the period  —   9,082    —   —   9,082  

Balance as of December 31, 2014  $ 8,596    67,168    41,883    8,553    126,200  

(a)  As a result of the Reconciliation Act of 2010, the Company no longer originates new FFELP loans, and net interest income from the Company's 
existing FFELP loan portfolio will decline over time as the Company's portfolio pays down. As a result, as this revenue stream winds down, 
goodwill impairment will be triggered for the Asset Generation and Management reporting unit due to the passage of time and depletion of 
projected cash flows stemming from its FFELP student loan portfolio. Management believes the elimination of new FFELP loan originations 
will not have an adverse impact on the fair value of the Company's other reporting units.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 90 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
10. Property and Equipment  
 
Property and equipment consisted of the following:  

 
Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 related to property and equipment was $14.6 million , $15.1 million , 
and $12.9 million , respectively.  
 
11.    Shareholders’ Equity  
 
Classes of Common Stock  
 
The Company's common stock is divided into two classes. The Class B common stock has ten votes per share and the Class A common stock has one 
vote per share on all matters to be voted on by the Company's shareholders. Each Class B share is convertible at any time at the holder's option into one 
Class A share. With the exception of the voting rights and the conversion feature, the Class A and Class B shares are identical in terms of other rights, 
including dividend and liquidation rights.  
 
Stock Repurchases  
 
The Company has a stock repurchase program that expires on May 24, 2015 in which it can repurchase up to five million shares of its Class A common 
stock on the open market, through private transactions, or otherwise. As of December 31, 2014 , 3.5 million shares may still be purchased under the 
Company's stock repurchase program. Shares repurchased by the Company during 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 are shown in the table below.  

 
 
 

F-36  

        As of December 31,  

   Useful life    2014    2013  

Computer equipment and software  1-5 years    $ 98,462    77,733  
Office furniture and equipment  3-7 years    12,265    9,843  
Leasehold improvements  1-15 years    3,645    3,618  
Transportation equipment  10 years    3,877    7,398  
Building and building improvements  5-39 years    11,336    10,366  
Land  —    700    700  
        130,285    109,658  
Accumulated depreciation       84,391    75,829  

        $ 45,894    33,829  

     
Total shares 
repurchased    

Purchase price (in 
thousands)    

Average price of shares 
repurchased (per share)  

Year ended December 31, 2014    381,689    $ 15,713    $ 41.17  
Year ended December 31, 2013    393,259    13,136    33.40  
Year ended December 31, 2012    806,023    22,814    28.30  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 91 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
12.  Earnings per Common Share  
 
Presented below is a summary of the components used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share. The Company applies the two-class method in 
computing both basic and diluted earnings per share, which requires the calculation of separate earnings per share amounts for common stock and 
unvested share-based awards. Unvested share-based awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends are considered securities which participate in 
undistributed earnings with common stock.  

 
Unvested restricted stock awards are the Company's only potential common shares and, accordingly, there were no awards that were antidilutive and not 
included in average shares outstanding for the diluted earnings per share calculation.  
 
As of December 31, 2014 , a cumulative amount of 136,495 shares have been deferred by non-employee directors under the Directors Stock 
Compensation Plan and will become issuable upon the termination of service by the respective non-employee director on the board of directors. These 
shares are included in the Company's weighted average shares outstanding calculation.  
 
13. Income Taxes  
 
The Company is subject to income taxes in the United States, Canada, and Australia. Significant judgment is required in evaluating the Company's tax 
positions and determining the provision for income taxes. During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations for which 
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.  
   
As required by the Income Taxes Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification, the Company recognizes in the consolidated financial 
statements only those tax positions determined to be more likely than not of being sustained upon examination, based on the technical merits of the 
positions. It further requires that a change in judgment related to the expected ultimate resolution of uncertain tax positions be recognized in earnings in 
the period of such change.  
 

F-37  

   Year ended December 31,  

   2014    2013    2012  

   
Common 

shareholders    

Unvested 
restricted stock 
shareholders    Total    

Common 
shareholders    

Unvested 
restricted stock 
shareholders    Total    

Common 
shareholders    

Unvested 
restricted stock 
shareholders    Total  

Numerator:                                             
Net income 

attributable to 
Nelnet, Inc.  $ 304,540    3,070    307,610    300,043    2,629    302,672    176,647    1,350    177,997  

                                    

Denominator:                                             
Weighted-average 

common shares 
outstanding - 
basic and diluted  46,005,915    463,700    46,469,615    46,165,785    404,529    46,570,314    47,010,034    359,297    47,369,331  

Earnings per share - 
basic and diluted  $ 6.62    6.62    6.62    6.50    6.50    6.50    3.76    3.76    3.76  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 92 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
 
As of December 31, 2014 , the total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits (excluding the federal benefit received from state positions) was $21.3 
million , which is included in “other liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheet. Of this total, $13.9 million (net of the federal benefit on state issues) 
represents the amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affect the effective tax rate in future periods. The Company 
currently anticipates uncertain tax positions will decrease by $3.7 million prior to December 31, 2015 as a result of a lapse of applicable statutes of 
limitations, settlements, correspondence with examining authorities, and recognition or measurement considerations with federal and state jurisdictions; 
however, actual developments in this area could differ from those currently expected. Of the anticipated $3.7 million decrease, $2.4 million , if 
recognized, would favorably affect the Company's effective tax rate. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized tax 
benefits follows:  

 
All the reductions shown in the table above that are due to prior year tax positions and the lapse of statutes of limitations impacted the effective tax rate.  
 
The Company's policy is to recognize interest and penalties accrued on uncertain tax positions as part of interest expense and other expense, 
respectively. As of both December 31, 2014 and 2013 , $2.1 million in accrued interest and penalties were included in “other liabilities” on the 
consolidated balance sheets. The Company recognized a decrease to interest expense related to uncertain tax positions of $1.3 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2013, and interest expense of $0.1 million and $2.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2012 respectively. The Company 
reversed accrued penalties related to uncertain tax positions of $0.3 million in 2013 as a result of exam closures and statutes of limitation lapses. No 
penalties were accrued in 2014 and 2012 . The impact of timing differences and tax attributes are considered when calculating interest and penalty 
accruals associated with the unrecognized tax benefits.  
 
The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return in the U.S. and the Company or one of its subsidiaries files income tax 
returns in various state, local, and foreign jurisdictions. The Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations for years prior to 
2011. The Company is no longer subject to U.S. state/local income tax examinations by tax authorities prior to 2007. As of December 31, 2014 , the 
Company has significant tax uncertainties that remain unsettled in the following jurisdictions:  

 
California        2010 through 2012  
New York        2008 through 2011  
Texas            2007 through 2009  
 

 
F-38  

   Year ended December 31,  

   2014    2013  

Gross balance - beginning of year  $ 19,141    29,568  
Additions based on tax positions of prior years  1,421    996  
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year  4,393    3,812  
Settlements with taxing authorities  (833 )   (7,470 ) 

Reductions for tax positions of prior years  (641 )   (6,470 ) 

Reductions based on tax positions related to the current year  —   (272 ) 

Reductions due to lapse of applicable statutes of limitations  (2,145 )   (1,023 ) 

Gross balance - end of year  $ 21,336    19,141  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 93 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
The provision for income taxes consists of the following components:  

 
The differences between the income tax provision computed at the statutory federal corporate tax rate and the financial statement provision for income 
taxes are shown below:  

 
 

F-39  

   Year ended December 31,  

   2014    2013    2012  

Current:               

Federal  $ 138,269    153,756    118,490  
State  2,545    4,776    1,383  
Foreign  (235 )   122    33  

Total current provision  140,579    158,654    119,906  
            

Deferred:               

Federal  16,598    1,676    (23,460 ) 

State  3,464    868    (358 ) 

Foreign  (403 )   (5 )   (11 ) 

Total deferred provision (benefit)  19,659    2,539    (23,829 ) 

Provision for income tax expense  $ 160,238    161,193    96,077  

   Year ended December 31,  

   2014    2013    2012  

Tax expense at federal rate  35.0 
  
%   35.0 

  
%   35.0 

  
% 

Increase (decrease) resulting from:               

State tax, net of federal income tax benefit  0.7    0.8    0.5  
Provision for uncertain federal and state tax matters  0.4    (0.6)    0.2  
Tax credits  (0.4)    (0.4)    (0.6)  
Other  (1.4)    —   (0.1)  

Effective tax rate  34.3 
  
%   34.8 

  
%   35.0 

  
% 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 94 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities include the following:  

 
The Company has performed an evaluation of the recoverability of deferred tax assets. In assessing the realizability of the Company's deferred tax 
assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultimate 
realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the period in which those temporary differences 
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected taxable income, carry back opportunities, and tax 
planning strategies in making the assessment of the amount of the valuation allowance. With the exception of a portion of the Company's state net 
operating loss, it is management's opinion that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized and should not be reduced by a 
valuation allowance. The amount of deferred tax assets considered realizable could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income 
during the carry forward period are reduced.  
 
Included on the balance sheet at December 31, 2014 and 2013 was a current income tax receivable of $10.2 million and a current income tax payable of 
$4.1 million , respectively.  
 
 

F-40  

   As of December 31,  

   2014    2013  

Deferred tax assets:          

Student loans  $ 21,139    25,967  
Intangible assets  12,682    23,675  
Securitizations  7,626    10,407  
Capital loss carry-back  3,974    — 
Accrued expenses  2,872    4,162  
Stock compensation  2,490    1,608  
Deferred revenue  1,548    777  
Other  109    28  

Total gross deferred tax assets  52,440    66,624  
Less valuation allowance  (304 )   (239 ) 

Net deferred tax assets  52,136    66,385  
Deferred tax liabilities:          

Debt repurchases  24,918    32,286  
Loan origination services  19,258    23,750  
Basis in certain derivative contracts  15,692    2,137  
Depreciation  4,122    4,673  
Unrealized gain on debt and equity securities  3,016    2,830  
Partnership basis  1,143    — 

Total gross deferred tax liabilities  68,149    65,676  

Net deferred tax (liability) asset  $ (16,013 )   709  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 95 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
14.    Segment Reporting  
 
The Company has three reportable operating segments. The Company's reportable operating segments include:  
 

• Student Loan and Guaranty Servicing  
• Tuition Payment Processing and Campus Commerce  
• Asset Generation and Management  

 
The Company earns fee-based revenue through its Student Loan and Guaranty Servicing and Tuition Payment Processing operating segments. In 
addition, the Company earns interest income on its student loan portfolio in its Asset Generation and Management operating segment. The Company’s 
operating segments are defined by the products and services they offer and the types of customers they serve, and they reflect the manner in which 
financial information is currently evaluated by management. See note 1, "Description of Business," for a description of each operating segment, 
including the primary products and services offered.  
 
In 2014, management determined that the Company's Enrollment Services business no longer met the quantitative thresholds for which separate 
information about an operating segment is required. Prior period segment operating results were restated to conform to the current period presentation.  
 
The management reporting process measures the performance of the Company’s operating segments based on the management structure of the 
Company, as well as the methodology used by management to evaluate performance and allocate resources. Executive management (the "chief 
operating decision maker") evaluates the performance of the Company’s operating segments based on their financial results prepared in conformity with 
U.S. GAAP.    
 
The accounting policies of the Company’s operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. 
Intersegment revenues are charged by a segment that provides a product or service to another segment.  Intersegment revenues and expenses are 
included within each segment consistent with the income statement presentation provided to management.  Income taxes are allocated based on 38% of 
income before taxes for each individual operating segment. The difference between the consolidated income tax expense and the sum of taxes calculated 
for each operating segment is included in income taxes in Corporate and Other Activities.  
 
Corporate and Other Activities  
 
Other business activities and operating segments that are not reportable are combined and included in Corporate and Other Activities. Corporate and 
Other Activities includes the following items:  

 

 
Corporate and Other Activities also includes certain corporate activities and overhead functions related to executive management, human resources, 
accounting, legal, enterprise risk management, occupancy, and marketing. These costs are allocated to each operating segment based on estimated use of 
such activities and services.  
 
Segment Results  
 
The following tables include the results of each of the Company's reportable operating segments reconciled to the consolidated financial statements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

F-41  

•  Income earned on certain investment activities 
•  Interest expense incurred on unsecured debt transactions 
•  Other product and service offerings that are not considered reportable operating segments including, but not limited to, WRCM, the SEC-

registered investment advisory subsidiary, and the Enrollment Services business  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 96 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
 

 
F-42  

   Year ended December 31, 2014  

   
Student Loan and 

Guaranty Servicing    
Tuition Payment Processing 

and Campus Commerce    
Asset  

Generation and  
Management    

Corporate and 
Other Activities    Eliminations    Total  

Total interest income  $  30    6    703,382    8,618    (2,236 )   709,800  
Interest expense  —   —   269,742    5,731    (2,236 )   273,237  

Net interest income  30    6    433,640    2,887    —   436,563  
Less provision for loan losses  —   —   9,500    —   —   9,500  

Net interest income after provision for loan 
losses  30    6    424,140    2,887    —   427,063  

Other income (expense):                              
Loan and guaranty servicing revenue  240,414    —   —   —   —   240,414  
Intersegment servicing revenue  55,139    —   —   —   (55,139 )   — 
Tuition payment processing, school 

information, and campus commerce 
revenue  —   98,156    —   —   —   98,156  

Enrollment services revenue  —   —   —   82,883    —   82,883  
Other income  —   1,268    21,532    31,202    —   54,002  

Gain on sale of loans and debt repurchases, 
net  —   —   (1,357 )   5,008    —   3,651  

Derivative market value and foreign 
currency adjustments, net  —   —   42,935    (5,232 )    —   37,703  

Derivative settlements, net  —   —   (20,818 )   (1,025 )    —   (21,843 ) 

Total other income (expense)  295,553    99,424    42,292    112,836    (55,139 )   494,966  
Operating expenses:                              

Salaries and benefits  138,584    48,453    2,316    38,726    —   228,079  
Cost to provide enrollment services  —   —   —   53,307    —   53,307  
Depreciation and amortization  10,742    8,169    —   2,223    —   21,134  
Other  70,211    13,006    33,611    33,162    —   149,990  
Intersegment expenses, net  4,208    5,864    55,808    (10,741 )    (55,139 )   — 

Total operating expenses  223,745    75,492    91,735    116,677    (55,139 )   452,510  
Income (loss) before income taxes and 

corporate overhead allocation  71,838    23,938    374,697    (954 )    —   469,519  
Corporate overhead allocation  (9,029 )    (3,010 )    (5,017 )   17,056    —   — 

Income before income taxes  62,809    20,928    369,680    16,102    —   469,519  
Income tax (expense) benefit  (23,867 )    (7,952 )    (140,477 )   12,058    —   (160,238 ) 

Net income  38,942    12,976    229,203    28,160    —   309,281  
  Net income attributable to noncontrolling 

interest  —   —   —   1,671    —   1,671  
Net income attributable to Nelnet, Inc.  $  38,942    12,976    229,203    26,489    —   307,610  

                        

Total assets  $  84,495    231,991    29,505,439    497,147    (220,929 )   30,098,143  

                        

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 97 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 

 
F-43  

   Year ended December 31, 2013  

   
Student Loan and 

Guaranty Servicing    
Tuition Payment Processing 

and Campus Commerce    
Asset  

Generation and  
Management    

Corporate and 
Other Activities    Eliminations    Total  

Total interest income  $  40    —   638,604    9,433    (3,267 )   644,810  
Interest expense  —   —   229,533    4,669    (3,267 )   230,935  

Net interest income  40    —   409,071    4,764    —   413,875  
Less provision for loan losses  —   —   18,500    —   —   18,500  

Net interest income after provision for loan 
losses  40    —   390,571    4,764    —   395,375  

Other income (expense):                              
Loan and guaranty servicing revenue  243,428    —   —   —   —   243,428  
Intersegment servicing revenue  56,744    —   —   —   (56,744 )   — 
Tuition payment processing, school 

information, and campus commerce 
revenue  —   80,682    —   —   —   80,682  

Enrollment services revenue  —   —   —   98,078    —   98,078  
Other income  —   —   15,223    32,218    (1,143 )   46,298  

Gain on sale of loans and debt repurchases  —   —   11,004    695    —   11,699  
Derivative market value and foreign 

currency adjustments, net  —   —   35,256    13,337    —   48,593  
Derivative settlements, net  —   —   (27,966 )   (1,670 )    —   (29,636 ) 

Total other income (expense)  300,172    80,682    33,517    142,658    (57,887 )   499,142  
Operating expenses:                              

Salaries and benefits  119,092    37,575    2,292    37,210    —   196,169  
Cost to provide enrollment services  —   —   —   64,961    —   64,961  
Depreciation and amortization  11,419    4,518    —   2,374    —   18,311  
Other  79,116    9,147    30,945    31,477    (1,143 )   149,542  
Intersegment expenses, net  4,359    5,989    57,572    (11,176 )    (56,744 )   — 

Total operating expenses  213,986    57,229    90,809    124,846    (57,887 )   428,983  
Income before income taxes and 

corporate overhead allocation  86,226    23,453    333,279    22,576    —   465,534  
Corporate overhead allocation  (6,150 )    (1,957 )    (3,896 )   12,003    —   — 

Income before income taxes  80,076    21,496    329,383    34,579    —   465,534  
Income tax (expense) benefit  (30,430 )    (8,168 )    (125,165 )   2,570    —   (161,193 ) 

Net income  49,646    13,328    204,218    37,149    —   304,341  
  Net income attributable to noncontrolling 

interest  —   —   —   1,669    —   1,669  
Net income attributable to Nelnet, Inc.  $  49,646    13,328    204,218    35,480    —   302,672  

Total assets  $  84,986    219,064    27,387,461    425,959    (346,621 )   27,770,849  

                        

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 98 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 

 
15. Major Customer  
 
The Company earns loan servicing revenue from a servicing contract with the Department that currently expires on June 16, 2019. Revenue earned by 
the Company's Student Loan and Guaranty Servicing operating segment related to this contract was $124.4 million , $97.4 million , and $69.5 million 
for the year s ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 , respectively.  
 
16. Legal Proceedings and Regulatory Matters  
 
Legal Proceedings  
 
General  
 
The Company is subject to various legal proceedings that arise in the normal course of business, including the legal proceedings discussed below. These 
matters frequently involve claims by student loan borrowers disputing the manner in which their student loans have been serviced or the accuracy of 
reports to credit bureaus, claims by student loan borrowers or other consumers alleging that state or Federal consumer protection laws have been 
violated in the process of collecting loans or conducting other business activities, and disputes with other business entities. From time to time, lawsuits 
may be brought as, or subsequently amended to assert claims in the form of, putative class action cases.  
 

F-44  

   Year ended December 31, 2012  

   
Student Loan and 

Guaranty Servicing    
Tuition Payment Processing 

and Campus Commerce    
Asset  

Generation and  
Management    

Corporate and 
Other Activities    Eliminations    Total  

Total interest income  $  53    8    610,194    7,305    (3,707 )   613,853  
Interest expense  —   —   263,788    8,485    (3,707 )   268,566  

Net interest income  53    8    346,406    (1,180 )    —   345,287  
Less provision for loan losses  —   —   21,500    —   —   21,500  

Net interest income after provision for loan 
losses  53    8    324,906    (1,180 )    —   323,787  

Other income (expense):                              
Loan and guaranty servicing revenue  209,748    —   —   —   —   209,748  
Intersegment servicing revenue  65,376    —   —   —   (65,376 )   — 
Tuition payment processing, school 

information, and campus commerce 
revenue  —   74,410    —   —   —   74,410  

Enrollment services revenue  —   —   —   117,925    —   117,925  
Other income  —   —   18,219    21,257    —   39,476  

Gain on sale of loans and debt repurchases  —   —   3,814    325    —   4,139  
Derivative market value and foreign 

currency adjustments, net  —   —   (51,809 )   4,415    —   (47,394 ) 

Derivative settlements, net  —   —   (11,792 )   (2,230 )    —   (14,022 ) 

Total other income (expense)  275,124    74,410    (41,568 )   141,692    (65,376 )   384,282  
Operating expenses:                              

Salaries and benefits  115,126    34,314    2,252    41,134    —   192,826  
Cost to provide enrollment services  —   —   —   78,375    —   78,375  
Depreciation and amortization  18,415    7,240    —   7,970    —   33,625  
Other  70,505    10,439    16,435    31,359    —   128,738  
Intersegment expenses, net  5,280    5,383    66,215    (11,502 )    (65,376 )   — 

Total operating expenses  209,326    57,376    84,902    147,336    (65,376 )   433,564  
Income (loss) before income taxes and 

corporate overhead allocation  65,851    17,042    198,436    (6,824 )    —   274,505  
Corporate overhead allocation  (5,904 )    (1,968 )    (5,306 )   13,178    —   — 

Income before income taxes  59,947    15,074    193,130    6,354    —   274,505  
Income tax (expense) benefit  (22,780 )    (5,728 )    (73,387 )   5,818    —   (96,077 ) 

Net income  37,167    9,346    119,743    12,172    —   178,428  
  Net income attributable to noncontrolling 

interest  —   —   —   431    —   431  
Net income attributable to Nelnet, Inc.  $  37,167    9,346    119,743    11,741    —   177,997  

Total assets  $  90,959    150,600    26,463,551    260,905    (358,120 )   26,607,895  

                        

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 99 / 138



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 100 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
 
In evaluating each of its legal proceedings, the Company considers many factors that involve significant risks and uncertainties inherent in the overall 
litigation process, including (i) the amount of damages and the nature of any other relief sought in the proceeding, if specified; (ii) whether the 
proceeding is at an early stage; (iii) the impact of discovery; (iv) whether novel or unsettled legal theories are at issue; (v) the outcome of pending 
motions or appeals; (vi) whether there are significant factual issues to be resolved; (vii) whether class action status is sought and the Company's views of 
the likelihood of a class being certified by the court and the ultimate size of the class; (viii) the jurisdiction in which the proceeding is pending; (ix) the 
Company's views of the merits of the claims and of the strength of the Company's defenses; and (x) the progress of any negotiations with opposing 
parties. In assessing whether a legal proceeding may be material, the Company considers these and other quantitative and qualitative factors, including 
whether disclosure of the proceeding might be important to a reader of the Company's financial statements in light of all of the information about the 
Company that is available to the reader.  
 
Actions Requesting Certifications of Classes  
 
Proceedings or complaints that involve or ask for certifications of classes generally expand the scope of legal defense costs, as well as alleged potential 
claim amounts. The Company is currently subject to legal proceedings in which the plaintiffs have made allegations that one or more putative classes 
should be certified by the applicable court. With respect to the three proceedings specifically discussed below, it is significant to note that two matters 
have been settled and terminated for immaterial amounts, no putative class has actually been certified in the other proceeding still pending, the 
Company's position is that class certification would be inappropriate in that pending proceeding, and the Company has been granted a motion for a 
summary judgment dismissing the case and intends to vigorously contest the appeal and class certification in the remaining matter.  

 
 
Bais Yaakov of Spring Valley v. Peterson's Nelnet, LLC  
 
On January 4, 2011, a complaint against Peterson's Nelnet, LLC (“Peterson's”), a subsidiary of Nelnet, Inc. ("Nelnet"), was filed in the U.S. Federal 
District Court for the District of New Jersey. The complaint alleged that Peterson's sent six advertising faxes to the named plaintiff in 2008-2009 that 
were not the result of express invitation or permission granted by the plaintiff and did not include certain opt out language. The complaint also alleged 
that such faxes violated the Federal Telephone Consumer Protection Act (the “TCPA”), purportedly entitling the plaintiff to $500 per violation, trebled 
for willful violations for each of the six faxes. The complaint further alleged that Peterson's had sent putative class members more than 10,000 faxes that 
violated the TCPA, amounting to more than $5 million in statutory penalty damages and more than $15 million if trebled for willful violations. The 
complaint sought to establish a class action. On January 23, 2014, Peterson's and the named plaintiff reached an agreement in principle whereby 
Peterson's would, without admitting any wrongdoing or liability, settle all claims in the lawsuit, including potential class action claims, for payment of 
an immaterial amount. The settlement agreement in principle was finalized and received court approval on January 26, 2015.  
 

 
Than Zaw v. Nelnet, Inc.  
 
On January 18, 2013, a Third Amended Complaint was served on Nelnet in connection with a lawsuit by Than Zaw against Nelnet (erroneously referred 
to in the lawsuit as Nelnet Business Solutions, Inc.) in the Superior Court of the State of California, Contra Costa County. The case was subsequently 
moved to the U.S. Federal District Court for the Northern District of California. The lawsuit was originally instituted on December 30, 2010, and alleged 
that Nelnet violated the California Fair Debt Collection Practices Act in its interactions with the plaintiff, a California resident. The plaintiff's Third 
Amended Complaint added additional allegations claiming that Nelnet violated Section 632 of the California Penal Code by allegedly recording one or 
more telephone calls to the plaintiff without the plaintiff's consent, and sought $5,000 in statutory damages per alleged violation. The Third Amended 
Complaint further alleged that Nelnet improperly recorded telephone calls to other California residents without such persons' consent, and sought to 
establish a class action with respect to the California Section 632 claim. On October 16, 2013, Nelnet and the named plaintiff reached an agreement in 
principle whereby Nelnet would, without admitting any wrongdoing or liability, settle all claims in the lawsuit, including potential class action claims, 
for payment of an immaterial amount. The settlement agreement in principle was finalized and received court approval on November 13, 2014.  
 
 

F-45  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 101 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 

 
Grant Keating v. Peterson's Nelnet, LLC et al  
 
On August 6, 2012, an Amended Complaint was served on Peterson's, CUnet, LLC (“CUnet”), a subsidiary of Nelnet, and on  
Nelnet (collectively, the "Keating Defendants"), in connection with a lawsuit by Grant Keating in the U.S. Federal District Court for the Northern 
District of Ohio (the “Ohio District Court”). The lawsuit was originally instituted on August 24, 2011, and alleges that the Keating Defendants sent an 
advertising text message to the named plaintiff in June 2011 using an automatic telephone dialing system, and without the plaintiff's express consent. 
The complaint also alleges that this text message violated the TCPA, purportedly entitling the plaintiff to $500 , trebled for a willful violation. The 
complaint further alleges that the Keating Defendants sent putative class members similar text messages using an automatic telephone dialing system, 
without such purported class members' consent. The complaint seeks to establish a class action. On August 29, 2013, the Keating Defendants filed 
motions for summary judgment, and the named plaintiff filed a motion for class certification. On May 12, 2014, the Ohio District Court granted the 
Keating Defendants' motion for summary judgment, dismissing the case. On September 8, 2014, the named plaintiff filed an appeal brief with the 
Circuit Court of Appeals and on October 22, 2014, the Keating Defendants filed a responsive brief. As of the filing date of this report, the Ohio District 
Court has not established, recognized, or certified a class. The Keating Defendants intend to continue to defend themselves vigorously in this lawsuit.  
 
Due to the uncertainty and risks inherent in class determination and the overall litigation process, the Company believes that a meaningful estimate of a 
reasonably possible loss, if any, or range of reasonably possible losses, if any, for this lawsuit cannot currently be made.  
 
Regulatory Matters  
 
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau Examination  
 
The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the "Dodd-Frank Act") established the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the 
"CFPB"), which has broad authority to regulate a wide range of consumer financial products and services. On December 3, 2013, the CFPB issued a rule 
that allows the CFPB to supervise nonbank student loan servicers that handle more than one million borrowers, including the Company, thus giving the 
CFPB broad authority to examine, investigate, supervise, and otherwise regulate the Company's businesses, including the authority to impose fines and 
require changes with respect to any practices that the CFPB finds to be unfair, deceptive, or abusive.  
 
The CFPB is currently conducting its initial supervisory examination of the large nonbank student loan servicers, including the Company. If the CFPB 
were to determine the Company was not in compliance, it is possible that this could result in material adverse consequences, including, without 
limitation, settlements, fines, penalties, adverse regulatory actions, changes in the Company's practices, or other actions. However, the Company is 
unable to estimate at this time any potential financial or other impact that could result from the CFPB's examination, in the event that any adverse 
regulatory actions occur.  
 
17. Operating Leases  
 
The Company is committed under noncancelable operating leases for office space and equipment. Total rental expense incurred by the Company for the 
years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 was $8.8 million , $8.1 million , and $8.1 million , respectively. Minimum future rentals, as of 
December 31, 2014 , under noncancelable operating leases are shown below:  

 
 

F-46  

2015  $ 4,468  
2016  4,106  
2017  3,127  
2018  2,669  
2019  2,404  
2020 and thereafter  6,273  

   $ 23,047  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 102 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
18. Defined Contribution Benefit Plan  
 
The Company has a 401(k) savings plan that covers substantially all of its employees. Employees may contribute up to 100 percent of their pre-tax 
salary, subject to IRS limitations. The Company matches up to 100 percent on the first 3 percent of contributions and 50 percent on the next 2 percent . 
The Company made contributions to the plan of $4.2 million , $3.8 million , and $3.6 million during the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 
2012 , respectively.  
 
19. Stock Based Compensation Plans  
 
Restricted Stock Plan  
 
The following table summarizes restricted stock activity:  

 
As of December 31, 2014 , there was $9.0 million of unrecognized compensation cost included in “additional paid-in capital” on the consolidated 
balance sheet related to restricted stock, which is expected to be recognized as compensation expense as shown in the table below.  

 
For the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , the Company recognized compensation expense of $4.6 million , $3.1 million , and $2.2 
million , respectively, related to shares issued under the restricted stock plan, which is included in "salaries and benefits" on the consolidated statements 
of income.  
 
Employee Share Purchase Plan  
 
The Company has an employee share purchase plan pursuant to which employees are entitled to purchase Class A common stock from payroll 
deductions at a 15 percent discount from market value. During the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , the Company recognized 
compensation expense of approximately $131,000 , $148,000 , and $114,000 , respectively, in connection with issuing 18,140  shares, 18,004  shares, 
and 21,766  shares, respectively, under this plan.  
 
Non-employee Directors Compensation Plan  
 
The Company has a compensation plan for non-employee directors pursuant to which non-employee directors can elect to receive their annual retainer 
fees in the form of cash or Class A common stock. If a nonemployee director elects to receive Class A common stock, the number of shares of Class A 
common stock that are awarded is equal to the amount of the annual retainer fee otherwise payable in cash divided by 85 percent of the fair market value 
of a share of Class A common stock on the date the fee is payable. Non-employee directors who choose to receive Class A common stock may also elect 
to defer receipt of the Class A common stock until termination of their service on the board of directors.  
 
 

F-47  

   Year ended December 31,  

   2014    2013    2012  

Non-vested shares at beginning of year  407,051    378,671    285,718  
Granted  189,716    131,933    168,833  
Vested  (77,219 )   (62,491 )   (41,089 ) 

Canceled  (20,085 )   (41,062 )   (34,791 ) 

Non-vested shares at end of year  499,463    407,051    378,671  

2015  $ 3,694  
2016  2,174  
2017  1,261  
2018  736  
2019  439  
2020 and thereafter  694  

   $ 8,998  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 103 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
For the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , the Company recognized approximately $777,000 , $673,000 , and $688,000 , respectively, 
of expense related to this plan. The following table provides the number of shares awarded under this plan for the years ended December 31, 2014 , 
2013 , and 2012 .  
 

 
As of December 31, 2014 , a cumulative amount of 136,495 shares have been deferred by directors and will be issued upon the termination of their 
service on the board of directors. These shares are included in the Company's weighted average shares outstanding calculation.  
 

 
Transactions with Union Financial Services  
 
Union Financial Services, Inc. ("UFS") is owned 50 percent by Michael S. Dunlap, Executive Chairman and a member of the board of directors and a 
significant shareholder of the Company, and 50 percent by Stephen F. Butterfield, Vice Chairman and a member of the board of directors of the 
Company. During 2013, the Company purchased an aircraft for total consideration of $5.8 million and sold an interest in such aircraft to UFS for $2.0 
million . After the completion of this transaction, the Company and UFS own 65 percent and 35 percent of the aircraft, respectively.  
 
Transactions with Union Bank and Trust Company  
 
Union Bank and Trust Company ("Union Bank") is controlled by Farmers & Merchants Investment Inc. (“F&M”), which owns a majority of Union 
Bank's common stock and a minority share of Union Bank's non-voting preferred stock. Mr. Dunlap, along with his spouse and children, owns or 
controls a significant portion of the stock of F&M, and Mr. Dunlap's sister, Angela L. Muhleisen, along with her husband and children, also owns or 
controls a significant portion of F&M stock. Mr. Dunlap serves as a Director and Chairman of F&M. Ms. Muhleisen serves as Director and President of 
F&M and as a Director, Chairperson, President, and Chief Executive Officer of Union Bank. Union Bank is deemed to have beneficial ownership of a 
significant number of shares of the Company because it serves in a capacity of trustee or account manager for various trusts and accounts holding shares 
of the Company, and may share voting and/or investment power with respect to such shares. Mr. Dunlap and Ms. Muhleisen beneficially own a 
significant percent of the voting rights of the Company's outstanding common stock.  
 
The Company has entered into certain contractual arrangements with Union Bank. These transactions are summarized below.  
 
Loan Purchases and Sales  
 
During the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , the Company purchased FFELP student loans from Union Bank of $0.2 million (par 
value), $478.4 million (par value), and $0.3 million (par value), respectively. Loans purchased during 2013 were purchased at a discount of $11.4 
million . No discount or premium was paid for loans purchased during 2014 and 2012 .  
 
During 2014, the Company sold $16.5 million (par value) of private education loans to Union Bank. No discount or premium was received.  
 
On December 22, 2014, the Company entered into an agreement with Union Bank in which the Company will provide marketing, origination, and loan 
servicing services to Union Bank related to private education loans. The Company has committed to purchase, or arrange for a designee to purchase, all 
volume originated by Union Bank under this agreement. No loans were originated under this agreement in 2014.  
 
 

F-48  

   
Shares issued - 
not deferred    Shares- deferred    Total  

Year ended December 31, 2014  8,067    10,175    18,242  
Year ended December 31, 2013  10,156    5,279    15,435  
Year ended December 31, 2012  16,561    16,700    33,261  

20.  Related Parties 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 104 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
Loan Servicing  
 
The Company serviced $581.4 million , $598.9 million , and $445.8 million of FFELP and private education loans for Union Bank as of December 31, 
2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , respectively Servicing revenue earned by the Company from servicing loans for Union Bank was $0.4 million , $1.3 million , 
and $1.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , respectively. In September 2013, the servicing agreement between the 
Company and Union Bank was amended to change the calculation of servicing fees paid by Union Bank, which led to a decrease in the servicing 
revenue earned by the Company from Union Bank in 2014 compared to 2013. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , accounts receivable includes 
approximately $36,000 and $40,000 , respectively, due from Union Bank for loan servicing.  
 
Funding - Participation Agreement  
 
The Company maintains an agreement with Union Bank, as trustee for various grantor trusts, under which Union Bank has agreed to purchase from the 
Company participation interests in student loans (the “FFELP Participation Agreement”). The Company uses this facility as a source to fund FFELP 
student loans. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , $543.0 million and $342.5 million , respectively, of loans were subject to outstanding participation 
interests held by Union Bank, as trustee, under this agreement. The agreement automatically renews annually and is terminable by either party upon five 
business days notice. This agreement provides beneficiaries of Union Bank's grantor trusts with access to investments in interests in student loans, while 
providing liquidity to the Company on a short-term basis. The Company can participate loans to Union Bank to the extent of availability under the 
grantor trusts, up to $750 million or an amount in excess of $750 million if mutually agreed to by both parties. Loans participated under this agreement 
have been accounted for by the Company as loan sales. Accordingly, the participation interests sold are not included on the Company's consolidated 
balance sheets.  
 
Subparticipation Agreement  
 
On January 1, 2014, the Company subparticipated the Company's participation interest in a loan receivable from an unrelated third party to Union Bank. 
As of December 31, 2014 , the participated portion of the loan was $2.6 million , with an obligation to fund an additional $0.5 million . As part of this 
agreement, Union Bank will pay the Company monthly servicing fees equal to 40 basis points on the participated portion of the outstanding principal 
balance of the loan.  
 
Operating Cash Accounts  
 
The majority of the Company's cash operating accounts are maintained at Union Bank. The Company also invests amounts in the Short term Federal 
Investment Trust (“STFIT”) of the Student Loan Trust Division of Union Bank, which are included in “cash and cash equivalents - held at a related 
party” and “restricted cash - due to customers” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the Company 
had $107.6 million and $81.0 million , respectively, invested in the STFIT or deposited at Union Bank in operating accounts, of which $14.9 million and 
$26.3 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , respectively, represented cash collected for customers. Interest income earned by the Company on the 
amounts invested in the STFIT for the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , was $0.2 million , $0.1 million , and $0.2 million , 
respectively.  
 
529 Plan Administration Services  
 
The Company provides certain 529 Plan administration services to certain college savings plans (the “College Savings Plans”) through a contract with 
Union Bank, as the program manager. Union Bank is entitled to a fee as program manager pursuant to its program management agreement with the 
College Savings Plans. For the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , the Company has received fees of $3.4 million , $2.8 million , and 
$1.7 million , respectively, from Union Bank related to the administration services provided to the College Savings Plans.  
 
Lease Arrangements  
 
Union Bank leases approximately 4,000 square feet in the Company's corporate headquarters building. Union Bank paid the Company approximately 
$76,000 , $72,000 , and $74,000 for commercial rent and storage income during 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , respectively. The lease agreement expires on 
June 30, 2018.  
 
 

F-49  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 105 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
The Company had a lease agreement with Union Bank under which the Company leased office space. The Company paid Union Bank approximately 
$71,000 , $159,000 , and $43,000 during 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , respectively. The lease agreement expired in May 2014.  
 
Other Fees Paid to Union Bank  
 
During the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , the Company paid Union Bank approximately $57,000 , $107,000 , and $92,000 , 
respectively, in commissions; approximately $117,000 , $140,000 , and $187,000 , respectively, in cash management fees, and approximately $311,000 , 
$52,000 , and $0 , respectively, in connection with servicing opportunities for various asset classes. In addition, the Company pays Union Bank $36,000 
each year for administrative services.  
 
Other Fees Received from Union Bank  
 
During the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , Union Bank paid the Company approximately $178,000 , $170,000 , and $152,000 , 
respectively, under an employee sharing arrangement and approximately $14,000 , $18,000 , and $31,000 , respectively, for health and productivity 
services.  
 
401(k) Plan Administration  
 
Union Bank administers the Company's 401(k) defined contribution plan. Fees paid to Union Bank to administer the plan are paid by the plan 
participants and were approximately $450,000 , $370,000 , and $305,000 during the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , respectively.  
 
Investment Services  
 
Union Bank has established various trusts whereby Union Bank serves as trustee for the purpose of purchasing, holding, managing, and selling 
investments in student loan asset-backed securities. On May 9, 2011, WRCM, an SEC-registered investment advisor and a subsidiary of the Company, 
entered into a management agreement with Union Bank, effective as of May 1, 2011, under which WRCM performs various advisory and management 
services on behalf of Union Bank with respect to investments in securities by the trusts, including identifying securities for purchase or sale by the trusts. 
The agreement provides that Union Bank will pay to WRCM annual fees of 25 basis points on the outstanding balance of the investments in the trusts.  
As of December 31, 2014 , the outstanding balance of investments in the trusts was $536.0 million . In addition, Union Bank will pay additional fees to 
WRCM of up to 50 percent of the gains from the sale of securities from the trusts.  For the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , the 
Company earned $13.4 million , $12.9 million , and $8.4 million , respectively, of fees under this agreement.  
 
On January 20, 2012, WRCM entered into a management agreement with Union Bank under which it was designated to serve as investment advisor 
with respect to the assets within several trusts established by Mr. Dunlap. Union Bank serves as trustee for the trusts. Per the terms of this agreement, 
Union Bank pays WRCM five basis points of the aggregate value of the assets of the trusts as of the last day of each calendar quarter. Mr. Dunlap 
contributed a total of 3,375,000 shares of the Company's Class B common stock to the trusts upon the establishment thereof. For the years ended 
December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , the Company earned approximately $66,000 , $61,000 , and $44,000 , respectively, of fees under this agreement.  
 
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , accounts receivable included $1.7 million and $3.3 million , respectively, due from Union Bank related to fees 
earned by WRCM from the investment services described above.  
 
WRCM has established five private investment funds for the primary purpose of purchasing, selling, investing, and trading, directly or indirectly, in 
student loan asset-backed securities, and to engage in financial transactions related thereto. Mr. Dunlap, UFS, Jeffrey R. Noordhoek (an executive 
officer of the Company), F&M, Ms. Muhleisen and her spouse, and WRCM have invested in certain of these funds. Based upon the current level of 
holdings by non-affiliated limited partners, the management agreements provide non-affiliated limited partners the ability to remove WRCM as manager 
without cause. WRCM earns 50 basis points (annually) on the outstanding balance of the investments in these funds, of which WRCM pays 
approximately 50 percent of such amount to Union Bank as custodian.  As of December 31, 2014 , the outstanding balance of investments in these five 
funds was $144.9 million . For the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 , and 2012 , the Company paid Union Bank $0.3 million , $0.3 million , and 
$0.1 million , respectively, as custodian.  
 
 

F-50  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 106 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
21.  Fair Value  
 
The following tables present the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. There were no transfers 
into or out of level 1, level 2, or level 3 for the year ended December 31, 2014 .  

 

 

 
When determining the fair value of derivatives, the Company takes into account counterparty credit risk for positions where it is exposed to the 
counterparty on a net basis by assessing exposure net of collateral held. The net exposures for each counterparty are adjusted based on market 
information available for the specific counterparty.  

 
 

F-51  

   As of December 31, 2014     As of December 31, 2013  

   Level 1    Level 2    Total     Level 1    Level 2    Total  

Assets:                               

Investments: (a)                               

Student loan asset-backed securities  $ —   145,000    145,000     —   188,279    188,279  
Equity securities  3,736    —   3,736     3,282    —   3,282  
Debt securities  387    —   387     479    —   479  

      Total investments  4,123    145,000    149,123     3,761    188,279    192,040  
Fair value of derivative instruments (b)  —   64,392    64,392     —   62,507    62,507  

      Total assets  $ 4,123    209,392    213,515     3,761    250,786    254,547  

Liabilities:                               

Fair value of derivative instruments (b):  $ —   32,842    32,842     —   17,969    17,969  

      Total liabilities  $ —   32,842    32,842     —   17,969    17,969  

(a)  Investments represent investments recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Level 1 investments are measured based upon quoted prices and 
include investments traded on an active exchange, such as the New York Stock Exchange, and corporate bonds, mortgage-backed securities, 
U.S. government bonds, and U.S. Treasury securities that trade in active markets. Level 2 investments include student loan asset-backed 
securities. The fair value for the student loan asset-backed securities is determined using indicative quotes from broker-dealers or an income 
approach valuation technique (present value using the discount rate adjustment technique) that considers, among other things, rates currently 
observed in publicly traded debt markets for debt of similar terms issued by companies with comparable credit risk.  

(b)  All derivatives are accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis.  The fair value of derivative financial instruments is determined using a 
market approach in which derivative pricing models use the stated terms of the contracts and observable yield curves, forward foreign currency 
exchange rates, and volatilities from active markets.    

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 107 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
The following table summarizes the fair values of all of the Company’s financial instruments on the consolidated balance sheets:  
 

 

 
The methodologies for estimating the fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis are previously 
discussed.  The remaining financial assets and liabilities were estimated using the following methods and assumptions:  
 
Student Loans Receivable  
 
If the Company has the ability and intent to hold loans for the foreseeable future, such loans are held for investment and carried at amortized cost. Fair 
values for student loan receivables were determined by modeling loan cash flows using stated terms of the assets and internally-developed assumptions 
to determine aggregate portfolio yield, net present value, and average life. The significant assumptions used to project cash flows are prepayment 
speeds, default rates, cost of funds, required return on equity, and future interest rate and index relationships. A number of significant inputs into the 
models are internally derived and not observable to market participants.  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash, Restricted Cash – Due to Customers, Restricted Investments, Accrued Interest Receivable/Payable and 
Due to Customers  
 
The carrying amount approximates fair value due to the variable rate of interest and/or the short maturities of these instruments.  
 
 

F-52  

   As of December 31, 2014  

   Fair value    Carrying value    Level 1    Level 2    Level 3  

Financial assets:                         

Student loans receivable  $ 28,954,266    28,005,195    —   —   28,954,266  
Cash and cash equivalents  130,481    130,481    130,481    —   — 
Investments  149,123    149,123    4,123    145,000    — 
Restricted cash  800,164    800,164    800,164    —   — 
Restricted cash – due to customers  118,488    118,488    118,488    —   — 
Restricted investments  50,276    50,276    50,276    —   — 
Accrued interest receivable  351,588    351,588    —   351,588    — 
Derivative instruments  64,392    64,392    —   64,392    — 

Financial liabilities:                         

Bonds and notes payable  27,809,997    28,027,350    —   27,809,997    — 
Accrued interest payable  25,904    25,904    —   25,904    — 
Due to customers  118,488    118,488    118,488    —   — 
Derivative instruments  32,842    32,842    —   32,842    — 

   As of December 31, 2013  

   Fair value    Carrying value    Level 1    Level 2    Level 3  

Financial assets:                         

Student loans receivable  $ 26,641,383    25,907,589    —   —   26,641,383  
Cash and cash equivalents  63,267    63,267    63,267    —   — 
Investments  192,040    192,040    3,761    188,279    — 
Restricted cash  727,838    727,838    727,838    —   — 
Restricted cash – due to customers  167,576    167,576    167,576    —   — 
Restricted investments  7,285    7,285    7,285    —   — 
Accrued interest receivable  314,553    314,553    —   314,553    — 
Derivative instruments  62,507    62,507    —   62,507    — 

Financial liabilities:                         

Bonds and notes payable  25,577,250    25,955,289    —   25,577,250    — 
Accrued interest payable  21,725    21,725    —   21,725    — 
Due to customers  167,576    167,576    167,576    —   — 
Derivative instruments  17,969    17,969    —   17,969    — 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 108 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
Bonds and Notes Payable  
 
Bonds and notes payable are accounted for at cost in the financial statements except when denominated in a foreign currency. Foreign currency-
denominated borrowings are re-measured at current spot rates in the financial statements. The fair value of bonds and notes payable was determined 
from quotes from broker-dealers or through standard bond pricing models using the stated terms of the borrowings, observable yield curves, and market 
credit spreads. Fair value adjustments for unsecured corporate debt are made based on indicative quotes from observable trades.  
 
Limitations  
 
The fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market information and information about the financial instruments. 
Because no market exists for a significant portion of the Company's financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future 
expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors. These estimates are 
subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Therefore, the 
calculated fair value estimates in many instances cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, may not be 
realizable in a current sale of the instrument.  Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.  
 
22. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)  

 
F-53  

   2014  

   First quarter    Second quarter    Third quarter    Fourth quarter  

Net interest income  $ 98,871    107,713    117,487    112,492  
Less provision for loan losses  2,500    1,500    2,000    3,500  
Net interest income after provision for loan losses  96,371    106,213    115,487    108,992  
Loan and guaranty servicing revenue  64,757    66,460    52,659    56,538  
Tuition payment processing and campus commerce revenue  25,235    21,834    26,399    24,688  
Enrollment services revenue  22,011    20,145    22,936    17,791  
Other income  18,131    15,315    7,650    12,906  
Gain on sale of loans and debt repurchases, net  39    18    —   3,594  
Derivative market value and foreign currency adjustments and derivative settlements, 

net  (4,265 )    1,570    24,203    (5,648 )  

Salaries and benefits  (52,484 )    (53,888 )    (61,098 )    (60,609 )  

Cost to provide enrollment services  (14,475 )    (13,311 )    (14,178 )    (11,343 )  

Depreciation and amortization  (4,783 )    (5,214 )    (5,493 )    (5,644 )  

Operating expenses - other  (35,627 )    (40,377 )    (36,676 )    (37,310 )  

Income tax expense  (40,611 )    (43,078 )    (46,513 )    (30,036 )  

Net income  74,299    75,687    85,376    73,919  
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest  513    693    157    308  

Net income attributable to Nelnet, Inc.  $ 73,786    74,994    85,219    73,611  

Earnings per common share:                    

Net income attributable to Nelnet, Inc. shareholders - basic and diluted  $ 1.59    1.61    1.84    1.59  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 109 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 

 
F-54  

   2013  

   First quarter    Second quarter    Third quarter    Fourth quarter  

Net interest income  $ 98,798    101,419    104,922    108,736  
Less provision for loan losses  5,000    5,000    5,000    3,500  
Net interest income after provision for loan losses  93,798    96,419    99,922    105,236  
Loan and guaranty servicing revenue  55,601    60,078    64,582    63,167  
Tuition payment processing and campus commerce revenue  23,411    18,356    19,927    18,988  
Enrollment services revenue  28,957    24,823    22,563    21,735  
Other income  9,416    12,288    8,613    15,981  
Gain on sale of loans and debt repurchases, net  1,407    7,355    2,138    799  
Derivative market value and foreign currency adjustments and derivative settlements, 

net  1,072    40,188    (16,648 )    (5,655 )  

Salaries and benefits  (47,905 )    (47,432 )    (48,712 )    (52,120 )  

Cost to provide enrollment services  (19,642 )    (16,787 )    (14,668 )    (13,864 )  

Depreciation and amortization  (4,377 )    (4,320 )    (4,340 )    (5,274 )  

Operating expenses - other  (34,941 )    (34,365 )    (39,887 )    (40,349 )  

Income tax expense  (38,447 )    (54,746 )    (30,444 )    (37,556 )  

Net income  68,350    101,857    63,046    71,088  
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest  271    614    216    568  

Net income attributable to Nelnet, Inc.  $ 68,079    101,243    62,830    70,520  

Earnings per common share:                    

Net income attributable to Nelnet, Inc. shareholders - basic and diluted  $ 1.46    2.17    1.35    1.52  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 110 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 
23. Condensed Parent Company Financial Statements  
 
The following represents the condensed balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and condensed statements of income, comprehensive income, 
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2014 for Nelnet, Inc.  
 
The Company is limited in the amount of funds that can be transferred to it by its subsidiaries through intercompany loans, advances, or cash dividends. 
These limitations relate to the restrictions by trust indentures under the education lending subsidiaries debt financing arrangements. The amounts of cash 
and investments restricted in the respective reserve accounts of the education lending subsidiaries are shown on the consolidated balance sheets as 
restricted cash and investments.  

 
F-55  

Balance Sheets  
(Parent Company Only)  

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013  

   2014    2013  

Assets:          

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 30,712    24,032  
Investments  136,432    175,887  
Investment in subsidiary debt  122,057    233,095  
Restricted cash  127    3,763  
Investment in subsidiaries  1,300,032    957,676  
Other assets  283,831    272,910  
Fair value of derivative instruments  64,392    25,673  

Total assets  $ 1,937,583    1,693,036  

Liabilities:          

Notes payable  $ 149,265    191,457  
Other liabilities  50,253    39,620  
Fair value of derivative instruments  12,387    17,969  

Total liabilities  211,905    249,046  
Equity:          

Nelnet, Inc. shareholders' equity:          

Common stock  463    464  
Additional paid-in capital  17,290    24,887  
Retained earnings  1,702,560    1,413,492  
Accumulated other comprehensive earnings  5,135    4,819  

Total Nelnet, Inc. shareholders' equity  1,725,448    1,443,662  
Noncontrolling interest  230    328  

Total equity  1,725,678    1,443,990  

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity  $ 1,937,583    1,693,036  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 111 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 

 
 

 
 

F-56  

Statements of Income  
(Parent Company Only)  

Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012  

   2014    2013    2012  

Investment interest  $ 6,863    7,911    5,186  
Interest on bonds and notes payable  5,492    4,433    3,607  

Net interest income  1,371    3,478    1,579  
Other income (expense):               

Other income  8,943    7,112    8,010  
Gain from debt repurchases  6,685    11,905    4,487  
Equity in subsidiaries income  316,934    275,989    224,011  
Derivative market value adjustments and derivative settlements, net  14,963    28,134    (47,262 )  

Total other income  347,525    323,140    189,246  
Operating expenses  5,598    5,626    1,867  

Income before income taxes  343,298    320,992    188,958  
Income tax expense  (34,017 )    (16,651 )    (10,530 )  

Net income  309,281    304,341    178,428  
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest  1,671    1,669    431  

Net income attributable to Nelnet, Inc.  $ 307,610    302,672    177,997  

Statements of Comprehensive Income  

(Parent Company Only)  

Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012  

   2014    2013    2012  

Net income  $ 309,281    304,341    178,428  
Other comprehensive income:               

Available-for-sale securities:               

Unrealized holding gains arising during period, net  9,006    9,134    10,230  
Less reclassification adjustment for gains recognized in net income, net of losses  (8,506 )    (5,938 )    (5,798 )  

Income tax effect  (184 )    (1,190 )    (1,619 )  

Total other comprehensive income  316    2,006    2,813  
Comprehensive income  309,597    306,347    181,241  
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest  1,671    1,669    431  

Comprehensive income attributable to Nelnet, Inc.  $ 307,926    304,678    180,810  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 112 / 138



NELNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – (continued)  

(Dollars in thousands, except share amounts, unless otherwise noted)  
 

 
 

F-57  

Statements of Cash Flows  

(Parent Company Only)  

Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012  

   2014    2013    2012  

Net income attributable to Nelnet, Inc.  $ 307,610    302,672    177,997  
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest  1,671    1,669    431  

Net income  309,281    304,341    178,428  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used by) provided by operating 

activities:               

Depreciation and amortization  303    284    249  
Derivative market value adjustment  (36,979 )   (57,525 )   30,041  
Proceeds (payments) to terminate and/or amend derivative instruments, net  1,765    (6,469 )   (6,005 ) 

Payment for interest rate swap option  (9,087 )   —   — 
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries  (316,934 )   (275,989 )   (224,011 ) 

Gain from sale of available-for-sale securities, net  (8,506 )   (5,938 )   (5,798 ) 

Gain from debt repurchases  (6,685 )   (11,905 )   (4,487 ) 

Other non-cash items  5,396    3,835    3,569  
Decrease in other assets  4,057    209,896    168,656  
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities  12,512    16,205    (38,971 ) 

Net cash (used by) provided by operating activities  (44,877 )   176,735    101,671  
Cash flows from investing activities               

Decrease (increase) in restricted cash  3,636    59,495    (29,082 ) 

Purchases of available-for-sale securities  (192,315 )   (217,415 )   (186,727 ) 

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities  240,371    116,337    162,533  
Capital contributions to/from subsidiaries, net  (25,017 )   —   — 
Sales (purchases) of subsidiary debt, net  111,038    (66,272 )   (6,584 ) 

Purchases of other investments, net  (14,769 )   (11,758 )   — 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  122,944    (119,613 )   (59,860 ) 

Cash flows from financing activities:               

Payments on notes payable  (63,084 )   (147,080 )   (109,748 ) 

Proceeds from issuance of notes payable  27,577    135,000    153,380  
Payments of debt issuance costs  (512 )   (644 )   (1,111 ) 

Dividends paid  (18,542 )   (18,569 )   (66,237 ) 

Repurchases of common stock  (15,713 )   (13,136 )   (22,763 ) 

Proceeds from issuance of common stock  656    561    480  
Payments received on employee stock notes receivable  —   —   1,140  
Issuance of noncontrolling interest  201    5    5  
Distribution to noncontrolling interest  (1,970 )   (1,351 )   (431 ) 

Net cash used in financing activities  (71,387 )   (45,214 )   (45,285 ) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  6,680    11,908    (3,474 ) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period  24,032    12,124    15,598  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  $ 30,712    24,032    12,124  

            

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 113 / 138



 

RESOLUTION 15 - 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA: 

 a. On January 19, 2010, the City of Scottsbluff granted a franchise (the 

“Franchise”), pursuant to Article 5 or Chapter 11 of the Municipal Code (the “Code”), for a 

Cable System to Allo Twin Cities, LLC (the “Franchisee”). Capitalized terms not otherwise 

defined in this Resolution shall have the same meaning as provided for in the Franchise 

Agreement. 

 b. The Franchisee is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allo Communications, LLC 

(“Allo”). Allo has entered into an agreement with Nelnet, Inc. (“Nelnet”) which will provide for 

Nelnet acquiring 92.5% of the ownership interests of Allo (the “Transaction”). The remaining 

ownership interests will be held by the current management and owners of Allo. 

 c. The result of the acquisition by Nelnet will mean an indirect change in control of 

the Franchisee and the Franchisee has requested the City’s consent pursuant to Section 38 of the 

Cable Ordinance. 

 d. The Franchisee has submitted information concerning the acquisition by Nelnet, 

to include financial information for Nelnet, which information has been reviewed by the City. 

Resolved by the Mayor and City Council of the City that: 

1. Pursuant to Section 11-5-38 of the Code, the Council has considered the information 

submitted to it by Allo and Nelnet, along with the following: 

 a. the qualifications of Nelnet, to include the financial ability and stability of Nelnet. 

 b. the experience of Nelnet and Allo. 

 c. the legal integrity of the Franchisee, Allo and Nelnet, and the connection between 

the Franchisee, Allo and Nelnet. 

 d. the economic viability of the Cable System in the future. 

2. Based on the consideration of the above factors, the City consents to the Transaction. 

2. The Franchisee shall continue to be bound by all of the obligations and liabilities of the 

Franchise and the Cable Ordinance. 

3. This Resolution shall be considered effective as of this date. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 114 / 138



 

Passed and approved on December 21, 2015. 

 

 

      ______________________________________ 

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Cindy Dickinson, City Clerk 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 115 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Reports3

Council discussion of LB 357 proposal and give directions to staff. 

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 116 / 138



Cindy: The attached draft of a Resolution should be included in the packet for Monday night – 

for the discussion concerning the additional LB357 Sales Tax. I will be covering the meeting on 

Monday – so will be there to answer questions. I have highlighted certain portions of the draft of 

the Resolution where City Council input is particularly needed. Feel free to include this email in 

the packet as background. 

The particular areas where input from the Council members is needed (as highlighted) are: 

1.    The types of infrastructure projects to be included. What is in the Resolution now is a list 
of the types of projects that can be funded with the additional sales tax as per Nebraska 
law. We wanted the Council members to be aware of all of the options and they can 
provide direction to those that they would like eliminated. 
 

2.     The City must partner with another governmental entity and enter into an Interlocal 
Agreement. The creation of a Community Redevelopment Authority (“CRA”) has been 
discussed for some time, but the Council decided at the presentation that was made in 
August to put it on hold for consideration of until the next budget year, since a decision 
as to funding the CRA was critical. We have done the research on the staff level and can 
have a CRA Ordinance ready to go by the next meeting, if that is the desire of the 
Council. There are many options as to other entities that could be used, but we felt that 
the CRA gave the City the greatest amount of flexibility. 
 

3.    A portion of the additional one-half cent City Sales Tax can be used to fund the newly 
created Interlocal Agency. This may also be a way to provide funding for the CRA. The 
down side to this is, of course, that any such portion of those funds will not be available 
for public infrastructure. 
 

4.    The term of the additional one-half cent tax is 10 years or the length of time need to pay 
off bonds for the funded projects, whichever is longer. If, however, at least 1/8% is used 
for funding the Interlocal Agency, then that portion of the tax (rounded to ¼%) goes on 
indefinitely. To further explain, this would mean that of the additional one-half cent sales 
tax, 1/8 of a cent (or 25% of the additional tax) would be used for funding the Interlocal 
Agency and the other 3/8 of a cent would be used for public infrastructure. We have not 
completed our research on what the Interlocal Agency could use the 1/8 cent for, as the 
statute provides no guidance in that area, but can do further investigation. 

 

Nathan, Liz and I participated in a phone conference with Scott Keene of Ameritas Investments 

on Thursday. Since most of the projects funded with the additional sales tax will be bonded, Liz 

contacted Scott for input from the bonding perspective. Scott provided a lot of good input and 

has offered to have their bond counsel review our Resolution to make sure that we avoid issues 

that have come up in other communities when it came to bonding their projects. We should 

have that input prior to the next City Council meeting. 

 

Rick L. Ediger 

Simmons Olsen Law Firm, P.C. 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 117 / 138



 1502 2nd Avenue 

Scottsbluff, NE 69361 

(308) 632-3811; (308) 635-0907 (Fax) 

Website  

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 118 / 138

http://www.simmonsolsen.com/


RESOLUTION NO. 16- ____ 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA: 

 

a. The City currently imposes a City Sales and Use Tax in the amount of 1.5% 

pursuant to the Local Option Revenue Act, sections 77-27,142, et seq. of the Nebraska Statutes 

(the “Existing City Sales and Use Tax”)   

 

b. The City is in need of additional revenue in order to provide for public 

infrastructure projects. 

 

c. §77-27,142 of the Nebraska Statutes allows the City Council to impose an 

additional one-half of one percent (1/2%) sales tax in addition to the Existing City Sales and Use 

Tax for the purpose of funding public infrastructure projects, following an election at which a 

majority of the qualified electors of the City approve such additional sales and use tax; 

 

Resolved by the Mayor and City Council of the City that: 

 

1. At the May 10, 2016 primary election, the following proposition in the form shown 

below shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the City for their approval or disapproval at 

the primary election: 

 

Shall the City Council of the City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska increase the local sales 

and use tax rate by an additional one-half of one percent (½%) from the current 

rate of one and one-half percent (1½%) to a total rate of two percent (2%) and 

impose a sales and use tax at the increased rate upon the same transactions within 

the City on which the State of Nebraska is authorized to impose a tax, subject to 

the terms and conditions set out below? 

 

   Yes (For increasing the Sales and Use Tax) 

 

   No (Against increasing the Sales and Use Tax) 

 

Terms and Conditions:  The terms and conditions of the proposition are as 

follows: 

 

a. No reductions or elimination of other taxes or fees is contemplated. 

 

b. Revenues from the increased sales and use tax are to be used for public 

infrastructure projects as are allowed pursuant to §77-27,142 of the Nebraska 

Statutes, including, but not limited to, public highways and bridges and municipal 

roads, streets, bridges, and sidewalks; solid waste management facilities; 

wastewater, storm water, and water treatment works and systems, water 

distribution facilities, and water resources projects, including, but not limited to, 

pumping stations, transmission lines, and mains and their appurtenances; 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 119 / 138



2 

 

hazardous waste disposal systems; resource recovery systems; airports; port 

facilities; buildings and capital equipment used in the operation of municipal 

government; convention and tourism facilities; redevelopment projects as defined 

in §18-2103 of the Nebraska Statutes; mass transit and other transportation 

systems, including parking facilities; and equipment necessary for the provision 

of municipal services.  

 

c.  The City and the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 

Scottsbluff have entered into an interlocal agreement which created a separate 

administrative entity for purposes of the interlocal agreement, related to public 

infrastructure projects. The interlocal agreement contains provisions, including 

benchmarks, relating to the long-term development of unified governance of 

public infrastructure projects with respect to the parties. A portion of the rate 

greater than one and one-half percent, such portion being at least one-eighth 

percent (1/8%), shall be imposed for the purpose of the interlocal agreement. 

 

d. The increased sales and use tax shall terminate no more than ten years 

after the effective date of the increased sales and use tax or, if bonds are issued 

and the local option sales and use tax revenue is pledged for payment of such 

bonds, upon payment of such bonds and any refunding bonds, whichever date is 

later, except that the portion of the rate is greater than one and one-half percent 

imposed for the purpose of the interlocal agreement referred to above (rounded to 

the next higher one-quarter percent shall not terminate. 

 

2. Electors desiring to vote in favor of or against the proposition shall do so in the manner 

specified in the ballot form as provided by the Scotts Bluff County Clerk. 

 

3. The primary election shall be conducted by the Scotts Bluff County Clerk at polling 

places established by the County Clerk in each of the City’s precincts.  The polls shall be open 

from 7:00 a.m. through 7:00 p.m. on the day of the general election. 

 

4. The following notice required by law shall be published in the Star-Herald, a legal 

newspaper of general election in the City not more than 30 days nor less than 10 days before the 

date of the election. The notice shall be in substantially the following form: 

 

City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska 

Notice of Election 
 

Notice is given that at the primary election on Tuesday, May 10, 2016, at the 

usual polling place in each precinct of the City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska, the ballot 

will include for the electors of the City for their approval or rejection, the 

following proposition: 

 

[Insert text of proposition from Paragraph 1 of this Resolution in 

the notice] 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 120 / 138



3 

 

The polls will be open from 7:00 a.m. through 7:00 p.m. on the Election Day.  

Absent, disabled, and confined voters’ ballots may be obtained from the County 

Clerk as provided by law.  Copies of the proposition may be obtained at the office 

of the Scottsbluff City Clerk at City Hall, 2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, 

Nebraska 69361. 

 

Dated: _________, 2016. 

 

/s/ City Clerk 

 

5. The City Clerk shall cause a certified copy of this Resolution to be delivered to the Scotts 

Bluff County Clerk. 

 

 Passed and Approved on ________, 2016. 

 

 

        

   Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

  

 City Clerk 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 121 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Reports4

Council to receive and take action on the Business Improvement 
District recommendation regarding the downtown development.

Staff Contact: Annie Folck, City Planner

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 122 / 138



Rev 3/1/99CClerk 

A g e n d a   S t a t e m e n t 
 

Item No.  
 

For meeting of:  December 21, 2015 

 
AGENDA TITLE:   BID Recommendation for Downtown Plaza 

 

SUBMITTED BY DEPARTMENT/ORGANIZATION:    
 

PRESENTATION BY:   Neal Blomenkamp, BID Chairman 
 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: The BID board has spent a significant amount of time considering 
the best use of space in the 18th Street plaza and has written a letter to Council outlining their 
recommendations.  They are recommending that the two buildings along 18 th Street be torn 
down to create an open gathering space for events, and that 18 th Street be closed off between 
1st Avenue and Broadway.  This would create just over an acre of space for downtown events, 
located directly on main street.  The BID board is continuing to research funding opportunities to 
add improvements to this area, such as public bathrooms, a stage, landscaping, and 
resurfacing.  In the meantime, they recommend putting a simple crushed concrete surface where 
the two buildings currently stand, creating a much more usable space for large-scale events.  
The alley would remain open for deliveries, trash removal, and emergency purposes. 
 

 

BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: See attached letter 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:     
 

  
EXHIBITS  

Resolution  Ordinance  Contract  Minutes   Plan/Map  
 
Other (specify)  Letter  

 

NOTIFICATION LIST:  Yes     No     Further Instructions    

 
 
 

APPROVAL FOR SUBMITTAL:       
                                 City Manager 

  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 123 / 138



 

2525 Circle Drive                            Scottsbluff, NE  69361 
                                 

                               308-632-4136 

December 16, 2015 

 

 

Scottsbluff City Council 

2525 Circle Drive 

Scottsbluff, NE 69361 

 

 

 
Dear Council Members, 
 
On behalf of the Business Improvement District (BID) board, I would like to make some recommendations 
regarding continued improvements to Downtown Scottsbluff.  As business and property owners in the 
downtown, we believe that the downtown revitalization efforts have greatly enhanced the business district; 
however, there is still a lot of work to be done.  There continue to be many vacant buildings throughout the 
downtown, and we are still lacking a dedicated gathering space for large-scale events, which we believe will 
be vital for attracting activity to the area. 
 
We are very excited about the area on 18th Street that the City has set aside for a downtown plaza.  In the 
past couple of months, we have spent a considerable amount of time discussing and considering the best 
possible use of this space.  In order to make a more informed recommendation, we met on site, touring the 
two buildings that make up a portion of the plaza area.  We have determined that in order for the space to 
be used to its maximum potential, it would be best to demolish the two buildings located at 15 E 18th Street 
and 23 E 18th Street.  The locations of these two buildings divide the space and would make it much less 
functional for the type of large-scale events envisioned for the area.  While there is over an acre of space 
available for the plaza, it is so divided that many people are under the impression it is much smaller. 
 
It is always difficult to justify tearing down buildings that are still functional.  We spent a great deal of time 
discussing whether or not uses could be found for the buildings.  The building at 15 E 18th Street was found to 
be in a state of disrepair and we do not believe that it would be a good use of the City’s money to try to 
rehabilitate it.  It does have some architectural features that give it character.  We would suggest saving 
some elements of the building if it could be done at a reasonable cost.  For example, the glazed tile around 
the windows could possibly be saved and incorporated into a plaza design feature.  The building at 23 E 18th 
Street is in somewhat better condition.  The layout of the building is not well suited for public use. 
Furthermore, the overall plaza design will be greatly enhanced by removing these two buildings.  It may be 
possible to find uses for these two buildings, but we believe that utilizing them for other purposes would 
come at the cost of losing the effectiveness and long term functionality of the overall plaza area.   
 
The overall concept for the plaza also requires the closure of 18th Street between Broadway and 1st Avenue.  
This increases the available space for the plaza by roughly 50% when compared to the space already available 
in the parking lots and where the buildings stand.  We propose that at the time the bulb-outs are constructed 
along Broadway, 18th Street could also be closed off with a continuous curb.  This will help establish a more 
permanent space for events while ensuring that any work done on the 18th Street intersection fits well with 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 124 / 138



 

2525 Circle Drive                            Scottsbluff, NE  69361 
                                 

                               308-632-4136 

the overall plan for the area.  This will help us avoid making improvements to the intersection just to redo 
them in a few years.  If this was also done at the same time as the building demolition, it would minimize 
disruption in the area due to construction and could potentially reduce costs.  While the street would be 
closed off, the alley should remain open to accommodate deliveries and emergency access to nearby 
properties.  Once the buildings have come down, the area where they stood could be covered with a simple 
gravel or crushed concrete surface.  This would provide an expanded, contiguous space for the Farmers 
Market and other large-scale events.   
 
Once again, we would like to thank Council for their interest in continuing the downtown revitalization 
efforts.  In the coming months we will be researching possible funding opportunities to help this project 
come to fruition.  This project is extremely important to us as business owners and to the community as a 
whole, and we are very excited to see it move forward. 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Neil Blomenkamp 
Chairman 
Business Improvement District Board 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 125 / 138



BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT BOARD 
Regular Meeting  
December 16, 2015 
 
 
 
The Scottsbluff Business Improvement Board had a meeting on Wednesday morning, December 
16, 2015 at 8:00 a.m. at City Hall, 2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, Nebraska.  A notice of the 
meeting had been published on December 11, 2015 in the Star-Herald, a newspaper published 
and of general circulation in the City.  The notice stated the date, hour, and place of the meeting, 
that the meeting would be open to the public, that anyone with a disability desiring reasonable 
accommodation to attend the Business Improvement Board meeting should contact the 
Development Services Department, and that an agenda of the meeting kept continually current 
was available for public inspection at the Development Services Department office; provided, the 
Business Improvement Board could modify the agenda at the meeting if it determined that an 
emergency so required.  A similar notice, together with a copy of the agenda, also has been 
delivered to each Business Improvement Board member.   An agenda kept continuously current 
was available for public inspection at the office of the Development Services Department at all 
times from publication to the time of the meeting. 
 
Item 1: Vice Chairperson, Roger Franklin presided over the proceedings. The following Business 
Improvement Board members were present: Ron Schluter, Rick Wayman, Melissa Schneider, 
Donna Hessler, and Roger Franklin.  Members absent (excused): Beckie Rodgers, Angela 
Kembel, Nancy Dillman (alternate) and Neal Blomenkamp.  Members absent (unexcused): none. 
City officials present Annie Folck, City Planner, Annie Urdiales, Planning Administrator, and Liz 
Hilyard, Finance Director.  
 
Item 2: Franklin informed interested parties, a copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act is posted 
in the back of the City Council Chamber.  
 
Item 3: Roll Call. 
 
Item 4: Notice of changes in the agenda: None 
 
Item 5: Citizens with items not scheduled on regular agenda: None. 
 
Item 6: Minutes of 11/18/15, were reviewed a motion was made by Wayman and seconded by 
Schluter to approve the minutes. “YEAS”: Wayman, Schneider, Schluter, “NAYS”: None.  
ABSTAIN: Hessler, Franklin.  ABSENT:  Kembel, Rodgers, Dillman, & Blomenkamp.  Motion 
Carried.  
 
Item 7A:  A letter from the BID to City Council making formal recommendation regarding the two 
buildings at 15 & 23 East 18

th
 Street which the City owns and will be used for the future 

Downtown Plaza was reviewed and approved with the recommended changes - the addition of 
language regarding alley access to accommodate larger deliver trucks and emergency vehicles.  
One of the Business Improvement Board members will be at the Council meeting on December 
21

st
. 

 
Conclusion: A motion was made by Hessler and seconded by Schluter to approve the changes 
and forward letter with formal recommendation to City Council for removal of the two buildings 
located at 15 and 23 E 18

th
 Street. “YEAS”: Hessler, Wayman, Schneider, Schluter, and Franklin 

“NAYS”: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Kembel, Rodgers, Dillman and Blomenkamp.  
Motion Carried. 
 
Item 7B: Annie Folck answered questions from the last meeting regarding the Enhanced 
Employment Area (EEA) tax.  A City of the first class can levy a general business occupation tax 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 126 / 138



upon a business and users of space within an EEA for the purpose of paying all or part of cost 
and expenses of redevelopment within the area, the first few years the money collected would 
most likely go for the Downtown Plaza project.  The boundaries we can use for Broadway is the 
existing Blighted area north of the Railroad track  up to 19

th
 Street on the east side of Broadway 

and 18
th
 Street on the west side of Broadway.    

 
Questions the Board had were can all businesses be taxed – Services are not taxed, there are 
several business offices in the downtown area that are considered services and not retail. 
Businesses like Pella Windows would be taxed depending on where the delivery is.   How is the 
money tracked and who is responsible for how the money will be used?  The City Council has 
final authority and  can appoint the BID to review and make recommendations to them on how the 
money can be used – Downtown Plaza, infrastructure, facades for downtown businesses, also 
further on down the line daily maintenance and events.   
 
Another question asked was whether the tax information is public information.  Legal advised us 
that this is public information and if someone would come in and ask to see it we would have to 
provide the information because of the way State Statute is written.  The City will keep this low 
key and not broadcast information.    
 
The Board asked for a list of talking points they could use to approach other businesses on the 
Enhanced Employment Area Tax, to let them know this is something the City is considering and 
to see if there is interest.  Annie Folck will provide information on the EEA tax how it works and 
how it can be used at the next meeting in January 20, 2016.   
 
Other discussion: the Board again discussed the litter problem for the parking lot located on the 
NE corner of 17

th
 Street and Avenue A.; the trash receptacles are not being used, a group of 

people are hanging out there in the evening creating the problem, the parking lot does not have 
adequate lighting, more lights could possibly help.  Staff will check with the Police Department to 
see if they can patrol the area more closely during the late evening hours. 
 
Item 8: Unfinished Business: None. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:10 a.m. 
 
__________________________                        ________________________ 
Vice Chairman, Roger Franklin                            Attest: 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 127 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Reports5

Council to consider selling 2.54 acres of city owned property 
located at Lot 3A, Block 1, Immigrant Trail Subdivision for the 
purpose of building a storage unit development, contingent on 
receipt of appraisal, notices and remonstrance.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 128 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Reports6

Council to receive an update on the Comprehensive Plan.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 129 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Reports7

Council to appoint a Council Member to the Revenue Committee.

Minutes: Currently Council Member Gonzales is on the Revenue Commitee.  Liz Hilyard was a 
previous member when she served on the Council.  Council needs to replace Ms. Hilyard on the 
Revenue Committee.   Ms. Hilyard will continue to serve on the Revenue Committee as the Finance 
Director.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 130 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Reports8

Council to receive a report on investment of cash reserves and 
investment policy.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 131 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Resolut.1

Council to consider a Resolution to continue the Monument Valley 
Pathway grant project.

Staff Contact: Perry Mader, Park and Rec Director

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 132 / 138



Rev 3/1/99CClerk 

A g e n d a   S t a t e m e n t 
 

Item No.  
 

For meeting of: December 7th, 2015 

 

AGENDA TITLE: Council to approve Resolution to continue with pathway grant. 

SUBMITTED BY DEPARTMENT/ORGANIZATION: Parks and Recreation 
 

PRESENTATION BY: City Manager Rick Kuckkahn 
 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: The Parks and Recreation Department is presenting a Resolution 
to continue with the Monument Valley Pathway East grant.  This extension will provide access 
for citizens in the south, north and east part of the community to the current and newly approved 
pathway system.  This proposed pathway will help create a 10 mile loop through the community 
creating transportation alternatives to access retail, parks, schools, residential neighborhoods 
and more. 
 
See attached resolution.   
 

 

 

 

 

  
EXHIBITS  

Resolution x Ordinance  Contract   Minutes   Plan/Map  
 
Other (specify)      

 

NOTIFICATION LIST:  Yes    No    Further Instructions    
 

 

APPROVAL FOR SUBMITTAL:       
                                 City Manager 

  
 
 
 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 133 / 138



    RESOLUTION NO. ________.  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA:  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Scottsbluff, proposed to apply for assistance for the Transportation Alternatives 

Program for the purpose of planning and construction of the Monument Valley Pathway East.  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Scottsbluff, understands that property right-of-way may be necessary for 

completion of proposed project.  The City of Scottsbluff also understands that it may, but does not think 

it will be necessary, to acquire property by condemnation.  Condemnation is defined as the legal process 

by which a governmental body exercises its right of “eminent domain” to acquire private property for 

public use.  Condemnation includes a resolution of public need, an offer to purchase, and, if a 

negotiated purchase is not possible, then a condemnation suit.   

 

WHEREAS, the City of Scottsbluff intends to plan and construct the Monument Valley Pathway East 

project without the use of condemnation.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR OF SCOTTBLUFF, CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SCOTTSBLUFF, THAT THE CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF applies for assistance from the Transportation 

Alternatives Program for the purpose of planning and construction of the Monument Valley Pathway 

East project.  

         

Passed and approved this ___ day of December, 2015. 

___________________________ 

   Mayor  

ATTEST:  

________________________________                                                                                                                                         

City Clerk  

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 134 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Resolut.2

Council to remove from the table the 2015 Local Emergency 
Operations Plan Resolution. 

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 135 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Resolut.3

Council to consider a Resolution accepting the 2015 Local 
Emergency Operations Plan

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 136 / 138



R E S O L U T I O N – CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF 

 

Council Member ________________________________________________________ offers 

the following resolution and moves its adoption, seconded by Council member 

_____________________________________________: 

RESOLVE: That in order to provide for a coordinated response to a disaster or emergency in 

Scotts Bluff County, the City of Scottsbluff and other cities and villages in Scotts 

Bluff County, the Scottsbluff City Council deems it advisable and in the best 

interests of the community and the County to approve the attached Scotts Bluff 

County Local Emergency Operations Plan.  Acceptance of this 2015 Local 

Emergency Operations Plan supersedes all previous approved Scotts Bluff County 

Local Emergency Operations Plans. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 2015. 

 

   

 Mayor, City of Scottsbluff  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 137 / 138



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, December 21, 2015

Regular Meeting

Item Exec1

Council reserves the right to enter into closed session if deemed 
necessary if the item is on the agenda.

Staff Contact: City Council

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 12/21/2015 Page 138 / 138


